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INDEPENDENT AI]DITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of DLF Home Developers Limited

Report on the Audit ofthe Standrlone Financiel Statements

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements ofDLF Home Developers Limited C'the Company"), which
comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31,2025,Lhe Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of
Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then

ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and

other explanatory information which includes two joint opemtions.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid

standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,20l3, as amended ("the
Acf') in the manner so required and give a hue and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in Indi4 ofthe state of affairs ofthe Company as at March 31, 2025, its profit including other

comprehaxive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone fnancial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are fiuther
described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements' section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the 'Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit ofthe financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfrlled our other ethical

responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence

we have obtained is suffrcient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial
statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 4l(BXi), (ii) and (vi) of the standalone financial statements, which describes the

uncertainty relating to outcome of following lawsuits hled against the Company:

a. tn a complaint frled against the holding company, DLF Limited, which includes certain projects ofthe
Company, relating to imposing unfair conditions on buyers, the Competition Commission of India has

irnposed a penalty of Rs. 63,000.00 lakhs on the holding company which was upheld by Competition

Appellate Tribunal. The Company and its holding company has filed an appeal which is currently
pending with Hon'ble Suprune Court of India and the holding company has deposited Rs. 63,000.00

lakhs as per direction of the Honble Supreme Court of India.

b. Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), in a complaint filed against the Company and holding
company, imposed certain restrictions on the Company and holding company. The Company and holding

company had received a favorable order against the appeal in said case from Securities Appellate

Tribunal (SAT). SEBI subsequently, has filed a statutory appeal which is currently pending before

Honble Supreme Court. SEBI has also imposed penalties upon the Company and its holding company,

some of its directors, officer, its fellow subsidiaries and their directors which has been disposed-off by
SAT with a direction that these appeals will stand automatically revived upon disposal of civil appeal

filed by SEBI against aforementioned SAT judgement.
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c. In respect of ongoing legal cases, the Company has outstanding trade receivables of Rs. 39,6E6. I I lakhs
from customers, which is cunently sub-judice. Pending fmal order from Honble Supreme Court oflndia
and at other levels the amount is pending recovery since long. Based on legal status and expert's view,
the management is confident of ils recovery and has considered that the amount is fully recoverable.

Based on the advice ofthe extemal legal counsels, no adjustnent has been considered in the standalone financial
statements by the management in respect of above matters. Our opinion is not modified in respect ofthese matters.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgnent, were of most significance in our audit of
the standalone financial statements for the fmancial year ended March 3 I , 2025 . These matters were addressed in
the context ofour audit ofthe standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit
addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the standalone
financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included
the performance ofprocedures designed to respond to our assessment ofthe risks ofmaterial misstatement ofthe
standalone financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying standalone financial
statements.

Kev audit matters How our audit address€d the kev audit matter
Rev€nue recoqnition for reel estrte proi€cts (as described in Note 28 to the standalone/inancial slalenents)

The Company applies Ind AS ll5 "Revenue
from contracts with customers" for recognition
of revenue from real estate projects, which is
being recognised at a point in time upon the
Company satis$ing its performance obligation
and the customer obtaining control of the
mderlying asset.

Considering application of Ind AS ll5
involves significant judgement in identifring
performance obligations and determining
when 'control' of the asset underlying the
performance obligation is transferred to the
customer, the same has been considered as key
audit matter.

Our audit procedures included :

o Read the Company's revenue recognition accounting
policies and assessed compliance of the policies with Ind
AS I 15;

. Obtained and understood revenue recognition process
including identification of performance obligations and
determination oftransfer of control ofthe asset underlying
the perfonnance obligation to the customer;

o Read the legal opinion obtained by the Company to
detennine the point in time at which the conhol is
transferred in accordance with the underlying agreements;

o Tested, revenue related transactions with the mderlying
customer contacts and documents evidencing the transfer
of control of the assets to the customer based on which
revenue is recognized;

o Assessed that the performance obligation is satisfied by the
Company.

. Assessed the revenue related disclosures included in Note
28 to the standalone financial statements in accordance
with the requirements of hdAS 115.
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Kev eudit matters How our audit addressed the kev audit matt€r
Claims. litiqations and continqenci€s (as described in note 4 I to the standalone financial statements)

The Company is involved in various litigations
relating to land related matters, customer
related matters and various tax related matters,
etc. which are pending at various forums.
These ongoing litigations could have
significant financial impact, if the potential
exposure were to materialize.

Management estimates the possible outflow of
economic resources by applying significant
judgement including legal counsel opinion and
available information on the legal status ofthe
proceedings.

Considering the determination by the
management of whether, and how much, to
provide and/ or disclose for such contingencies
involves significant judgement and €stimation,
the same has been considered as key audit
matter-

Our audit procedures included:
. Understood management's process relating to the

idurtification and impact analysis ofclaims, litigations and
contingencies;

o Obtained confirmation letters from legal counsels and
analysed their responses;

. Read the minutes of meetings of the Audit Committee and
the Board ofDirectors ofthe Company related to noting of
status of material litigations;

. Assessed management's assumptions and estimates related
to disclosures of contingent liabilities in the standalone
financial statements.

Assessins the carryinq value of Inventorv and advances oaid for land orocurement (as described in note
8, 9, l2 and l3 to the stqndqlone financial statements)
The Company's inventory comprises of
ongoing and completed real estate projects,
unlaunched projects and development rights.
As at March 31,2025, the carrying values of
inventories amounts to Rs. 6,36,866.15 lakhs.

The inventories are carried at the lower ofthe
cost and net realizable value ('NRV'). The
determination of the NRV involves estimates
based on prevailing market conditions, current
maf,ket prices, and expected date of
commencement and completion ofthe project,
the estimated future selling price, cost to
complete projects and selling costs.

Further, the Company has made various
advances and deposits to the seller/
intermediary towards purchase of land during
tle course of obtaining clear and marketable
title, free from all encumbrances and transfer
of legal title to the Company, whereupon it is
transferred to land stock under inventories.

With respect to land advance given, the
recoverable value is based on the
management's estimates and intemal
documentation, which include, among other
things, the likelihood when the land acquisition
would be completed, the expected date ofplan
aoorovals for commencement of Droiect.

Our audit procedures included among others:
o Read and evaluated the accounting policies and disclosures

made in the standalone frnancial statements with respect to
inventories:

o Where the Company involved experts to perform
valuations, we also performed the following procedures:

F Obtained and read the valuation report used by the
management for determining the NRV;

) Considered the independence, competence and
objectivity of the experts involved in determination
of valuation; and

) Involved specialists to r€view the assumptions used
by dre management experts.

o Understood and reviewed the management's process and
methodology of using key assumptions for determination
of NRV of the inventories;

. Tested the NRV of the inventories to its carrying value in
books on sample basis.

In respect of land advances, our audit procedures included the
following:
. Obtained status update from the management and verified

the underlying documents for related developments;
o Compared the acquisition cost ofthe underlying land with

current market price in similar locations;

t-r
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Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter
estimation of sale prices and construction costs

and Company's business plans in respect of
such planned developments.

Considering significance of the amount of
carrying value of inventories in the financial
statements and the involvement of significant
estimation and judgement in such assessment

of NRV, recoverability of land advances the
same has been considered as key audit matter.

Evaluated the management assessment w.r.t.
recoverability ofthose advances and changes ifany, in the
business plans relating to such advances.

n

associate entitics fa.r described in note 7A and I to the standalone financial statements)

The Company has significant investnents and
loans in its subsidiaries, joint ventures,
partnership firrn and associates. As at March
31, 2025, the carrying values of Company's
investments and loans in its subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associate entities amounts to Rs.

7,50,798.40 lakhs (net of impairmeno.

Management reviews annually whether there
are any indicators of impairment by reference
to the requirements under Ind AS 36
"Impairment of Assets". For investrnents and
loans where impaiment indicators exist,
significant judgements are required to
determine the key assumptions used in the
valuation model and methodology, such as

revenue growth, discount rates, etc.

Considering, the impairment assessment

involves significant assumptions and
judgement, the same has been considered as

key audit matter.

Our procedures included, among othos, tlte following:

o Assessed the Company's valuafion methodology applied
in determining the recoverable amount ofthe investments
and loans.

. Obtained and read the valuation report used by the
management for determining the fair value ('recoverable
amount') of its invesfinents and loans given;

. Considered the independence, competence and objectivity
of the management experts involved in determination of
valuation;

o Tested the fair value of the investment and loans as

mentioned in the valuation report to the carrying value in
books;

o Made inquiries with management to understand key
drivers ofthe cash flow forecasts, discount rates, etc;

o Involved specialists to evaluate the assumptions used by
the management specialists;

o We assessed the adequacy of disclosures regarding
investrnents and loans in accordance with applicable
accounting standards.

Assessment of recoverability of dcferred trx assets (as described in note l0 to the standalone financial
slatements)

As at March 31, 2025, the Company has

recognized deferred tax assets of Rs. 7 I ,702.25
lakhs on deductible temporary differences and
unused tax losses. Recognition of deferred tax
assets to the extent that there is convincing
other evidence that suffrcient taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences and the carry forward of
unused tax losses can be utilized, involves
significant management judgement and
estimation given that it is based on
assumptions such as the likely timing and level
of futule taxable Drofits which are affected by

Our audit procedures included, amongst othen:

. Obtained an understanding of the process and tested the
controls over recording of deferred tax and review of
deferred tax at each reporting date;

. Tested the computation of the amounts recognized as

deferred tax assets;

o Evaluated management's assumptions used to determine
the probability that deferred tax assets recognized in the
balance sheet will be recovered through taxable income in
future years, by comparing them against profit trends and
future business plans;
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Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the

Director's report and corporate governance report, but does not include the standalone financial statements and

our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone furancial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express

any form of assurance conclusion tltereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other

information an( in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the

standalone fmancial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this

other information, we are required to report that fact. We have notling to report in this regard.

Kev audit matters How our audit address€d the key audit matter
expected future mfiket and economic
conditions.

Considering, this involves signifrcant
judgement and estimat€s, the same has been
considered as key audit matter.

Assessed the adequacy of disclosures in accordance with
applicable accounting standards.

o

R€lated party transactions /as descz6ed in note 47 to the standaloneJinancial statements)

The Company has undertaken transactions
with its related parties in the ordinary course of
business. These include making new or
additional investnents in its subsidiaries;
lending loans to related parties; sales and
purchases to and from related parties, etc. as

disclosed in note 47 to the standalone frnancial
statements.

We identified the accuracy and completeness
of the related party hansactions and its
disclosure as set out in respective notes to the
standalone frnancial statements as a key audit
matter due to the significance of transactions
with related parties and regulatory
compliances thereon, during the year ended
March 3l,2025.

Our procedures/ testing included the following:

o Obtained and read the Company's policies, processes and
procedures in respect of identifing related parties,

obtaining approval, recording and disclosure of related
party transactions;

. Traced related parties from management's approved list of
related parties including declaration given by directors.

. Read minutes of shareholders' meetings, board meetings

and minutes of meetings ofthose charged with govemance

in connection with Company's assessment ofrelated party
transactions being in the ordinary course of business at
arm's length and tested completeness of such transactions;

. Tested related party transactions with the underlying
contracts, confnmation letters and other supporting
documents;

. Aereed the related party information disclosed in the

standalone fmancial statements with the underlying
supporting documents, on a sample basis.
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Responsibilities of Management rnd Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) ofthe Act with respect

to the preparation ofthese standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view ofthe furancial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity ofthe Company
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 ofthe Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)

Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding ofthe assets ofthe Company and for preventing and

detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate intemal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness

ofthe accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation ofthe standalone financial statements that
give a hue and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going

concem basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,

or has no realistic altemative but to do so.

Those Charged with Govemance are also responsible for oveneeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit ofthe Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone fmancial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes

our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material i{ individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected

to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis ofthese standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identifr and assess the risks ofmaterial misstatement ofthe standalone financial statements, whether due to

fraud or enor, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that

is suffrcient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,

forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3Xi) ofthe Act, we are also responsible for expressing

our opinion on whether the Company has adequate intemal financial controls with reference to standalone

frnancial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness ofaccounting policies used and the reasonableness ofaccounting estimates and

related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness ofmanagement's use ofthe going concem basis of accounting an4 based

on the audit evidence obtained whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may

cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material

uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the

standalone financial statements or, ifsuch disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions

are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or

conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concem.
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. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content ofthe standalone fmancial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing ofthe audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identif during our audit.

We also provide those charged with govemance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding indepurdence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit ofthe standalone financial statements for the financial year ended March 31,2025
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

The comparative financial statements and other financial information ofthe Company for the year ended March
31, 2024 included in these fmancial statements, fie restated pursuant to Scheme ofAmalgamation as explained in
note 56 of the accompanying standalone financial statements and are based on the previously issued statutory
financial statements of the Company and one of the transferor company as at and for the year ended March 31,

2024 which have been audited by us. Further we did not audit the financial statement and other flnancial
information of DLF Residential Developen Limited (another ftansferor company) whose financial statement

reflects total assets of Rs. 18,187.87 lakhs as at March 3 l, 2024, total revenue of Rs. 10,587.45 lakhs and net cash

inflow ofRs. 180.20 lakhs for the year ended on that date, included in these standalone fmancial statements as per

the scheme approved by the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Chandigarh Bench. These

financial statements and other furancial information ofthe transferor Company was audited by other auditor whose

audit report has been fumished to us by the management, as adjusted for the accounting effects of the scheme

recorded by the Company (in particular, the accounting effects of scheme of Amalgamation) and other
consequential adjustrnents, which have been audited by us. Our opinion in so far as it relates to the amounts and

disclosures included in respect of another transferor company, is based solely on the report of such auditor. Our
opinion is not modified in respect ofthe above matters.

We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, in respect ofone partnership firm whose

financial statements include Cornpany's share ofprofrt (post tax) ofRs. 0.62 lakhs for the year ended March 31,

2025 included in accompanying standalone financial statements. These standalone financial statements and other
financial information ofthe said partnership fum have been audited by other auditor, whose financial statements,

other financial information and auditor's reports have been furnished to us by the managernent. Our opinion on
the standalone fmancial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect ofthis
partnership firm and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the

aforesaid partnership frm, is based solely on the reports of such other auditors. Our opinion is not modified fui

respect of this matter.

The accompanying standalone financial statements include unaudited financial statements and other unaudited
financial information in respect of2 joint operations, whose financial statements and other financial information
reflect total assets of Rs. 54 l 92 lakhs as at March 3 I , 2025, and total revenues of Rs. Nil and net cash inflow of
Rs. Nil for the year ended on that date. These unaudited frnancial statements and other unaudited financial
information have been fumished to us by the management. Our opinion in so far as it relates to the amounts and

disclosures included in respect of these joint operations and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) of Section 143
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of the Act, in so far as it relates to t]le aforesaid joint operations, is based solely on such unaudited financial
statements and other unaudited financial information. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us by the management, these fmancial statements and other financial information are not
material to the Company. Our opinion is not modified in respect oftlfs matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (the Order"), issued by the Central
Govemment of India in terms of sub-section ( I I ) of section I 43 of the Act, based on our audit and the other
unaudited fmancial information of the joint operations, as noted in the 'Other Matter' paragraph we give in
the "Annexure l" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 ofthe Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) ofthe Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our lnowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

@) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination ofthose books except for the matters stated in the paragraph 2o(vi) below
on reporting under Rule 11G);

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinioq the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards

specified under Section 133 ofthe Act, read with Companies (Indian Accomting Standards) Rules, 2015,

as amended;

(e) The matters described in Emphasis ofMatter paragra.ph above, in our opinion, may have an adverse effect
on the functioning ofthe Company;

(f) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,2025 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,2025 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) ofthe Act;

(g) The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as

stated in paragraph 2(b) above;

(h) With respect to the adequacy of the intemal financial controls witl reference to standalone financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure 2"
to this report;

(i) ln our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 3 I , 2025 has been paid / provided
by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule Y
to the Act;

C) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 1l of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone financial statements - Refer Note 4l to the standalone financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-temr contracts including derivative contracts for which there

were any material foreseeable losses;

t-
I
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ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

iii. There were no amounts which were rcquired to be tansferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, ot]ler than as

disclosed in the note 59(v) to the standalone fmancial statements, no fimds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
fimds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, fugluding fereigl entities
("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in wdting or othenvise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in otler persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf ofthe Company ("Ultimate Beneficiarie9') or
provide any guamntee, security or the like on behalfofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The managernent has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as

disclosed in the note 59(vi) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been received by
the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities ('Funding Parties"), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly
or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any mmner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Funding Pfity ('Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the

like on behalfofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

v. As stated in note 39(b) to the standalone financial statements, the Board of Directors of the
Company has proposed dividend for the year. The dividend proposed is in accordance with section

123 ofthe Act to the extent it applies to proposed dividend.

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks and review of Service Organisation Controls
report, the Company has used accounting software which is operated by a third party service
provider for maintaining its books ofaccount, which has a feature ofrecording audit trail (edit log)
facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software. Further, during the course ofour audit we did not cone across any instance ofaudit trail
feature being tampered with. Additionally, for the reasons stated in note 57 to the financial
statements, we are unable to comment whether tlre audit trail has been preserved by the Company
as per the statutory requirements for record retention for previous year.

U"s
per Gaurav Kumar Gupta
Parher
Mernbership Number: 509 l0 I

UDIN: 25509101BMOLCU7780

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 15, 2025

d
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph under the heading 'R€port on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements" of
our report ofeven date

Re: DLF Home Developers Limited ('the Company').

In terms ofthe information and explanrtions sought by rs and given by the Company and the books ofrccount.nd
records examined by us in the normal course ofaudit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we strte that:

(iXaXA) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation ofthe property, plant and equipment.

(i) (a)(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles assets.

(i)o) All property, plant and equipment and investnent properties have not been physically verified by the
management during the year but there is a regular programm€ of verification which, in our opinion, is

reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification.

(i) (c) The title deeds of immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease

agreements are duly executed in favour ofthe lessee and properties where Company has acquired development
rights and development agreement is duly executed in favour of the Company) disclosed in note 4 and 5 to the
standalone fmancial statements included in property, plant and equipment and investrnent property are held in
the name of the Company. Certain title deeds of the immovable properties, in the nature of freehold land &
buildings, as indicated in the below mentioned cases which were acquired pursuant to Scheme of arrangements/

amalgamations approved by Hon'ble High Court ofDelhi vide its order dated January I l, 201 I and by National
Company Law Tribunal's (NCLT) order dated June 30, 2022 and Novernber 20, 2024 respectively, are not
individually held in the name ofthe Company, however the deed ofmerger has been registered by the Company
on February 28, 201 l, \tly 27 ,2022 and December 12, 2024 respectively.

m

The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including Right ofuse assets) or intangible
assets dudng the year ended March 3 I , 2025 .

Whether
promoter,
director or
th€ir relative
or employee

Period
held
since

Reason for not being held
in the name ofthe
company

Descripti
on of
item of
property

Gross
carrying
value

Title deeds held in
the name of

Land 1.53 Eastem India
Powertech Limited
(Formerly known as

DLF Power Company

No June 30,
2022

140.48 Eastem India
Powertech Limited
(Formerly known as

DLF Power Company
Limited)

No June 30,
2022

Land and
building

5.12Land Anurag Construction
Company Limited

No January
1 l, 2011

Land and
building

r,463.43 DLF Garden City
Indore Private

Limited

No Novernb
er 20,
2024
January
11, 201I

These assets got vested in
the name of the Company
pursuant to respective
scheme of arrangements/
amalgamations approved
by appropriate authority.

Land 7,362.97 Calantha Builders &
Developers Limited

No

(i) (d)
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(i) (e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under
the Prohibition ofBenami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(ir) (a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year except for inventories
represented by tle development rights. In our opinion, the frequency of verification by the management is
reasonable and the coverage and procedure for such verification is appropriate. Inventories represented by the
developmert rights have been confirmed on the basis of custodian certificate of land obtained by the
management as at March 31, 2025 and no material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification
and confirmations.

(ii) (b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capilal limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from
banks or financial institutions during any point of time ofthe year on the basis of security ofcurrenl assets.

Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ii)@) ofthe Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iii) (a) During the year, the Company has provided loans, advances in the nature ofloans, stood guarantee and provided
security to companies, firms or other person as follows:

tn

*Represent balance ofpanies in respect ofwhich any transaction was done during the year.

^ Gross amount before any adjustment of expected credit loss

During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood guarantee and
provided security to Limited Liability Partnerships.

(iii) O) During the year, the invesanents made, guarantees provided and the terms and conditions of the grant ofall
loans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees to companies, firms and any other parties are not
prejudicial to the Company's interest.

(iii) (c) In respect to loans granted to Companies, firms and ofher person, the loans are repayable on demand. The

repayment of loans demanded during the year have been received. For loans outstanding at the year-end that
are repayable on demand, we have been informed by the management ofthe Company that it has not demanded
repayment of such loans during the year. The payment of interest for such loans is regular. In respect of
employee loan, the loans granted are interest free as per the Company's employee loan policy. Further, the
Company has granted loan during the year to one company, where the schedule ofrepayment ofprincipal and
payment of interest has been stipulated and the principal amount of such loan has been extended during the
year, however payment ofinterest is regular.

Guerrntees S€curity Loans^ Advances in
nature of
lorns

Particularc

Assresate amount granted/ provided durinq the vear

29,130.00
2,892.00

3,600.00
4,769.00
6.456.00

2s,000.00

35,000.00

- Holding Company
- Subsidiaries
- Fellow subsidiaries (including
partnership firm)
- Joint Ventures
- Associates
- Others
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in of above cases*

73,549.81
22,422.09

17,697.60
3,379.70

23.263.72

70,000.00

46.984.08

- Holding Company
- Subsidiaries
- Fellow subsidiaries (including
partnership firm)
- Joint Ventures
- Associates
- Others
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(ii0 (d) There are no amounts of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted to companies, fims or any other
parties which are overdue for more than ninety days.

(iii) (e) The Company had granted loans / advance in the nature of loan to companies, firms or any oth€r parties which
had fallen due during the year. The Company had renewed/ extended loans during the year to the one of the
party to settle the dues ofthe existing loans.

The aggregate amount of such dues renewed / extended and the percentage of the aggregate to the total loans
or advances in the nature of loans granted during rhe year is as follows:

ln

(iiD (f)

(rY)

(v)

(vi)

As disclosed in note 8 to the standalone financial statements, during the year, the Company has granted loans

or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on dernand or without speci$ing any terms or period of
repayment to companies, firms or any other parties. Ofthese following are the details ofthe aggregate amount
of loans or advances in the nature of loans granted to promoters or related parties as defined in clause (76) of
section 2 ofthe Companies Act, 2013:

ln

Loans, investnents, guarantees and security in respect of which provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the

Companies Act, 2013 are applicable have been complied with by the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which are deemed

to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 ofthe Companies Act and the rules made thererutder, to
the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made by the
Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(l) of the Companies Act,2013,
related to construction/ real estate industry, and are ofthe opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts and

records have been made and maintained. We have not however, made a detailed examination ofthe same.

Undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees' slate insurance,

income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues

have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities though there has been a slight delay in
a few cases. According to the irformation and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures

perfonned by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues wer€ outstanding, at the

Percentage of th€
sggregate to thc totsl
loans or advances in the
nature of loans granted
durins the vear

Name of parties Aggregate amount
of loans or advances
in the nature of
lorns gronted
durins the vear

Aggregrte oYerdu€
amount settled by
renewal or extension
granted to same parties

loan
during

Total
granted
the vear

46,847.00

114.32%Sahyog Homes
Limited

s,981.00 53,553.82

All prrties Promoters Related parties

40,866.00
Aggregate amount of loanV advances in nature of loans

- Repayable on demand (A)

87.230/oPercentage of loans/ advances in nature of loans to the
total loans

E
a

(vii) (a)

year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they payable.
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(vii) (b) The dues ofgoods and services tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service
tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, and other statutory dues have not been deposited on
account ofany dispute, are as follows:

Nrme of the
statute

Goods and
Service

Tax 2017

Nature of the dues
Amount
(Rs'
lakhs)

ln

Paid
under
protest
(Rs. in
lskhs)

Period to
which the
amount
rehtes

Forum where the
dispute is pending

Disallowance of
ITC credit

639.91

149.33

FY 2017-18
The Additional
Commissioner

(Aooeals). Harvana

Goods and
Service

'fax Act,2017

Disallowance of
ITC credit

FY 2017-18
ro FY 2019-

20

The Deputy
Commissioner

(ST), GST Appeal,
Chennai

Goods and
Service

Tax Act. 2017

Disallowance of
ITC credit

15,782.93
July 2017 to
March 2021

The Commissioner
(Appeals), Delhi

Goods and
Service

Tax Act. 2017

Disallowance of
ITC credit

r,104.29
FY 2017-18
to 2O19-2O

The Hon'ble High
Court ofPunjab and

Haryana
Goods and

Service
Tax Act. 2017

Disallowance of
ITC credit

19.73
FY 20t7-

20t8

The Assistant
Commissioner,

Gurgaon
Goods and

Service
Tax Act. 2017

Disallowance of
ITC credit

3.38 FY 2020-21
The Assistant

Commissioner State
Tax. Jalandhar

Goods and
Service

Tax Act, 2017

Disallowance of
ITC credit

2.23 FY 2019-20

The Excise &
Taxation

Deparftient, U.T.,
Chandiearh

Kerala Value
Added Tax,

2003

Demand raised on
account of addition

of tumover and
VAT on works

contract

428.83 150.38
FY 2007-08
and 2009-10

The VAT Tribunal
Kerala

The Finance
Act, 1994

Demand of service
tax on

corporate guarantee
and
SEZ

2,023.78 26.81
FY 2010-

2018

The Custom Excise
and Service Tax

Appellate Tribunal,
Chandigarh

Entry tax Entry tax 40.47 26.42
FY 2011-12
and 12-13

The Commissioner
tax, Appellate

Tribunal Indore

Disallowance of
ITC credit

Delhi Value Added
Tax Act, 2004

55.12 FY 2013-14
The Additional
Commissioner

(Aoneals)- Delhi

Income Tax
Act, 1961

Tax demand on
account of various

disallowances
during the tax
assessments

7,092.35
FY 2005-06,
FY 2013-14
to 2016-17

The Hon'ble High
Court ofl\mjab and

Haryana
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Name ofthe
statute

Nature ofthe dues
Amount

(Rs. in
lakhs)

Paid
under

protest
(Rs. in
lakhs)

Period to
which the
amount
relrtes

Forum where the
dispute is pending

Income Tax
Act, 1961

Tax demand on
account of various

disallowances
during the tax
assessments

514.95 0.51
FY 2005-06
and2006-07

FY 2014-15,
Fv 2016-17,
FY 2017-18
em,dZ0l9-20

The Income Tax
Appellate Tribunal

Income Tax
Act, l96l

Tax demand on
account of various

disallowances
during the tax
assessments

3,848.63 6',10.65

The Commissioner
oflncome Taxes

(Appeals)

Income Tax
Act, 1961

Tax demand on
account of various

disallowances
during t]Ie tax
attsessments

FY 2006-07
and FY
2016-17

The Hon'ble
Supreme Court of

India
240.00 14.83

FY 2018-19
and FY
2020-21

The Company is in
the process of

filling the appeal
before CIT(A) as at

385,262.46 111.73

March 3l 2025

Income Tax
Act, 196l

Tax demand on
account of various

disallowances
during the tax
assessments

Income Tax
Act, 196l

Tax demand on
account of various

disallowances
during the tax
assessments

183.92 FY 20l s-16
The Assessing
Oflicer, Delhi

Building and
other

construction
workers Act,

1996

Labour Cess 687 .26 687 .26 FY 2020-21
The Joint Labour
Commissioner,

Delhi

*CESTAT stands for custom excise and service tax appellate tribunal

(Yiii) The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any tsansaction, previously unrecorded in the books of account,
in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act I 96 I as income during the year. Accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause 3(viii) ofthe Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix) (a) Loans amounting to Rs. 57,507.76 lakhs are repayable on demand and tenns and conditions for payment of
interest thereon have not been stipulated. We have been informed by the management of the Company that
such loans and interest thereon have not been demanded for repayment during the relevant financial year. The
Company has not defaulted in repayment ofother borrowings or payment ofinterest thereon to any lender.

(ix) O) The Company has not been declfied wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any
govemmant authority.

Non-convertible debentures of Rs. 60,000.00 lakhs were raised during the previous year, out of which Rs.
20,000.00 lakhs have not been utilised by the end ofthe year. Balance ofRs. 40,000.00 lakhs have been applied
for the purpose for which the non-convertible debentures were raised. This matter has been disclosed in note

(ix) (c)

l9 to the standalone financial statements.
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(ix) (d) On an overall examination of the standalone fmancial statements of the Company, no funds raised on short-
term basis have been used for long-term purposes by tle Company.

(ix) (e)

(ix) (D

(x) (a)

(xviXb)

(xvi)(c)

(x) (b) The Company has not made any preferential alloEnent or private placement of shares/ fully or partially or
optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the requirement to report on clause
3(x)(b) ofthe Order is not applicable to the Company.

No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.(xD (a)

(xi) O) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by
the cost auditor/ secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rule, 2014 with the Central Govemment.

(xi) (c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the Company
during the year.

(xii) (a) The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a) ofthe Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xii) (b) The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the
requirernent to report on clause 3(xii)(b) ofthe Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xii) (c) The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(c) ofthe Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013
where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the sandalone fmancial statements, as

required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)(a)

(xivXb)

The Company has an intemal audit system commensurate with the size and nature ofits business.

The intemal audit reports ofthe Company issued till the date ofthe audit report, for the period under audit have
been considered by us.

(xv) The Company has not ertered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its
directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) ofthe Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)(a) The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Acl 1934 (2 of 1934) are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

On an overall examination ofthe standalone fmancial statements ofthe Company, the Company has not taken
any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or
joint ventures.

The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint
venhres or associate companies. Hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further public offer
(including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) ofthe Order is not applicable to
the Company.

The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(b) ofthe Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank oflndia.

E
a

Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) (c) ofthe not applicable to the Company.
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(xvi)(d) The Group does not have more tlran one CIC as part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report on clause
3(xvi{d) ofthe Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current fmancial year and in the immediately preceding
financial year respectively.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly requirement to report
on Clause 3(xviii) ofthe Order is not applicable to the Company.

("i") On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 61 to the standalone fmancial statements, ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and pq,ment of fmancial liabilities, other information
accornpanying the standalone fmancial statements, our knowledge ofthe Board ofDirectors and management
plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the dat€ ofthe audit report that
Company is not capable ofmeeting its liabilities existing at the date ofbalance sheet as and when they fall due
within a period ofone year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to
the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on tle facts up to the date of
the audit report and we neither give any guirantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a
period ofone year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) (a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to be transferred to a
tmd specified in Schedule VII ofthe Companies Act (the Act), in compliance with second proviso to sub

section 5 of section 135 of the Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 40 to the standalone financial
statements.

(*") (b) All amounts that are unspent under section (5) of section 135 of Companies Act, pursuant to any ongoing
project, has been transferred to special account in compliance of with provisions of sub section (6) of section
135 ofthe said Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 40 to the standalone financial statements.

For S,R, Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountanls
ICAI FiIm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

\\^"i"
per Gaurav Kumar Gupta
Partner
Membership Number: 509 I 0 I

UDIN: 25509101BMOLCU7780

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 15, 2025
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Annexure 2 to the Itrdependent Auditor's report of even date on the Stsndalone finsncial st{tements of
DLF Home Developers Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Claus€ (i) of Su b-.section 3 of Section 143 ofthe Companies
Act, 2013 ('the Act")

We have audited the intemal financial confols with reference to standalone fmancial statements ofDLF Home
Developers Limited ("the Company") as of March 31,2025 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial satements ofthe Company for the year ended on that date.

Managemetrt's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining intemal financial controls based on
the intemal control over financial reporting criteria established by tlle Company considering the essential
conponents ofinternal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the
design, implemurtation and rnaintenance of adequate internal fmancial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efiicient conduct ofits business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the

safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection offrauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness ofthe
accounting records, and the timely preparation ofreliable fmancial information, as requied under the Companies

Act,2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls with reference to these

standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on
Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of intemal fmancial
controls, both issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate intemal
financial conhols wit]t reference to these standalone financial statements was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the intemal financial
controls with reference to these standalone fmancial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
intemal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements included obtaining an understanding
of intemal financial contols with reference to these standalone financial statements, assessing the risk that a

material wealmess exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of intemal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including fte assessment

ofthe risks of material misstatement ofthe fmancial statements, whether due to fraud or enor.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company's internal fmancial controls with reference to these standalone financial statements.

Merning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Standalone trinancial Statements

A company's intemal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for extemal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial controls with reference to standalone fmancial statements includes those policies and procedures

that (1) pertain to the maintenance ofrecords that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions ofthe assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as

necessary to pennit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable alisurance regarding
prevention or timely detection ofunauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition ofthe company's assets that could
have a material effect on the fmancial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Standalone Financial Statements

Because ofthe inherent limitations of intemal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due
to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the intemal financial
controls with reference to standalone fmancial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the intemal
fmancial control with reference to standalone financial statements may become inadequate because ofchanges in
conditions, or that the degee of compliance with tle policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate intemal fmancial controls with reference to
standalone frnancial statements and such intemal fmancial controls with reference to standalone furancial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the intemal control over fnancial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of intemal conhol stated in the
Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Reeistation Number: 3010038/E300005

\.^ttd
per Gaurav Kumar Gupta
Partsler
Membership Number: 509 I 0 I

UDIN: 255091018MOLCU7780

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 15 , 2025
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DLF Home Developen Limited
Regd. ( )fficc: 2nd Irloor, ,\rjun irlarg, Dl.F Shopping IfuU, DLF Citl, I,hase I, Dl-F QE, curuglam 122002 (IIan-ana,),lndia.

CIN - U74899IIRl 9951'1.C082458, Website: *r.ur.dltin/DHDl.
'fel: +91 124 4334200, Email: corporateaffairs@dlfin
St.ndalone StateEent of Profit .nd Irss for thc ye.r ended 31 March 2025

Ycal cnded

31 Marcfi 2025

({ in l,akhs)

Income
Revenue from operations

Other income

Total income

28

29

199,444.52

14,511.28

192,530.35

29,135.78

Year euded
31l0,.tct}2024

(t in lakhs)----(R;a;-

221,666'-13

9a,240.14

13,021.10

10,090.11

2,$6.21

19,477.24

144$4.80
78,831.33

30,041.40

108,872.73

n4,o0t.8o

Expenses

Cost of land, plots, developrnent rights, constructed properties and
others

Employee bmefi ts expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and arnortizadon expense

Other expenses

Total expensee

Profit before exceptional items and tax
Exceptional iterns (net)

Profit before t x
Tax expease:

Curent tax

Tax relating to earlier years

Deferred rax

Total tax expenee

P.o6t after tax
Other comprchensive income

Item that will not be reclassifled to statement of proftt afld loss tr
subsequent periods

Re-measurement gains on defined benefit plaos (net)

Income tax on above

Net gain on FVOCI equiq' instrumeots

Income tax on above

Other compr€hensive incomc for the yea.
Total comprehensive iocome for the year

Eardrg per equity share (face value of I 10 per share) 36

Basic ({)
Diluted (9
# 

On accouft of merger of *holly orvned subsidianes as per Ind AS 103 (refer note 56)

Ir{aterial accounting policies 2 &3
The accompanpng notes are an integal part of the standalone Enanoal sratemenrs

As per report ofeven date

Fot S.R, Badiboi & Co. LLP
ICAI PiIm Registation Number: 301003ti/E300005

Chartered Accountants

U'r"
per Gaurav Kumar Gupta

Partner

Ilembenhip Number: 5091 01

Place : Gurugram

D.te : 15 NIay 2025

3.53

1.03

3.37

0.99

For aod on behalf of the Board of Directors of
DI-F Home Developers Limited
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31

32

33

34

51

35

108,808.82

11,451.05

12251.03

1,953.17

23,322.35

157,7 .42

116,215.38

29,422.69

145,638.07

37,021.04

16,658.68

s3$8s.72

3,230.40

|,12634
16,851.57

a,ma.15
87,663.9t9\9s2.35

(28.48)

7.17

238.88

(4s.e8)

00.35)
2.63

410.42

171.s9 423.10

92,12r.94 88,087.08

/)-'-/
A.kash Ohri

Joint iUanaging Dircctor

DIN: 01987555

Deviader Singh

Managing Director

DIN:

PankajJain

Chief Financial Of6cer
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DLF Home Develope.s Limited
Regd. Office: 2nd Floor, .\riun Nfarg, DLF Shoppiog Ntell, DLF Citl , Phasel, DLF QE, Gurugrarn - 122002 A$ryrr, ), India.
CIN - U74899t{R1995PL(1082458, Wcbsite: *.*rr.dlf.inlDHDL
l el.t + 9 1 -1 24 - 433 4200, Fimail co4roreteeffairs@dlf in
Standalone Cash Flow Statement fo. the year ended 31 M.rch m25

Y€rrcdcd
31lt,..,{h2025

({ in r.kho

Ye.r cndcd
3l M.rch m24

(t b Lkhs)

A Cath flN froD oF.rtirg .ctivities
Proflt b€fore tax

Adiuslmcnt to rcconcilc profit bcforc .ax .o mt c..h [ows:
Depr€ciation and amorusztion espense

Prcfit on sale oE propeny, plant and equiprnent and in\esrmenr poptrty (neo

Interest iocome (including fair \alu€ chang€ in financial instrurn€ots)

Share of profrt from parmersh,p flms (neo

Unclaimed balances and excess prcusions *itten brk
Allovaoc€ / snte offs of financial ard rloo-finaflcial assets and proajsions (neD

Exceptional items

OF..tiDg pro6t bcfoE rio*iry cepit l ch.rgcs
Working crpit l rdiusheds:
Increase in rrad€ receiiables

Increase in inventories

Decease/(increrse) in other non-financial ass€ts

Decese/(increas€) in orher &nancial assets a.d Ioaos

Decease in other doacql liabilities

Increas€/(d€crcas€) in prodsions

If,creas€ in otber non-fi.af,cial liabilines

Increas€ /(decreas€) in tride payables

C.8h flow fiom oFrrtioffi rctiviti$ posr *,orkiry c.pit l chrDgcs
Idcooe ta-\es (pard)/retunded, ner

Nct c.sh f,ow gcncrr.cd fmm oFrrtirg activiti.s (A)

B C.8h flow fmm ift,cstiry rctiviti€g
Poceeds fiom sale of poperrl , plant and equipment ud inlestmnt property

Pmhu of poperty, plmt and equiprnent, in'estrnent pmpeny and intangible assets

Prcceeds from disposal/redemptlon of inrcstrylEnts

Purchase of inlestm€nrs
Inrestmnt of fixed deposr with maturity more than 3 months (neg

l.oans gi"en to subsidiafl€s (including parmership 6mg, assaciates, joint ventures a.d oth€rs

Irans repaid by subsldiaries (including partnership fims), associates, joint ventures and othen

Nct c.sh flow u3cd ir itrl,csting .caivitie (B)

C C.sh flow ftom finamiry rctivitieE
Proceeds from non-cuneot bono$.ings (iocluding current maturides)

Repalrnent of non-cunent borro\ings (i.cluding culrenr matuiiries)

(Repayment oQlprcceeds trcrn ctmnr bono$ings, ne'

Interest paid

Repa,'rnent of lease liabilities

NGt cmh Aow (us.d itr)/semntEd ftom turrciry rctiviti€i (C)

Nct (dccrcuc)/incrcr* in cr'h ad cash Gquivrknt (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equralents ar the beginning of the vear

Add: Cish and cash equitrlenrs rehring !o acquisitjon

Crsh .[rl c.sh cquiv.lerts .t yc.r crd

113,192.!t

u8,990. 109,983.5t

108,872.73145,638.07

1,951.17

08,9s6.r4)
12251.O3

(q,667.36)

(792.91)

04,014.7s)
1,616.30

Q9,422.69)

2,006.21

(4 3s)

10,090.11

Q8,2Os.22)
(511.1D

(330.23)

2,511.03

(30,041.40)

57,604.12 643%.n

Q,611.67)
(88,690.30)

(44,s97.1s)

(s,301.84

(10,249.O4

(294.3O)

206,129_20

Q80.2T)

(de7e.03)

(8,698.92)

11,971_13

67,742_19

(9,467.91)

174.66

48,961.78

3,665.07

n29t9,69
(43,988.71)

074.10)
8,781.18

(111,113.24)

(s425e.4E

(46,372.N)

77,903.79

29,744_43

6.83

018.70)
9,500.00

(35,689.51)

(98,039.00)

( 50,644.70)

132,143.57

23,134.85

59,800.78

(20,000.00)

55,270.30

(10,602.46)

(476.46)

(80,874.00)

00,820.72)
(478.99)

(92,173.71) 83,992.t6

(60,730.r7)

80,096.04

28.17

74,869.08

4,666.96

560.m
19J94.r)4 80,0!)6.04

E
a
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DLF Home Developers Limited
Regd. Of6ce: 2nd I.loor, A4un lilarg, DLF Shopping llall, DLF Cig, PhaseJ, DLF QE, Curugram - 122002 (Ll^r|zrL ),lnd1 .

CIN U748991 IR1995PLCo82458, N'ebsite: wwr,r'.dlf.inlDI{DL
Teli +91 124-4334200, Emait corpomteaffairs@dlfin
Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March m25

3l Mrrch 202s

(l ir lakhs)

NetE:
Componcnts ofc.sh and c.sh cquir.rh s coopris€s of:

Cash on hand (refer note 1 5)

Balances vith banks m curent accou.ts (refer ror€ 15)

D€posit \\ nh original rnaturity ofless than three months (refer nobe 15)

Totel ofcrsh ard c.sh €quivrk s

* O" accout of metger oiwhollv oMed subsidirries as per Ind As 1i)3 (ftfd note 56)

Material accountiog policies (refer note 2 & 3)

Th€ acconpanying florcs ,re an int€gral pan of dre standalone financiat statements

t9394.04

3rNbrch2024
(l itr hrdls)

148_24

Dcvintlcr Siryh
Managing Director

DIN:

0.32

7,956.50

1t,437 _22

0.42

3,947.48

ts per reporr of e\rn date

For S.R. B.diboi & Co. LI}
ICAI l'irm R%istntion Number: 301003E/E3000O5

Chafier€d Accoununts

For and onbehalfofthe Board of Directors of
DI,F Home Devclopcrs Limit d

0
pcr Geunv Itumer Gupta

Mernbership Number: 509101

Urtd

Pl2cc:Gunrgr n

Drtc : 15 M.y 2025

6tg
A.akrsh Ohri

Joint Nlanagiog Dnecbr
DIN:01987555

J"i" Nikit
ChiefFinmcral Offrcer Company
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DLF Home Developers Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 3l March 2025

1. Cotpotateinformation

DLF Home Developets Limited ("the Company") is engaged primarily in the business of colonisation aod teal estate
devdopment. The operations ofthe Companv span all aspects ofreal estate development, ftom the identiEcation and acquisition
of land, to planning, executioo, construction, and marketing of prciects. The Company is a public limited company domiciled
in India aod is incorpotated under the ptovisions of the Companies Act, 1956 applicable in India. Its debentutes ate listed on
recognised stock exchange in Iodia. The Compaoy's registered of6ce is situated at 2.d Floot, irjun Nlarg, DI-F Shopping N[all,
DLF Ciq, Phase-I, DLF QE, Gurugam, Har,vana 122002.

The standalone financial statements ('financial statemeots') fot the year ended 31 Nlarch 2025 were authorised aod approved by
the Board ofDitectors for issue on 15 X{av 2025.

2. Material accounting policies

Basis of pteparatioa

The Enancial statements of the Compaoy have been prepated in accordance with the Indiao Accouoting Standards Oeteinaftet
refered to as the 'Ind AS) as notiEed b,v Nlinisqv of Colporate Affairs (NICA) uoder Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
('.\ct) tead with the Companies (ndian Accounting Standads) Rules,2015, as ameoded ftom time to time and ptesentation
requirements of Division II of Schedule lII to the Compaflies Act,2013 (Ind AS compliant Schedule III), as applicable to the
financial staiements.

The Enancial statements have been prepared on a going concem basis in accordance with accounting ptinciples generally
accepted in India. Futther, the financial statements have been ptepared on histotical cost basis except fot certah Enancial assets

aod Enaocial liabilities which are measuted at fair r,alues as explained in televant accounting pol.icies. The changes in accounting
policies are explained in note 3 (z).

The financial statements are presented in Rupees and all values ate rouoded to the nearcst [ath, except when otherwise indicated.

3. Summary of matetial accouating policies

a) Curent and non-cutrent classification

The Companv presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on cuttent/non-cuttent classiEcatioo. An asset is treated
as curent urhen it is;

. Expected to be iealised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.

. Held primarily fot the putpose of tadiog.

. Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting petiod, ot

. Cash or cash equir.alent unless restdcted from beiog exchanged or used to setde a liabilitv fot at least twelve months aftel
the reporting petiod.

All othet assets ate classified as non-cutrent.

A liability is current when:

. It is expected to be settled in oormal operating q'cle.

. It is held primadly for the pqpose of trading.

. It is due to be settled within twelve months after the repoting pedod, or

. fhere is no unconditional right to defer the setdement of the habil.iry for at least twelve months after the repotting petiod.

The Companv classifies all other [abilities as non curent.

Defeted tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-cucent assets arrd liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and theit rcalisation in cash and cash equivalents.



DLF Home Developers Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 Match 2025

b) Property, plant and equipment

R cogrrilion arrd ;nirial rreafiiftmelt
Ploperti, plant and equipment at their initial recognition are stated at their cost of acquisirion. On ttansition to Ind AS, the
Companv had elected to measute all ofits properqv, plant and equipment at the prcvious G,L\P catrying value (deemed cost).
The cost comptises purchase price, borrowing cost, ifcapitalization criteria ate met and ditecdy atttibutable cost ofbringing the
asset to its working condition for tle intended use. An)' trade discount and rebates are deducted io atriving at the purchase pdce.
Subsequent costs ate included in the asset's carr,ving amount or recognised as a separate asset, as apptopriate, ooly when it is
prcbable that futute economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Companr'. IJihen significant parts of plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at inten'als, the Company depteciates them separately based on their speciEc usefrrl lives.
Iikewise, when a maiot inspection is pedormed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plaot and equipment as a
replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. ,\ll other rcpair and maintenance costs are recogoised in statement ofproflt
aqd loss as incurred. The Companv ideotifies and determines cost of each component/ patt of the asset separately, if the
component/ part have a cost which is signiEcant to the total cost of the asset and has usefrrl life that is matedally different from
that of the remaining asset,

Stbeqae meantnmett (depnciatioz a u{tl htet)
Property, plant and equipment are subsequend,v measured at cost net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Depreciation on propertv, plant and equipment is provided on a straight-lhe basis over the estimated usefrrl lives
of the assets as follows:

Asset category Usetul life
(in yeats)

Estimated useful life as pet Schedule II to
the Companies Act, 2013

(in veata)

Buildings

Plant and machinery

Computers aad data processing units

- Desktops, laptops aod other devices

Futninrre and Extures

OfEce equipment

Vehicles

10 20

5-15

60

15

3

5-10

5

8-10

3

10

5

8-10

The Compariy based on techaical assessment rnade by technical expert af,d managemeot estimate, d€pleciates certain items of
building, plant and machiaery and fumiture and fixtues ovet estimated usefrrl lives which ate diffetent ftom the usefirl life
prescdbed in Schedule II to the Companies ^\ct,2013. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic
and teflect fair approximation of tle period over which the assets are likely to be used.

The leasehold improvemeots ate depreciated ove! the lease tenn or life ofassets whichevet is less.

The residual values, usefirl lives and method of depreciation ate teviewed at the end of each financial year and adiusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

De-nngnitiol
,{n item of properry, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is de-rccognised upon disposal ot when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. ,\ny gain or loss arising on de-tecognitioo of the asset
(calculated as the difference betveefl the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement
ofprofit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

c) Capital work-in-prcgress and itrtaogible asseta under development

Capital wo* in progress and intangible assets under developmeat represents expenditue incutred in respect of capital
ptoiects/intangible assets under development and ate carded at cost less accumulated impairment loss, if any. Cost includes
land, related acquisition expenses, development/ construction costs, borowing costs (if the recognition cdteria are met) and
otler direct expenditure.



DLF Home Developers Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

d) Investrnent ptopeties

Recognitior, arrd ikitial rrre4t rerrrent

Investment propetties are properties held to eam reotals or for capital appreciation, ot both. Investrnent ptopetties are measuted
initially at thet cost of acquisitioo, hcluding tansaction costs. On ttansition to Ind AS, the Company had elected to measure
all ofits investment properties at the pterious G,L\P carn'ing value (deemed cost). The cost comprises purchase price, cost of
replacing parts, borrowing cost, if capitalization ctiteria are met and direcdy attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition for the intended use. Anv trade discount aod rebates ate deducted in aciving at the putchase pdce. V4ren significant
parts of the investmeot ProPertv are required to be replaced at iotervals, the Compaov depteciates them separate! based on
theit specific use6rl J.ives. AII other tepait and maintenance costs are recognised in statement ofprofit and loss as incurred.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as apprcpriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item u/ill flow to the Company. All other repat and maintenance
costs are recognised in statement of profit and loss as incurred.
Transfen are made to (or from) inves&nent propertv only when thete is a change in use. Fot a ttansfer from investment propetty
to owner occupied propert ', tie deemed cost fot subsequent accounting is the catq,ing value at the date of change in use.

Stbeq* meannmett (fupneiation and uefal bw)
Investment properties are subsequendy measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impatment losses, if
any, Depreciation on investrnent properies is provided on the staight-lioe method ovet the usefrrl lives ofthe assets as follows:

Asset category Estimated useful life as per Schedule II
to the Companies Act, Z)13

(in yeats)

Useful lifc
(h yeats)

Buildings

Plant and machinery

Fumitue and fixtwes

20

10

5

60

15

10

The Companv, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates cetain items of
buildings, plant and machinery and fumitue and Extures over estimated usefr lives which are differeot ftom the use6.rl life
prescribed in Schedule II to fte Companies -\ct,2013. The management believes that these estimated usefrrl lives are realistic
and teflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

The tesidual values, usefirl lives aod method of depreciation are rcviewed at the end of each financial pat and adjusted
ptospectively.

Though the Companv measutes investment ptoperty using cost-based measufement, ttre fair value of investment property is

disclosed in the notes. Fair values are determined based oo an annual er.aluation petformed by an accredited extemal independent
valuer apphing valuation model acceptable intemationallv.

De-nagrition
Investment properties are derecognised eithet when they have been disposed of or when thev are permanendy rdthdrav'n from
use aod no future economic benefit is erpected from their disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset is recogrused in the statement of proEt and loss in the period of de-recog:rition.

e) Intangible assets

R$oglitiol ahd i,ritial rre4trleme

Intangble assets acquired sepaiatel)- are measuted on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangrble assets acqufued in a
business combination is dret fair value at the date of acquisition. On transition to Ind AS, the Company had elected to measute
all of its intangrble assets at the previous G-L{P cattr"ing value (deemed cost). The cost comprises purchase price, borowing
cost (if capitalization ctitetia are met) and direcd,v attdbutable cost of bringing the asset to its wolking condition for the intended
use. Intemalll generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditue is
reflected in the statement ofprofit and loss io the peliod in which the expenditute is incurred.



DLF Home Develope$ Limited
Notes to the standalone linancial statements for the yeat ended 31 March 2025

Srbtequerrt meatunmenl (anoniJaliot)
Following initial tecognition, intangible assets aie ca$ied at cost less accumulated arnortisation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

The cost of capitalized soft'lzre is amortized over a period of 3 ;-ears from the date ofits acquisition.

D*ncogtitiol
Gains ot losses arising from de-tecogmtion of an intangible asset ate measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amouot of the asset and are recognised in the statement of ptofit and loss when the asset is
derecognised.

f) Investrnent in subsidiaries, associates, ioint veatutea and pattnership fitms

Investment in equitv iostruments of subsidiaries, ioint ventutes and associates are stated at cost as per Ind AS 27 'Sepatate
Financial Statements'. \Yy'here the carrying amount of an investmeot is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is assessed
for recovetabilitl and in case of permanent diminution provision fot impairment is tecorded in staternent ofProfit and Loss.
On disposal of investrnent, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is charged or credited to
the Stetement of ProEt and Loss.

g) Business Combiaations

The Company applies dre acquisition method in accounting fot business combinations fot the businesses which are not under
colnmon contlol. The cost ofao acquisition is measuted as the aggtegate of the considemtion tmnsferred measured at acquisition
date fair value aod the emount of any non contolling interests in the acqufuee. For each busioess combinatioa, the Company
elects whether to measure dre non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree's
identiEable net assets. Acquisitioo-related costs ate expensed as incurted.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired, aod the liabilities assuined are tecognised at their acquisition date fair
values. Fot this purpose, the liabilities assumed ioclude contingent liabilities representing present obligation and they are
measuted at theit acquisition fait values ittespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodytg economic bene6ts is not
probable. However, dre following assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination ate measured at the basis indicated
below:

,)

b)

.)

Deferted tax assets ot liabilities, aod the assets or liabilities related to emplo,vee benefit artangements ate recognised and
measured in accordance v/ith Iod AS 12 'Income Tax' and Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits' respectively.
Potential tax effects oftemporary differences aod carry forwards ofan acquiree that exist at the acquisition date ot arise as

a result of the acquisition are accouoted in accotdance with Ind AS 12 'Iocome Tax'.
Liabilities or equiqv instruments telated to share based palrnent arrangements of the acquiree or share - based payments
artangements of the Company entered into to replace shate-based pa]'meot a$angements of the acquirce ate measuted io
accotdance witi Ind AS 102'Shate-based Pa,'ments'at the acquisition date.

-{ssets (or disposal groups) that are dassified as held for sate in accoldance $/ith Ind AS 105 'Non-cuttent Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Opetatioos' are measured h accordance {rrh that standard.
Reacquked tights ate measuted at a value determined on the basis of the remainiflg contractual term of the related con&act.
Such valuation does not consider poteotial rene*zl of the reacquircd right.

d)

e)

Anv contingent consideration to be transfetred by the acquiret is recogoised at fair value at dre acquisitioo date. Contingent
considetation classiEed as an asset or liabiliW drat is a Enancial instrumeflt and v'ithin the scope of Iod AS 109 'Financial
Instruments', is measrued at fair value with changes in fait va.lue recognised in statement of profit and loss. If the contingent
consideration is not within the scope of Ind AS 109 'Financial Instuments', it is measuted io accotdance rldth the appropdate
Iod AS. Cootingent consideration drat is classified as equitv is not re-measured at subsequent repoting dates and its subsequent
settlemenr is accounted for within equiry.

\t(ihen the Company acquites a business, it assesses the Enancial assets and liabilities assumed for apptopriate classification and
designation in accordance with the conttactual terms, economic circumstances, and pertinent conditions as at the acquisiiion
date.

If t}re business combination is achieved in stages, any ptevious\ held equitv intercst is re-measurcd at its acquisition date fait
value and anv resulting gairl or loss is recognised in statement of ptoit aod loss or OCI, as apptopdate.
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If the initial accounting for a business combioation is incomplete b,v the end of the teporting period in which the combination
occurs, the Company teports ptovisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional
amounts ate adiusted thtough additional assets ot liabilities ate recognised, to reflect oew information obtained about facts and
citcunstaoces that existed at the acquisition date that, ifknonm, would have affected the amounts recognized at that date. These
adjustmeots are called as measutemeot period adiustments. The measurement period does not exceed one year from the
acquisition date.

Butiaess combirratiottt lrrdet eorrrrron eobtto/

Business combinations involviag entities or businesses undet common control have beeo accouoted for using the pooling of
interest method. The assets and liabilities of the combining entities ate teflected at thet carrying amounts. No adjustments have
been made to reflect fair values, or to tecognise an1' new assets or liabilities.

Asa acqriitioas atd bsriieii mubi,tationt
Whete asset is acquited, via colporate acquisitions or otherwise, management considets the subsance of tlre assets and activities
of the acquired entiq in determioing whether the acquisition tepteseots the acquisition of a busioess.

\0(trete such acquisitions are not judged to be ao acquisition ofa business, the,v are not fteated as business cornbinations. Ratler,
the cost to acquirc the colpotate entity or assets and Iiabilities is allocated between the identifiable assets and liabilities (of the
entiq) based on thei telative fait values at the acquisirion date. Accordingly, no goodwill or defered tax arises.

h) Inventories

Land and plots other dran atea ttansfeted to coostructed properties at the commencement of constmction are valued at
lowet of cost/ as re-valued on corvelsion to stock and net realisable value. Cost indudes land (inctuding development
rights and land under agreement to putchase) acquisition cost, bottowiog cost if inventodsation criteria are met, estimated
intemal development costs and extemal development chatges and othet ditecdy attributable costs.

Construction work-in-progress of constructed ptopeties othet than Special Ecooomic Zote (SEZ) projects includes the
cost of Iand (including development rights and land under agreements to puchase), intemal development costs, extemal
development chatges, construction costs, ovetheads, borrowing cost if inventodsation cdteria are met, development/
consttuctioo matetials aod is valued at lowet of cost/estimated cost and net realisable value.

o

n

n Development rights represent amouot paid urder agreement to putchase land/development tights aad borov'ing cost
incurred by the Company to acquire itrevocable and exclusive licenses/development rights in identified land and
coostructed ptoperties, the acquisitioo ofwhich is eithet completed or is at ao advenced stage. These are valued at lower of
cost end net lerliseble velue.

Construction/development matedal is valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises of purchase ptice
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to thet present location aod condition.

. Stocks fot maintenance facilities (including stores and spates) are valued at cost or net tealisable value, whichever is lowet.

Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the otdinary couse of business less estimated costs of completioo and
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

i) Revenue ftom contact or seryices with customer and odrer stre,rms of revenue

n

Reveoue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or sewices are transfered to tlrc customer at
an amount that reflects the consideation to which the Companv expects to be entided in exchange for those goods or services.
The Companv has genera.llv concluded that it is the principal in its tevenue arrangements because it qpicatl,v clntols the goods
and sen'ices before transferting them to the customers.

The disclosutes of signiEcant accounting judgemeots, estimates and assumptions relating to revenue fiom coflttacts qTith

cusromers are provided in note 3 (aa).
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i. Revenue ftom Contacts with Customets:

Reveoue is measured ar the fair value of the coosideration teceived/receivable, taking into account contractually defined tetms
of paynent and excluding taxes ot duties collected on behalf of the govemment aod is net of rebates and discounts. The
Companv assesses its revenue artangements against specific cdtetia to determine ifit is acting as principal ot agent. The Compaoy
has conduded that it is acting as a pdncipal in all of its tevenue armngements.

Reveaue is tecognised in the statement of pro6t and loss to the extent that it is probable that the ecooomic benefits will flow to
the Companl'and tie rer.enue and costs, if applicable, can be measuted tel.iabl,v.

The Companv has applied five step model as per Ind AS 115 'Revenue ftom co[tracts with customec'to recognise revenue in
the Enaocial statements. The Company satisEes a performance obligation and recognises fevenue over time, if one of the
following cdteria is met:

a) The customet simultaneousk receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company's performance as the Compaoy

Petfoms; or
b) The Companfs perfotmance cteates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or
c) The Companv's performance does not cteate an asset with an altemative use to the Company and the entity has an enfotceable
right to pal"rnent for perfomance completed to date.

For petfotmance obLigations where anv of the above conditions are not met, levenue is recognised at the point in time at which
the petfomunce obligation is satisfied.

Revenue is tecogrused either at Point of time ot ovet a period of time based on various conditions as included in the contracts
with customers.

Poiat of Time:

Revenue ftom teal-estate oroiects

Revenue is tecogntsed at the Point in Time w.r.t. sale of real estate rmits, including land, plots, apartments, commetcial urits,
development rights including development agteements as and wheo the control passes oo to the customer upon completion of
performance obligrtions and intimation to the customers theteof.

lncremental cost of obtainine contact

The incremental cost of obtaining a coottact with a customer is tecognised as an asset if companv expects to recover those costs
subiect to othet conditions of the standard are met. These costs are chatged to statement of proEt and loss in accotdance v,ith
the ttansfer of tlre properq' to the customer.

Over a period of timc:
Revenue is recognised ovet period of time for folloving stream of revenues:

Cons truction ald Et-out oroiects

Construction and 6tout proiects whete tle Compaoy is acting as contracto!, revenue is tecognised in accordance with the terms
of the coosttuctioo agteements. Under such contracts, assets crcated does oot have an altemative use and the Company has an
enfotceable right to pa)'meot. The estimated proiect cost inctudes construction cost, development and construction material and
orerhead of such project.

The Companv uses cost-based input method for measuting progress fot performance obligation satisfied over time. Under this
method, the Companv tecognises revmue in proportion to the actual ptoject cost incured as against the total estimared plotect
cost. The managem€nt reviews and tevises its measure of progtess pedodically and ate considered as change ia estimates and
accotdingl,r', the effect of such changes in estimates is recognised prospectivd,v io the period in which such changes are
determined. Howerct, when the total ptoiect cost is estimated to exceed total rcvenue ftom the project, the loss is recognised
immediately.

As the outcome of the contacts canriot be measuted reliablv during the ear\ stages of the prorect, contract levenue is
recogoised only to the extent of cost incurred in the statement of ptofit and toss.
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Reveoue from co-develooment oroiects

Co-development ptoiects u/here the Company is acting as contlactor, revenue is rccognised in accordance with the terms of the
co_developer agteemeots. Under such contracts, assets created does not have an altemative use fot the Company and the
Companv has an enfotceable right to payment. The estimated proiect cost iricludes constructioo cost, development and
construction material, iotemal development cost, extemal development chatges, borrowing cost and overheads of such proiect.

The estimates of the saleable atea and costs ate reviewed periodicallv and effect of anv changes in such estimates is recognized
in the period such changes are detettnined. However, when the total project cost is estioated to exceed total tevenues from the
project, the loss is recogruzed immediately.

Rental and maintenance incorne

Revenue in tespect of teutal aod maintenance services is recognised on an accrual basis, in accordance with the terms of the
respect-ive coflttact as and when the Company satisfies petformance obligations by delivering the services as per contractual
agteed tetms.

Other ooeratins income

Income from forfeiture of popenies and iotelest from baohs and customers under agreements to sell is accounted for on an
accrual basis excepl in cases o,here ultimate collection is considered doubtfrrl.

ii. Volume rebates and earlv pavmetrt rebates

The Company provides move ifl rcbates / eady payment tebates/ down payrnent rebates to the custornen. Rebates are offset
against amourts palable by the customer and tevenue to be recognised. To estimate the vatiable considetation for the expected
future rebates, the Company estimates the expected value of rcbates that are Likely to be incurred in future aod tecognises the
rcvenue net ofrebates aod tecognises the refund lrabiliqv for expected future rebates.

iii. Contact balances

Corrttuct a$etr
A contract asset is the right to considetation in exchange for goods or services transfered to the customer. If the Companv
perfotms by tansfedog goods o! services to a customer beforc the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a
contract asset is recognised for tlre eamed considetation tlrat is conditional.

Trude naiaabbt
A receirable represents the Company's dght to an amount of consideration that is uncooditional (i,e., only the passage of tirne
is required before pagnent of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of finaacial assets in note 3(t) Fioancial
instnrments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Coataa liahltiet
A contact liability is the obligation to transfet goods ot services to a customer for which the Compaoy has received considetation
(ot an amormt ofconsidetation is due) from the customet. Ifa customer pa,vs consideration bifore the Companv tnnsfets goods
ot services to the customer, a contact liabiLitv is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whicher.et is
eadier). Contract liabilities are rccognised as revenue when the Compan)' performs under the conttact

i) Cost of revenue

Co$ of ftal ertate pnj.ctr
Cost of consftucted properties other than SEZ projects, includes cost ofland (including cost of development dghts/land under
agrcements to purchase), estimated intemal development costs, extemal devdopment charges, borrowing costs, overheads,
construction costs and development/coostruction matetials, which is charged to the staterneflt ofpro6t and loss based on the
revenue rccognized as explained in accor.rnting polic,v for revenue from tea.l estate proiects above, in consonance with the concept
of matchiog costs and revenue. Final adjustment is made oo completion of the speciEc project.

Cott of land a pbtt
Cost of land and plots includes land (including development rights), acquisition cost, estimated iatemal development costs and
extemal development charges, which is charged to the statemeot ofpro6t and loss based on the percentage ofland/plotted area
in respect of which tevenue is recognised as explained in accounting policy fot rcvenue from 'Sale of tand and plots', in
consonance with the concept of cost and revenue. Finel adjustment is made oo completion of the
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Cor, of @-dateloprre t pmjectr

Cost of consttucted ptoperties includes estimated intemal development costs, extemal development charges, overheads,
bottowing cost, construction costs aod development/construction materials, which is charged to the statement of pro6t and
loss based on dre revenue recognized as explained in accounting policy for revenue from Co-development ptojects above, in
consonance with the concept of matching costs and feveflue. Final adjustment is made on completion of tlle speciEc project.

Co$ of dawhpnerrt ighrr
Cost of development rights includes proportionate development rights cost, borrowing costs and other telated cost, which is
charged to statement of profit alrd loss as explained in accouoting policy for revenue, io consonance with the concept of
matching cost and tevenue.

k) Bottowiug costs

Botowing costs ditecd,v atttibutable to the acquisition and/ot construction/production of an asset that necessadlv takes a

substantial pedod of time to get read)' for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other
borowing costs ate charged to the statement ofptofit and loss as incurred. Borowing costs consist ofinterest afld other costs
that the Company incurs in connection with the bottowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange diffetences to the
extent regarded as an adiustmeot to the borrowing costs.

l) Taxes

o

Current income tax

Tax expeose tecognized in statement of profit and loss cornprises the sum of deferred tax and cuttent tax except the ones
tecognized io other comptehensive income or diecdy in equitv.

Curent income tax assets afld liabilities ate measuted at the amount expected to be recovered ftom ot paid to the taxatiofl
authotities. Current tax is detemrined as the tax payable in tespect of taxable iocome for the year and is computed io accordance
with releva t tax regulations. Cuttent income tax relating to items recognised outside statement of pro6t and loss is recognized
outside profit ot loss (either in otiet comptehensive income or in equity). Current tax items arc lecogoised io corelation to the
rmdedying ttansaction eithet in OCI ot ditecdy in equity. Nlanagemeot periodically evaluates posirions taken h the tax teturns
vrith respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to intetpretation aod establishes provisions where
aPP!opdate.

In the situations where one or mote units/undertaking in the Company are eotided to a tax holida,v under the Income-tax Act,
1961, no deferred tax (asset or liabiliq) is recognized in respect of tempoaty diffetences urhich tevene dudng the tax hoLiday
pedod, to dre extent the concemed entitl's gtoss total income is subject to the deduction during the tax holiday petiod, Deferred
tax io tespect of temporan' differences which tevetse after dre tax holiday petiod is tecognized in the year in which the tempotary
differences originate. However, the Companv restricts recognition of defered tax assets to the extent it is probable that sufEcient
futue taxable income will be availabte against which such defered tax assets can be rcalized. Fot recognition of defetted taxes,
the temponry' differences which originate first are considered to reverse fust.

Defered tax

Defetred tax is provided using the liabiliqv method on temporaw differences berrveen the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
th& carrying amounts for Enancial repotting purposes at the tepoting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recogmsed fot a.ll taxable ternporary differences, except:

Io respect of taxable temPorary diffetences associated with investrnents io subsidiaries, associates atrd interests in joint
v€ntures, when the timing of the revetsal of the temporan differences can be conftolled and it is ptobable that the temporary
differences will not tevetse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets ate recognised fot all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax ctedits and aoy
unused tax losses. Deferied tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable ptoEt will be available against
which the deductible tempotary differences and the car+'forward of uoused tax credits and uoused tax losses can be utilised.

The caql'ing amount of deferted tax assets is teviewed at each reportiog date and teduced to the extent that it is no longet
probable that suf6cient taxable profit u/ill be available to allow
deferred tax assets ate te-assessed at each reporting date and are
taxable pro6ts will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

all or pat of the defered tax asset to be utiLised. U
tecognised to the extent that it has become

nrecognised
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to appty in the year when the asset is tealised
or the liabiliS' is setded, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substant.ivel,v enacted at dre reporting date.

Deferted tax relating to items tecognised outside statemeot ofprofit and loss is recognised outside profit or toss (either in other
comptehensive income ot in equitr). Deferred tax iterns ate recognised in corelatioo to the underlying Eaosaction eithet in OCI
ot direcdy in equitv.

Deferred tax assets and defetred tax LiabiLities ate offset if a legally enfolceable right exists to set off curtent tax assets againsr
curreot tax liabilities and the deferred taxes felate to the same taxable eotiq' and the same taxation authority.

Goods and sewices tax (GST) / othet inditect taxes paid oa acquisition ofassets or oa incuring expenses.

Expenses and assets are tecognised net of the amount ofGST / other indirect taxes, except:
. When the tax incurted on a putchase of assets or sen'ices is not recoverable ftorn the taxation authority, in which case, the

tax paid is recognised as patt of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable.

. S/hen receivables and payables ate stated n'ith the amount oftax included

The net arnount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authotity is induded as part of teceivables or payables in
fhe balance sheet-

m) Foreigtr curency tansactions

Fnctional atd pnvntation crmtry
The Enancial statements are ptesented in Indian Rupees ({) which is also the functional and preseotation curency of the
Compaoy.

Truuadiow atd batauet
Foteign curleocy ttansactions ate tecotded in dre functional currency, by applying the exchange tate between dre firnctional
cutrency and the foreigp currenc_v at the date of the transaction.

Foteign cutrencv oonetary items outstanding at the balance sheet date ale cooverted to hnctional cuuency using the closing
rate. Non-monetat)' items denominated in a fotergn currency which are carried at historical cost ate reported using the exchange
rate at the date of the ttansacdons.

Exchange differences arising on setdement ofmonetary items, or restatement as at ieporting date, at rates diffetent ftom those
at which thev wete initially tecorded, are recognized in the staternent of ptoEt and loss in the veat in which the,v arise.

n) Retirement and othet employee benefits

Pmtiden Fud
Retirement benefit in the fotm of provident fund is a de6ned beoeEt scheme. The Company makes contributioq to stzturory
Ptovideot firnd trust set up in accordance with the Emplo,vees' Ptovideot Funds and Nliscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952. The
Company has to meet the interest shortfall, if anv. Accordingl,v, the contribution paid or payable and the interest shortfall, if
any, is tecogrused as an expense in the pedod in which services ate rcndered by the emplo).ee, If the contribution payable to the
scheme fot service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contdbution already paid, the deficit pavable to the scheme
is recognized as a liability after deducting the contibution alteadv paid. Ifthe contribution already paid exceeds the conttibution
due for services rcceived before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre palrment
will lead to, for example, a reduction in future pawnent ot a cash refund.

CldrsiA
Gratuiqv is Post-emplolynent beneEt and is in the natue of a de6ned benefit plan. The liability rccognised in the financial
statemedts ir tespect of gratuiq' is the present value of the defined benefit/ obligation at the tepoting date, togethet with
adiustments fot uotecognised actuarial gains or losses and past service costs. The defined beneEt/obligation is calculated at or
near the lePorting date bv an independeot actuarv using the projected unit ctedit method. This is based on standard rates of
ioflation, salan gowth rate and mottalitv. Discount factors are determioed close to each year-end by reference to oatket iietds
on govemment bonds that have terms to matudty apptoximating the terms of the lelated liabilitl. Service cost and net interest
expense on the Cornpany's defmed beneEt plan is hcluded in statement of profit and loss. Actuadal gains/losses resulting ftom
re-measutements of the tiability ate included in othet compreheosive income ill the period io which they
teclassified to statement ofpto6t and loss in subsequent petiods.

occu! and are flot
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Actuatial gains and losses adsing ftom past experience and changes in actuarial assumptions ate charged to statement of pro6t
and loss in the year io which such gains or losses are detetmined.

S b o rt -htt e np loy e b e z ef t t
Expense in tespect of shott-term benefits is tecogoised on the basis of the amount paid or parzble fot the period during which
services ate tendered by the employee. Contribution made towards superarmuation furrd (funded by paymeots to Life Insurance
Cotpotation of India) is charged to statement ofpto6t and loss on acctual basis.

Impeirment of non-financial assets

At each teporting date, the Company assesses whettrer drere is ao,v indicatioo based of, intemal/extemal factors, that an asset
may be impaied. If anv such indication exists, the Company estimates dre recovetable arnount of the asset. An asset's recoverable
amou{rt is the higher of an asset's or cash-generatiog unit's (CGU) fai' lzlue less costs of disposal and its value h use.
Recovetable amount is detetmined fot an individual asset, uoless the asset does oot generate cash inflows that ate largely
independent of those from othet assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amormt, the asset is consideled impaited and is written down to its rccoveable amount and the impairment loss,
including impairment on inventoties, is tecogmsed in the statement ofprofit and loss.

In assessing value in use, the estimated futute cash flows ate discounted to theit present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects cutent maiket assessmeflts ofthe time value of money and the risks speciEc to the asset. In detetrnining fair value less
costs of disposal, recent market ttansactions are taken into account. If oo such transactioos can be identiEed, an appropriate
valuation model is used. These calculations are corobotated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded
codpanies ot other available fait r,alue indicators.

The Company bases its impaiment calctrlation on detailed budgets and forecast calculation. These budgets and fotecast
calculations genenlly cover a petiod of 6r'e years. For longer petiods, a long-term gror*th rate is calculated and applied to ptoject
futute cash flows after the fifth year.

I( at the reporting date thete is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no long€r exists, the recoverable amount
is reassessed, and the asset is reflected at the tecoverable amount. Impaitment losses previously recognized ate accordiogly
teversed in the statement of ptofit aod loss,

o) Cash atrd cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-teffi deposits with an orignal
matudty of three months or less, which are subject to an insignifrcaot risk of changes in value.

Fot the pulpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivaleots cotrsist of uorestticted cash aod short-term deposits,
as de6ned above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are consideted an integtal pat of the Company's cash management.

p) Cash dividend and non-cash distribution to equity holdes

The Company recognises a liabilitv to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity holders vhen the distribution is authotised,
and the distribution is no longer at the disctetion ofthe Company. As pet the cotporate laws in India, a disttibution is authodsed
when it is approved b1, the shareholdets. A correspooding amount is lecogrised directl,v in equity.

Non-cash disttibutions ate measuted at the fair value of the assets to be distdbuted with fair ralue te-measurement tecognised
direcd,v in equiq'.

C o rrpe r, ! a t e d a b re h ce J
Liabilitr in respect of compeosated absences becoming due or expected to be availed within one ].ear from the balance sheet
date is recognised on the basis of discouoted value of estimated amount required to be paid ot estimated vatue of benefit
expected to be availed by the employees. Liabilitv in tespect of compensated abseoces becoming due or expected to be availed
mote tltan one lca! aftet the balance sheet date is estimated on the basis ofa1t actuarial valuation petformed by an independent
actua4' using the ploiected unit crcdit method.

Upon distdbution of non-cash assets, any difference between the cartfng
the assets distributed is tecognised in the statemedt ofproflt and loss.

amount of the liabilin and the car4'ing amouat of
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q) Ptovisions, coatingent assete, and contiagent liabilities

V/hen the Company expects some or all of a provision to be teimbursed, the reirnbursement is recognised as a separate asset,
but ooly when the reimbursement is vittually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of pto6t
aod loss net of any reimbutsement.

Orrctous corTltacts

If the Company has a conttact drat is onerous, the present obligation undei the contract is recognised and measured as a
ptovision. However, before a separate ptovision for an onerous coottact is established, the Company recognises anv impaitment
loss that has occurred on assets dedicated to that conttact.

An onerous contract is a contract under which dre unavoidable costs (i.e., the costs that the Compaay cannot avoid because it
has the contract) of meeting the obligations rmder the contract exceed dre economic benefits expected to be rcceived undet it.
The unavoidable costs undet a contact reflect the least net cost of exiting from tlle conftact, v/hich is f}le lower of the cost of
frrlfilling it and any compensation or penalties arising ftom failure to fr.r[6] it.

These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to teflect the curreot best estimates.

Cootingent tiability is disclosed for:

o Possible obligations which will be coofirmed onl,v by futute events not wholly within the control of the Compaay or
o Present obligations arising ftom past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be rcquired to setde

the obligatioo or a teliable estimate of the amount ofthe obligation caflnot be made.

Contingent assets ate neithet tecognised nor disclosed except when rcaLisation of income is virtually certain, telated asset is
disclosed.

Provisions ate recognized onlv when thete is a present obligation (egal or constructive), as a result of past events, aod it is
ptobable that an outflow oftesoutces embodving economic benefits will be tequired to settle the obligation and when a teliable
estimate ofdre amouot of obligation can be made at the reporting date. Provisions are discounted to thet ptesent lzlues, where
the time value of monev is material, using a curient pre-tax tate that reflects, when approptiate, the dsks specific to the liabilitv.
When discounting is used, the inctease in the ptovision due to the passage of time is recogorsed as a finance cost.

t) Leases

The Company assesses at con&act inception whetlet a contact is, or cootains, a lease. That is, if the contract cooveys the dght
to conftol the use of an identified asset for a pedod of time in exchange fot consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement apptoach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets. The Companv recognises lease liabilities to make lease pavments and dght of-use assets representing the dght
to use the wrderhing assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Companv tecognises dght of-use assets at the commencemeot date of the lease (i.e., rhe date the underlying asset is available
fot use) Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less anv accumulated depreciation and impairment losses anJ adjusted fot any
remeasutement oflease liabilities, The cost of right of-use assets includes the amount oflease liabilities recognised, initial dfueci
costs incuted, and lease pa)'ments made at ot before t}re commencement date less any lease incentives rcceived. fught of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight line basis ovet the lease tetm as follo*s:

Asset category Lease tenn
Land and Building 03-16 vears

If ownership of the leased asset tradsfe$ to the Company at the eod of the lease term or the cost rcflects the exercrse of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

The right-of-use
finaqcial assets.

assets are also subiect to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in note 3(o) on ofnon-
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Lease liatrilities

-\t the commencement date of the lease, the Companv recognises lease liabilities measured at the presect value oflease pa!'ments
to be made over the lease term. The lease pagnents include 6xed payments (including in substance fixed payrnents) less any
lease incentives teceivable, vatiable lease paynents that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under
tesidual rzlue gualantees. The lease payments also include the exercise ptice of a purchase option reasonably certain to be
exetcised by the Company end payments ofpenalties for terminating the lease, if dre lease term teflects the Companl' exercising
the option to terminate. \'atiable lease pa)'meots tlat do oot depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expeoses in tle
period in which the event or cofldition that triggers the payrnent occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease pa1'ments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not teadily determhable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to teflect the accretion of interest and teduced for the lease pa)'ments made. In addition, the carying
amount of lease ltabi]ities is remeasued if thete is a modification, a change io the lease term, a change in the lease paynents
(e.g., changes to future payments tesulting from a change in an index or tate used to detemine such lease paymeots) ot a change
in the assessment of an option to purchase the under$ng asset.

Short-term leases and leases oflow-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e. those leases that have a lease term
of 12 mooths or less ftom fhe commencernent date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease oflow-value
assets rccognlhon exemption to leases of certain assets that are considered to be low value, Lease palrnents on short tefm leases
and leases of low value assets are recognised as expense on a straighr-lioe basis ovet the lease term.

Company as a lessot

I-eases in which the Company does not ttansfer substantially all the risks and rewatds of ownership of an asset are classified as

operating leases. Rental income from opetating lease is recognised on a srraight-line basis ovet the tetm of t]re televaat lease.
Initial direct costs incured in oegotiatiog and arranging an operating lease ate added to the carryiag amount of the leased asset
and recognised over the lease tetm oo the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are tecognised as revenue in the period
in which they are eamed. Fit-out rental incorne is tecognised in dre statement ofprofit and loss on acctual basis.

Leases ate classified as Enance leases when substantially a.ll of the risks and rewatds of ownetship transfer from the Company
to the lessee. ,{mounts due from lessees under finance leases are tecolded as receivables at the Compaoy's oet investmeflt itr dle
leases. Finance lease income is a.llocated to accounting pedods so as to reflect a constaflt peliodic rate of retum on the net
investmeflt outstanding in tespect of t}le lease.

s) Financialinstruments

A financial hsttument is any cortract that lives lise to a financial asset of one entitv and a financial liability or equiry instrument
of another entitr..

1) Financial assets

Initial nagtition atd meattnme
Fioancial assets are classified, at initial tecognition, as subsequendy measured at amotised cost, fair value thtough other
comptehensive iacome (OCI), and fair value through pro6t and loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the Enaocial asset's conftactual cash flow charactedstics
and the Companv's business model for managiry them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a sigd6cant
fioaocing component ot fot which the Company has applied the practical expedient, the Company initidly measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through pro6t and [oss, net of transaction costs. Ttade
receivables that do not contain a significaot financing compooent or for which the Companv has applied the practical expedient
ate measuted at the tansaction price detetmined under Ind AS 115. Refer to the accounting policies io section 3(i) "Revenue
from conttacts with customers".

In otdet for a financial asset to be classiEed and measured at amortised cost or fait 1alue thtough OCI, it needs to give lise to
cash flows that are 'solely Pa\nnents of pdncipal and interest (SPP!' oo the principal amouflt outstanding. This assessment is
referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level.

The Companr''s business model
cash flouzs. The business model
financial assets, or both.

for managing Enancial assets refe$ to how it manages ils financial assets in otder to genetate
detetmiaes cash flows will result ftom collecting contnctual cash the



ii. Investmeltts in equity instuments of subsidiariea, loint ventures and associates - Investrnents in equity instruments
of subsidiades, joint ventures and associates are accounted for at cost in accordance with Ind AS 27 Separa* Fiuncial
Stateme r.
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S s b r c q, e h t rl e af. le m e n I

i. Financial ingtuments cattied at amortised cost - the Enancial instrument is measured at the amortised cost if both the
following conditions are met

o The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flours, and
. Contactual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and

interest (SPP! on the priocipal amount outstanding.

Aftet ioitial measutement, such financial assets are subsequendv measured at amortised cost using tie effective interest rare

@IR) method.

iii. Investtnents in othet insruments - Investments in equitl hstmments which are held for tradiog are classiEed as at fait
value through profit and toss (FVTPL). For all other instruments, the Companv makes an irevocable choice upoo initial
recognition, on an instrument-by-instrument basis, to classi.E the same either as at fair value thtough other comprehensive
income (FVOCI) or fair value thrcugh pto6t aad loss f\rTPL). Amounts preseoted in other comprehensive income are
not subsequendy transfered to pro6t and loss. However, the Companv transfets t}le cumulative gain or loss within equity.
Dividends on such investments are recognised in staternent ofpro6t arrd loss unless the dividend cleatly teptesents a recovery
ofpart of the cost of the investrnent.

iv, Itrvestrneats in mutual fuads - Investments in mutual funds are measured at fat value through ptofit and loss FVTPL).

Fait value changes on instruments measured at FVTPL is recoguised in the staternelt of ptofit and loss uoless the Company
has elected to measute such hstlumeflt at FVOCI. Fair value changes on instruments measured at FVOCI ate tecognised in
OCI. Amormt rccognised in OCI aie not subsequendy reclassiEed to statemeot ofpro6t aad loss.

De-nmgnitiot qffaauial arett
A Enaocial asset (or, whele applicable, a p t of a Enancial asset or part of a gtoup of similar financial assets) is pdrnarily
derecognised (i.e. removed ftom the Company's balance sheet) when:

. The dghts to receive cash flows from the asset have expted, or
' The Companv has transfered its dghts to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received

cash flows in fi:ll without matedal delav to a third party under a 'pass-tluough' arrangemeng and eithet (a) the Company has
tuansfetred substantialll. all the risks and rewards of the asset, or @) the Companv has neither transfetred nor retained
substantiall,v all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has traosferred control of the asset.

Continuing invoh'ement that takes the form of a guatantee over the transfetted asset is measuted at the lowet of the original
carq'ing amount ofthe asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be tequired to repay.

Impairment of linancial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurcmeot and recognition of
impaitment loss for financial assets.

ECL is the weighted average of difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows tlat the Compaly expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest tate, with
the respective risks of default occurring as t}re weights. VThen estimating the cash flows, the Company is required to consider -
. -\[l contractual tetrns of the financial assets (indudiog ptepayment and extension) over the expected life of the assets.
o Cash flows from the sale of collateral held ot other credit enhancements that are integral to tle contractual terms.

Tmde nceiubht
In respect of tade receivables, the Company applies the simpliEed approach of Ind AS 109, which
loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are
that tesult from all possible default events over the expected life ofa financial instrument.

requires measurement of
the expected ctedit losses
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Otherfunciat awtt
In tespect of its othet Enancial assets, the Company assesses if the credit tisk on those Enencial assets has incteased significantly
since initial tecognition. If the cedit tisk has not incteased signiEcand,v since initial recognition, the Company measutes the loss
allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected ctedit losses, else at ao amormt equal to the Jifetime expected credit losses.

\\heo making this assessment, the Companv uses dre change in the risk of a default occuting over the expected life of the
financial asset. To make that assessment, the Company compares the tisk of a default occutring on the Enancial asset as at the
balance sheet date with the dsk of a default occuring on the Enancial asset as at the date of initial tecognition and considets
teasonable and supportable infotmation, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant iocreases
io credit dsk since initial recognition. The Cornpany assumes that the ctedit lisk on a financial asset has not incriased significantty
since initial recognition if the finaocial asset is determined to have low ctedit dsk at the balaoce sheer date.

2) Non-detivative financiat liabilities

Iaitial ncogttition atd neaturete
-{ll financial liabiliries ate tecognised inirially at fair value and, in the case ofloans aod borowings and payables, net of directlv
attdbutable transaction costs.

The Companv's Enancial liabilities include ttade and ot]ret payables, securiqv deposits, loans and bortowings and otlet Enancial
liabilities including bank ovetdrafts and finaocial gualantee codracts.

S breqaelt rrea n tent
Subsequent to initial recognition, the measutemeot of financial Iiabilities depends on their classiEcation, as descdbed below:

Itaw a bormoizgt
Aftet initial recognition, interest-beadng loans and borrourings are subsequendv measured at amortised cost using the EIR
method. Gains and losses ate recognised in statement ofptofit and loss when the liabilities are detecognised as well as thtough
the effective inteiest tate (EIR) amortisation ptocess. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integtal part of the EIR. The EIR amortisetioo is included as finance costs
in the statement ofproEt and [oss.

Filar,ciaI gudrarrtee n tuctr
Financial guatantee conttacts are those contracts thet require a pal.rnent to be made to reimburse the holder fot a loss it incuts
because the specifred paqv fails to make a paynent u/hen due in accordance with the terrns of a debt instrument. Financiat
guatantee coflftacts are recognized as a financial liabilitv at the time the guarantee is issued at fair value, adiusted fot transaction
costs that ate ditecdy attdbutable to the issuance of the guaranlee. Subsequentlv, the liability is measured at the higher of the
amouot of expected loss allowance detetmined as per impaitment requiremeots of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less
curnulative amortizarion.

Financial assets and Enancial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if thete is a curenth
enfotceable legal right to offset t}te

De-ruogaitiot off wcial labibtiet
{ financial liabilitv is de-tecognised when the obligation under the liabilitv is dischatged or cancelled or expircs. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender oo substantially different terms, or the tetmi ofan existiog liabiliti
ate substant.iallv modified, such an exchange or modiEcation is treated as the de-rccognition of the original liability and thl
tecogniiion of a new liabilio. The difference in the respective carn'ing amounts is recognised in the statement ofprofii and loss.

3) Reclassification of financial insttuments

The Compao,v determines classification of Enancial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initia.l recognition, no
reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instrumeots and Enanciat liabilities. Fot Ejlancial assets which are
debt iostruments, a reclassification is made onl,v if there is a change h the business model for managing those assets. Changes
to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Companv's senior management determiries-change in the businiss
model as a tesult of extemal ot intemal changes which are signiEcant to the Compan/s operations. Such chanies arc eyident to
extemal parties. A change in the business model occuts when the Companv eithe, b"gi.r. o. 

""".", 
to pedor[ an activiq that

is sigtiEcant to its opetations lfthe Company reclassifies fiaancial asseis, it applies tie reclassificatioriprospectively from the
reclassification date which is the fust day of the immediatel)' next repo.tit g p".iod folo-irrg the change ir bu^siness model. The
Company does not testate an).' Previously recognised garns, losses (rnduding rmpaitment gats or lossls) or ioterest.

4) Offsetting of linancial insttuments

settle the liabilities simultaneouslr
recognised amounts and thete is an mtention to settle on a net basis, ro realise the assets and
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t) Fait value measutement

The Companv measutes financial instuments such as derivative instruments, etc at fair value at each balaoce sheet date. Fair
value is the price that would be teceived to sell an asset or paid to tansfer a liabilitl in an ordedv transaction bets€en market
patticipaots at the measurcment date. The fait value of an asset or a liabilitl is measured using the assumptions that market
particrpants would use when pricing the asset ot liabiliq', assumhg that marLet participaots act in their economic best interest.
.\ fair value measuternent of a non-financial asset takes into accourt a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits
bv using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participam that would use the asset io its highest
and best use.

v) Optionally coavertible tedecmable ptefetence shares and compulsorily convertible debenturcs

i) Optionally convertible redeemable prcferencc shates

Optionallv convertible tedeemable preference shares issued bv wholly owned subsidiades are accouoted as investment carried
at cost. In such iastruments, only the subsidian companies u,ill have the option to buy back and dividend will be completely
disctetionary at the subsidiaries optioo. The Companv will not have aov legal or cooftactual right eithd in normal or in default
scenado to require the subsidiaries to make pa1'meot of principal or interest as issuer has the rbht to convert the instrument
iflto equity shates at any time during its tenute. Amourt is 6xed at upftont, and convetsion will bi into fixed number of shares.

ii) Compulsodly coavertible debenturcs

Compulson' convertible debentutes issued by group companies are accouJrted as equitv investme[t cafiied at cost based oo the
terms of the contract. These instrumeots are convertible into fixed number ofequiq:shares within the tetm sfipulated in conkact
at the oPtion of holder. amount is fixed at upfront, and convetsion will be into 6xed numbet of shares.

w) Convertibleinstruments

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate ifl the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fait value, maximising the use of televant obserrzble inputs and minirnising the use of rmobsefl,abte inputs.

All assets ald liabilities fot which fait value is measured ot disclosed in the Enaricial statements are categorised withio the fair
value hieratchy, desctibed as follows, based on the lowest level ioput that is significant to the f^L !'alue measutement as a whole:

. I-evel 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) ma{ket prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

. l,evel2 Yaluation techniques for which the lowest level input that is sigruEcant to the fat value measurement is directly
or indirecdy observable.

. kvel 3 - \raluation techniques fot which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Enancial statements on a recurring basis, tlle Company determines whether
tansfets have occured between levels in the hierarch,v by re-assessing categotisatioo @ased on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fait value measuremeot as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Extemal valuers ate invoh'ed for valuation of signiEcant assets, such as properties and unquoted Enancial assets, aad signiEcant
liabil.ities, such as contiogent consideration. Involvement of extemal valuets is decided upoo anoually by the managemeot.
Yaluers ate selected based on matket knowledge, teputation, independerce and whethet professional standatds are maintained.

For the purpose of fait value disclosures, t}re Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
chatactetistics and dsks of the asset or liabiliry and the level of the fair value hietarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policv fot fait value. Other fair value rclated disclosures ate grven in the rclevarit notes.
o Disclosutes for valuation methods, sigmEcant estimates, and assumptions (note 3(aa) & 37)
. Quantitative disclosures of fafu value measuremeor hieratchy (note 37)
. Investment in unquoted equity shate (note 7 and note 37)
. Iovestment properties (note 5)

o Financial instrumeots (including those catried at amortised cost) (note 37)

Convertible instruments are sqrafated into liabiliq' and equih- components based on the terms of the contract. On issuance of
the convettible instrumeots, the fat value of the liabilit_r. component is determined using a market ate for an equivaleot non
convertible iostmment. This amouot is classiEed as a Enaflcial
it is extinguished on convelsion or tedemption.

liabilitv measuted at arnottised cost (net of tansactioo costs) until
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The remahdet of the ptoceeds is allocated to the convetsioo option that is recogrused and included in equiq since convenion
option meets Ind -1.S 32 ctiteda fot fixed-to-Exed classiEcation. Ttansacron costs are deducted from equitv, net of associated
income tax. The carying arnount of the conversion option is not remeasured in subsequent ,-ears.

Transaction costs ate aPPortioned between the liability and equiry components of the convertible instruinents based on the
allocation ofptoceeds to the liability and equig' componeflts when the instruments are initiallv recognised.

x) Non-curent assets held fot sale

The Compary classiEes non-curent assets as held fot sale if dreir carrying amouats will be recovered pdncipally through a sate
tather than through continuing use. Acfions required to complete the sale should indicate that it is unlikely that significant
changes to the sale will be made ot that the decision to sell will be withdtawn. N{anagement must be committed to rhe sale
expected *'ithin one year from the date of classification.

Fot these putposes, sale tmnsactions include exchaoges of non-cuffeot assets for other oou-curtent assets when the exchaog€
has commercial substaflce. The critetia for held for sale classiEcation is regarded rnet ool,y when the assets is available for
immediate sale in its present condition, subiect only to tems that are usual and customary for sales of such assets, its sale is
hrghl,v probabte and it will genuinely be sold, not abandooed. The Company treats sale of the esset to be highly probable when:

. The appropriate level of management is committed to a plan to sell the asset (ot disposal goup),

. Arl active programme to locate a bu)-er and complete the plan has been ioitiated (if applicable),
o The asset is being actively marketed fot sale at a pdce that is reasonable in relatioo to its curent fair value,
o The sale is exPected to qualifr for tecognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classiEcation, and
. Actions required to complete the plao indicate that it is unlikel,v that significant changes to the plao will be made or

that the plan will be withdrawn.

Non cuttent assets held fot sale /fot disttibution to owne$ and disposal groups are measured at the lowet of their carrying
amount and the fair value less costs to sell. Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately in the balance
sheet.

Ptopelty, plaot arld equipment, iflvestment properties and intangible assets once classiEed as held for sale are not depteciated
or amortised.

y) Earnings per share

Basic eamings per shate is calculated b,v dividing the net pto6t or loss fot the period athibutable to equitv shareholders (afrer
deducting attdbutable taxes) by the weighted average number of equin shares outstaodiag duting the period. The werghted
average numbet of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a
dghts issue, shate split, and revetse shate split (consolidation of shates) that have changed dre numbet of equiqv shares
outstaodilg, without a coresponding change in resoutces.

For the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per share, the net profit or loss for the pedod atftibutable to equity shareholders
and dre weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period ate adiusted fo! the effects of all dilutive potential
equiq' shares.

z) Changes in accouatiag policies aad disclosures

New and amcaded Etaadards

The Company applied fot the first-time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods beginning on
ot after 1 April 2024, but do not have a matedal impact on the standalone Enancial statemerits of the Company.

Itd AS I l6: I-"eat* - The NICA notified the Compaoies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2024, which
amended Ind AS 1 1 6, Leases, with tespect to Lease Liabilitv in a Sale and I-easeback. The amendment speciEes the requiements
that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease Liability arising in a sale and leaseback transaction, to ensute the seller-lessee does
not rccognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the dght of use it retains. The amendment is effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on ot after I -\pril 2024 aod must be applied rerrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions
enteted into aftet the date ofinitial application oflnd AS 116.

These amendments had no materiel impact on the standalone Errancial statements ofthe Company dudng the yeat.

AS 117: Insutance - The Nfinistn' ofCorporate Affaits QICA) notified the ind AS l17,Insurance Conftacts, vide
12,\ugust 2024, under the Compaoies (Indian Accounting Standards) amendment Rules,2024, which is
teporting pedods begnning on ot aftet 1 April 2024.
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Ind -\S 117 Insutance Contmcts is a comprehensive new accor:nting standard for insurance contiacts covering recognition and
measurcment, Presentation and disclosure. Ind AS 117 teplaces Ind AS 104 Insurance Conttacts. Ind AS 117 applies to all types
ofinsutance contracts, regardless of the tvpe ofentities that issue them as well as to certaifl guaantees and Enancial instruments
with disctetionary paticiparion features; a few scope exceptions will apply. Ind AS 117 is based on a general modd
supplemented tr,v:

. ,\ speciEc adaptation for contracts \Dith direct participation features (the variable fee approach); and

. A simplified approach (the premium allocation apptoach) mainly for short dutation cootracts.

These amendments had no matedal impact on the stafrdalone financial statements of the Company during the yea1,

New and amended standards, not yet efrective

The new aod amended standards and interptetations that are issued, but not ),'et effective, up to the date of issuance of the
standalone finaocial statements are disclosed below, the Company will adopt this new and amended standatd, when it becomes
effective:

Ind AS 21: The Efe* of Cbaryr ir Foteig Excbarye Barar - The \Iinistry of Corpoate Affairs notified amendments to Ind AS 21,
The Effects of Changes io Foreigo Exchange Rates, which came into force on 7 NIay 2025, the date of their publication in the
official gazette. The amendments are effective for annual repothg periods begrnoing on ot aftet 1 April 2025. When apptying
the amendments, an entiqv cannot restate comparative information.

The amendment specifies how an entity should assess *'lrether a curency is exchaogeable aod how ir shou.ld determine a spot
exchange rate when exchangeability is lacking. The amendments also tequire disclosure of information that enables users ofits
financial statemeflts to uodetstand how the currency not beiog exchangeable into the othet curteocy affects, or is expected to
affecg the entity's Enancial performance, Enancial position and cash flows.

These amendments are not expected to have any material impact on the standalone financial statements of the Company.

aa) Significant Ean.gement iudgement in appving accounting policies aod eatimation uncetainty

The preparation of the Companv's financial statemeots tequires managernent to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amormts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the related disclosutes and the disclosute of
coitingent liabilities. Uncettaioq about these assumptions and estirnates could tesult in outcomes that rcqufue a material
adjustment to the carrying amount ofassets ot liabilities affected in future periods.

Siguificant management iudgeme[ts
The followiog ate signiEcant management judgements in applying the accounring policies of the Cornpany that have the most
significant effect on the financial statements.

fungthiot of fufemd tax a$etr - Tlrc extent to which defetted tax assets can be recognized is based on an assessmeflt of the
probability of the future taxable iocome against which the deferted tax assets can be utilized.

Ewleation of itdiutor Jor inpahnett oJ awx - T\e evaluation of applicabiliqv of iodicatots of impairment of assets requires
assessment of sevetnl extemal and intemal factors which could result in deteriotatioo of recoverable amount of the assets.

ChtScalion of baes - The Companv enters into leasing artangements for vatious assets. The classification of the leasiog
atangement as a Enance lease or opetating lease is based on an assessmeot of several factors, including, but not limited to,
transfet of orrmership of leased asset at end of lease term, lessee's option to purchase and estimated certainty of exetcise of such
option, proportion of lease term to the asset's economic life, proportion of present value of minimum lease palrnents to fair
value of leased asset and extent of specialized nrtuie of dre leased asset.

Deteizinirrg tbe leale teftr, oJ aatmets vith nwwal and hmirldtiotl optilnr (Companv as lessee)- The Company determines the lease term as the
non cancellable term of the lease, together with anv periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is teasonably cetain to be
exetcised, ot any periods coveted bv an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonablv cerain not to be exercised. The Companv has
several lease conttacts that include exteosiod and termination options. The Companv applies judgement in evaluating whether it is
teasooably cetain whethet or not to exercise the option to renew ot terminate the lease. That is, it considets all relevant factots that
create an economic incentive for it to exetcise eithet the rcnewal or termination. Aftet the commencement dete, the Companv reassesses
the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstaoces that is within its control add affects its abilitv to exercise or not
to exetcise the option to renew or to G
to the leased asset)

.g., construction of significant leasehold improvernents or significant customisetion



DLF Home Developers Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the yeat ended 31 March 2025

ImPairmeat offrlancial asetr - -\t each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates observed over expected life, the managemeat
assesses the expected credit loss on outstaoding frrancial assets.

Pmuitioat .\t each tnlnnce sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal aspects, the Companv assesses the
teqrrirement ofptovisions against the outstandiag contingent liabilities. However, the actual future outcome may be different from this
judgement.

knnac JmD, corrlraalr Dith o.$tom.fi-
The Companv has applied ludgements that significands affect the determination ofthe amount aod timing of rweaue from cooftacrs
with customers.

Significant estimates

The key assumptions coacemhg the future aod other kev sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a srgnificant
tisk of causing a material adiustment to the carn'ing amounts of assets and liabil.ities, are desctibed below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates oo Pitralneters arailable when the financial stateinents were ptepared. Existing circumstances and
assumptions about futute developments, however, may chaoge due to market changes or circumsances arising that ate beyond the
control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions wheo thev occur.

Net nahrybh wlue oJ hwrrtory -:nte detetminatioo of net realisable value of inventory involves estimates based on prevailing matket
cooditions, curtent ptices and expected date of commencement and completion of the project, the esrimated futute selling price, cost
to complete projects and selling cost. The Compan,v also involves specialist to perform valuations ofinventories, whetever required.

U$ hwt of depeciabb/ anoiiJabh drretr Nlanagement reviews its estimate of the usefr.r.l lives of depreciabte/arnortisable assets at each
reporting date, based on the expected utility ofthe assets. Uncertainties in these estimztes relate to techoical and economic obsolescence
that mey change the utility of assets.

Valrlatiol oJ irrrertmefi pnpot) -I$resnient properry is stated at cost. However, as pe! Ind AS 40 there is a requirement to disclose fair
value as at the balance sheet date. The Companv engaged indepeodent r,zluation specialists to detetmine the fair value ofits investrnent
ptoperty as at reporting date. The determination of the fair lzlue of investmeot ptoperties rcquites the use of estimates such as futue
cash flows ftom the assets (such as lettiags, future revenue sueams, capial ralues of fixtues and frttings, any environmental matters
and the overall rcpat and condition ofthe propertv) and discount rates appJ.icable to those assets. In addition, development tisks (such
as construction and letting tisk) are also mkeo into coosideration whea determining the fair rzlue of the properties uoder construction.
These estimates are based on local market conditions existing at the balance sheet date.

Def ned be eft obL\atiorl (DBO) - Nlarugemert's estimate of the DBO is based on a number of underhing assumptions such as standard
rates of inflation, mortaLity, discount rate and anticipation of futute salarv increases. Vadation in these assumptions mav significantlv
impact the DBO amount and the aonual defined bene6t expenses.

Fair whe measnneat dirhszns \laaagement applies valuatioo techoiques (induding bur not limited to the use of illiquidiq. discount
on investmeots and benchmatk of listed companies in similar space) to determine the fair value of Eoancial instrumenis (where active
matket quotes are not available). This involves developing estimates and assumptions consistent with how market participants would
price the instrument.

Vahatiol of irrwerrnerrt in wbtidiariu, joint wttturu aful asocittet - l*eswreots in subsidiaries, joint ventwes and associates are carded at
cost. At each ba.laoce sheet date, the management assesses the indicatots of impairrnent of such investments. This tequires assessment
ofseveral extemal and internal factot including capitalisation rate, kev assumption used in discounted cash flow models (such as revenue
gtowth, uoit price and discouat rates) ot sales compatison method which mav affect the carn-ing value of investrneoti in subsidiaries,
joint ventutes and associates.

Ihtpairn:n, oJ Plo?enJ phn, ,qipncrrt, Int rlnent pro?ertier and CIVIP - Impairment exists when the catrying value of an asset or cash
generating uoit exceeds its tecoverable amount, which is the higher ofits fair value less .o.t. of disporj rrr'd its value in use. The value
in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budgets. The tecoverable amount is sensitive to the
discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected futue cash-inflo*s and-the gro,*th rare used.

(fb qace ha: ken i entioaa$ bf bhtk)
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DLF tlom. I).ElopcB Liflr.il
Norcs m th. 3t{d,lore fined.l .t.td.nt for lh. y.r .nd.d !l Mdh 2025

NailmorinE m.rB F&.vdu.

?A InE.lD.nr ir .utBidiai..' {.oo.lc.t ioitt mtrt Ed Pdn Etip fms (non'.ufrtt)
i) ln.quny i'*dm.nts (6quocd) (.t .G0

-{mtk Bulders & D-.lop.c Privrt Lim €d

.\nm Esurs Pm?t Lnr.d
,1n8.lm Rc E3bts Pmrt Lmltd
BMI Ralb^ Phik Imtr d
8l'.dd Real Esbr. Derclopd! ?fltt Lmited

Cal4u Reil Eshts Privle lmied
ch.mude$zn Bultse6 Pd\rie Lmited

Chrdrnlot Esbt D€rclopers Pdrnie LmiEd
ch.\iLr BuildBs & ConstuMs Privrte Lmt d

Ctono BuJd€G & D€r'.lopers P;uE Lmii.d
Dehno R.drm P.iaE Lmn€d

D€lhlind Atrildc@ PME Limftd
DLF B ld$ ud D&bFG PrnTte tdftd
DLF ExcluNe Flods Pnqtc Linn€d

Dl,F Hom€s Gd Pnuft Lmit€d

DLF Ho@s Pe.hkul2 ftint Lmftd
DLF lofo Cq Hli.nh.d LEned

DLF IT offi(.s Cte@ Pmre Limit d

DLF Propen, D*clop.B Lmftd
DLF R.sdenti.l Patu6 lflEd
DLF souttum Tow! Pdv.E Limitd

DLF Urbd Pnrrt loited
Doms Rcd EsMt Ptrt Limied
E ilm Buid6 & DGtloF6 P6:t L6{ed

GrU@ Prcp.ny \lMgemnt sdicc! Friut Lmited

Gat@r BnJdds & Ddelopds PriraE tlffEd
H.rhd R..lds P.iut Lmied
H.spd Build€n & DMlop€G Ptlrlr€ Linx€d

H.sti. Re.ltds PnEt Lmlcd

Hule, Buldfrs & D6ELrP.c Priv& Ln .d
hrb.l Budd..s & DMlop€c PMt tnftd
I+o Euildcd P re Limt d

ilolau ldtmd{Mt CoN.ndd Cde r4ned
l,ffi BuildEs & Costuud. Pnqt Ltut d

Lzisa Buildds & C@stuMs ?!ut Lmtcd

Lnre Build.6 & Dev.lop.s Plqt LmiEd

Mun l BuildeF & D.ElopeF PMt Lio,ted

Ne!$ BuJd€E & Daclop€G Pffie L@led
\iob. Bund6 & DeLpds Pszt€ td .d
P.ito Conm€(nl D€\'eloP.6 Liflkd
Rtrh.l. Bnid.c & C@stucec PffiE Linxed

Ru,uL BuE€6 & Ddttop.c PMt Lnftd
S€nymd B$U€G & Constu.ids PdMi. Lnn d

ShM,i IIfig \IuftEnc. SBt.s lfrtd
S,igdtn Buidds & Coctrutids lririlr tlnEd

3t MNh 2025 3l Meh r,2,l 3l Meh ZI25 ,l M(h 202

Equtr (tunrpdd 
'p)

Eqd,6 rFd up)

Ea$y (tu[) ?.d up)

Es-t, (6,1, p"d .p)
Equ,V (fuly pad up)

E$!tr (tulr sia W)

Eg,"ry (f.,!y pt"l 
"p)

Equq (fdly p.id up)

Ec-ty (tub p.d ,p) '

Capnl 0 p.tus[p fri'
CaPtbl q p.tue6tnP 6m
c.prtal d pdrsh,P ftn I

1oJfl)
10,0m

r0.000

{0.00

26.+8

1.00

t0
t0

l0
()
l0
l0

l0

l0
t0

l0
l0
l0
t0
t0
l0
t0

l0
t0

l0
l0
l0

l0

l0
l0

10

l0

l0
l0

l0
l0
l0
l0
t0

l0

10

l0
t0
l0
l0
l0
ll)
t0
10

IO

50.000

50,000

10.000

t0,000

l0.0cn

lo.dJ)

10.000

50.000

10,000

10,000

r0,oo0

l01lxl
6{,.100,000

16,000

1i0,010.000

1,061,768

t.682,' 50

7,000.000

10.000,01r0

50,000

i38,882

61.137

i.00

10.00

26.18

L00
7.19

5.le

t.00
26.10

1.00

100

69{0.50
1.60

15.001.00

15,968 9t
500

?30.!5

6.639.39

i.00
561.57

172$.12

3 13{

5.2i
1.00

100
t.00
l.m
t.00

1.00

1.00

5,018.10

68 59

10.10

22.51

3.26

1.00

60.m

16 00

52.00

t.m
1.00

5.00

5.00

5.00

l0,0oo

10,fi)0

16,000

150p10,000

1.061,768

1,682,150

10,000

10,m0

t0,000

50,000

10,00)

10,000

50.0{0

100
1.00

1.00

6,9.10 50

160
I i,001.00

1i968.95
5.00

50,000

538.881

61.r3,

t0,000

500
i61.57

11;t7+.29

1,?19.25

100

t9,(]dl
r0.fr)0
r0,m0
10,000

5,25

1.00

1.00

10,000

10,000

l0,u)0
50,000

1.00

1.00

1.00

5,018.t0

t0,000

10,000

59,000

10,m0

t0,000

t0,000

10.000

10,000

10.0..x)

10,000

50.000

10,01,0

10,000

10,000

10.000

t0,000

10,000

t0.000

10,000

t0,000

t0,0(xl

5o]lr0
10,000

1.26

t.m
60.00

16 00

52.00

r.00

1.00

5.00

Inp.imdl.tloMtr€ (ako rcftr note tl)
-\sds dlu<led h . dsPoel goT chssi6.d rs held for srl€ (4ft' not 55)

,\rin U.ce De\.lopcc l;'ai. Ldnr.d

DcsBnplu lssats S6tes lriat Lmted

DLF \ldrM Pme lidded
DLF Litu Phnt Linxed

DLI_ SBu, D*lope6 Priult L ted

P.ge.o Buidds & De!.loPds Inlzr. troitd

50.fix]
t2t.uro

11:+1.5+7

20.00

5,000.00

2313 i0

i,m0
1o:00

0.50

102

50,m0

12t.000

l1:.ll,i+?
1.6.10,g)3

t.m0
l0:00

20.00

5,000.00

1311.50

2J r.06
0.50

r28,4t6.25

0695r.r0)

t2E,615.n

66p76.78)
(5.00) (5 oo)

lll527.l5 82,534.19

1)$-@. 9r4l6.m

l0
t0
l0
l0

10

sub'rot.l O)

Dt F Luus Hofts Ln ed

li.dch R.d Esar ldate Lmitcd

R*k EshEs DAtkPec Pftat tm .d
SLlse Hom€ De*loPeG PNrt Lim €d

Eqmy (tult p.id uP)
+96 86

501.t3

530.09

5r.00

+96 86

50313

530.09

51.00

l0
10

10

l0
158t-oE rjsLOE

t736
2.(Il

6r.i2

r7.36

2.00

81t.88 19,J6

Dt-F Cmoea,l Po|ftt CorPm@o

Ba@ d Aun ks & DdrloFs
DLF Gr\aln D*cloPes

i38,887Jlll)
5.79.1.080

1211,r1l
5.r{)

i38.887J00
5.79r,081J
'1211,171

sJ.l0



ii) ln rcd..m.bL prcr.rcn ..h.c ('RPS') / Opd@dly @nErtibl. rcd..m.I . pcftl!@.h.6

DLF Hom. D.EIop.B Limite.l
Not.. .o rh. .t.nd.iod. trD.Dcial st.r.hdE for th. !E{ .n r.d l1 Meh z)25

lmpamd dlorre (.trc rcfd noE s1)

ll Mrh 2lD5 alMNnXt24 3l Mah 2025 !l Mfth 204

DL!_ Budd.c and D€\.ldper Pnvre LimiEd

GzlLm P6p€rt \ldzge@nr Sc^!.s P$ai. Lmftd
krb.l BuJd.rs & D.Elopffi PnizE Ldr.d
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iii) h cmpulsorily .o"dibL pc&@cc .ie. ('CCPS') (oq@t d) ({ .d0

\.ia. GlohiL(n (6 P;i2t LmGd CCPS'6
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DLF Rlsd€ntirl PartEA Limited
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DLF Home Developers Limited
Notes to the stendalone financi.l statements for the year etrded 3l March mzi

Non-currerrt Current
tlI},irclf,m25
(l in lakhs)

3ll},2lclr2O?A
({ in Lkh)

8 . Loens

(Unsecuted, considered good unless otherwise stated)

Irafi aad advances to related parties (refer note 47)

Due &om subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries, joint venrures, joint operation, associates afld parnership 6rms^
Considered good 90.36 990.36

Credit impaired 6,318.28 6,318.28

Loans to others

Loens to others parties^

Secued*
(ionsidered good

Credit impaired

Unsecured

C<nsidered good 155.68

Credit impeircd 1218.01 1,218.01

Loan to employees 
^

Due on redeemable preference shares (refer note 47 afld 7,\)

19;145.33 20,196.00

kss: Allowance for expected credit losses (13.536.29\ (13,536.29\

Total

31Isl*clr?f'25
(( in lakh)

3lM.rchmU
(t nr hkh6)

111,045.06

2,990.17

67,372.98

1,463.7 4

404.46 982.12

6,582.33

29,885.93

19 239.01
475.65

63,745.76

19,539.86

'118.68 3.67

111271.87

Q9,456.77)

,59,687 39
r27,585.93)

6?8.M 6$s9.71 14r,815.10 134101.46

^ Above loans carries iflterest at the rate of 8.50% to 15% per armum (31 N{ ch 2024 | 8.5oo/o to 15% per anflrm) except cen.in interest fr€e loan to
employees. These loaas gelrerete 6xed interest income for the Compafly. The carrying value may be affected by change in credit risk of the party.

3 Lorfl is secured against pledg€ ofproperty or shares owned by the borrower. The Company records provision for loan more ihrr market value ofptopefy or
shares owned by the borrower.

Detail ofloans or advatrces in the nature ofloans granted to promoter, directors, key maragerial persoffrel (trlMP) and the related p.rti$ that arc
repayable on dernaad or wirhour spcci$ing any terms or period of r€paymenr:

Type of borro*er
Amourt of loan or adYaoce in
the rBture ofloaa outst{rding

Percentege to tlre total loens et,d
edvances in the nature ofloans

f,#

SlMarchfr25 3lMarcbfr24 3l March 2(D5 3llt{arclr?J2A

Dircctols

Key Marngerial Petsonnel (KMP)

Related parties#r

{ the Company has recopFis€d provision for impairmmt relating to loans to rehted parties arnomting to { 9,308.45 lakhs (31 March 2024 : { 7,782.02 lalhs).

## p.r..nt g. h"" b..n computed on gross amormt outstanding before adiusting afly ptovisioo for impaitment of such loans ot advance in the nature of loan.

(Ihis space has been intentionally left blenk)

475.00

120,443.87

0.25%

61.O50/o76,t45.36 42.7304



DLF Home Developers Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statemenE fo. the vear end€d 3l:i,d2;.c'lmzs

9 . Other financial a6sets

(llnsecured, considered good unless oderwise stared)

Advances recoverable in crsh from rclated panies (refer note 47)

Considered good ^
Credit impaired

Security deposit6 from ,elated parties (refer [ote 47)

Considered good

Credit imgrired
Advances recoverable in cash from others

Considered good

Credit impaired

Security deposit3 to orhers

Considered good

Credit impaired

Fixed deposits with remaining manrity more than 12 months 
r

Contract assets (refer note 47)

Due ftom employees

3lMarch?n24
(t in lalors)

31 March 2025

(l in laltrs)
SlMarch?J24

({ ir lakhs)

Non-current Current
31March2li25

(t in lakhs)

34,915.56 60,709.76

448.50 341.285A2.15

880.00

904.71

880.(n

1,210.11

33,757.45

887.92

3,529.13

895.47

3,529.13

3.47

'1,520.60

34,822.9E

1,929.21

6,614.66

3,185.06

4.50

m2,990.14

1,232.88

1og.42

251,489.93

(6.619.16)

2478.00

6,803.67

40,906.76 425s6.X
49,232.11)

3,162.51

4.50

106,014.00

3,708.78

654.10

183i882.60

(6,808.17)Less: Allowance for expected cledit losses

Total 740.8 ____2448!!1______!1

t Includes { 202,348.23 lakhs (31 Nlatch 2024 : { 106,003.65 laLhs) held in crrrent accounts fot proiects registered under Real Estate Regulation Act,2016
('RERA"). The money can be ut ised for peyments of the rele!%flt projects.

^^Also refer note 53.

Obi! t ae. ba! bu" i'th",io"ab Ll bla,'k)



DLF Hom. Dcv.lopcft Ufritcd
NoGs to thc st.ndulon€ fi..nci.l sratch.nB for rh. ve.r.adcd 3l March m25

r0. Dcf.rrcd rd as$rs (ner)
(.) Compdcnr ordcf.rrcd tax .6.ers (ncr)

Unabsorbed deprecianon

Cany fotu&d busioess dd c.pital loss.s

Dues ofmicrc enterprises and smdl sre.prises
Prcptrq, planr and equipmdr, inlesromr prcperrv md other inrugble ascrs -
depreciaton and amorlrsaboa

Incotr offered m ta\ in edlicr yeare

E\pected c.edit loss of Enmcial ,lsets/impaimenr of don-6nanci.l dset

Pro$sion for mployee benefrts

Grcss dcfe.rcd trx ass.t (A)

DcfcrEd rd lirbiliti.i:

Fa;r ralue gai, oo iolrstrnmts
Gro6r d.ftrrcd t.x liebiliriB (B)
N.r defc..€d lax.s$ts (A-B)

(b) R.corcili.tim ofdeGned rax .s6crs:

Opening bdan@
Additron on count ofoerger (refer nore 56)

Tax expose recogoised in Statemmr ofprofit dd los
Ta eypdse @oFised in other cohpEhdsiE income

3l Mar.h 2025 3lM,"chm?J
(t in lakfis)

88399-74

(a in lu khs)

967.31

4,462.76

3,02l'A
1p29.24

1315.83

29,020.66

196.08

931.33

37229.O1

282J1.61

446.96

416.92

38224.86

3128255

106.39

364.11

u,227 .21 nt 442.0'

426.95

8,098.07

84.61

12957.64

8J,5.02 tj,M2.29

88J9.7471702.25

(16,6s8.68)

(3E.81)

104,723.a)

524.88

06,851.5D
2.6\

71702.25 88J99.74

Tot.l chrng€ in dcfercd rax .ss.t (16,697.49) (16,8tS.91)

(, D.fered tax aset is recogtuzed on uabsotbed dQrecietion and cary forudd ofloses to the €xtent thar ir is prcbable rhat tutur taxable pofts v bc asailable .Finst vhrch
the deductible tempofrry diffetnces, unabsorb.d d€pGiation and canied foMd ras losses can be ublired. The Company has rax losscs ofI294216.76 Llhs Cocluding busi,ess
loss of a 1%,655.47 l,khsi and capital losses of I 97,561.29 lalhs) that aie alaiLble tor offstting for 8 yeds against future raxable prcfits dd unebsorbed depreiatiotr of a
3,665 95 lat[, that is aqilable for set off for indefnite pcriod. Maioritv of th$e los.s wil .xpir i. FY 2025-26 ro FY 202s,29. Based upon mdgin fom sale of existifg p.ojecu,
th€ CompaI bcliercs that th.re is reenable.errrinty that de in€d td asets vill be .e@rcr.d.

(31 March 2024r a 5,839.31 lrf,h, a ther. is ao renable cetainty supponed by conriocing oiddes of rheir ftcoverabihry if, th. ned future. If rhe Compdy was ,lso to
tcogn6e atl uf,re@gnised defecd t x assets, the p@fit would increa* by t 57,41 5.30 lalhs (31 Mdch 2024: a 64J22.20 lat$s).

Mov.me in d.rcmd td.*r3 for rhc )E.r cndcd 3l M.rch m25 C in hkns)
tA,,it2024

mergd (rcfc.
notc 56)

Recogiri!.d in R.cogni.€d in 3l MGh m25

A$ets
Unabsorbed d.preciations

Catry foNdd buihess and capital losses

Dues of micro enterpdses ed sm.I enre.prises

Ptupenl, plant sd €quipoenq inlestrnent prcp€.ty od orher intaoSibL assets -
depreciaron md monisarion
Income offered to tax io e.dier,€ds
E*pected crcdit los of fidmcial assets/ ihpaident of ron lmmcial csets

Prousion ior employe benefits

Sub-tot.l (A)

r,315.83

29,020.66

1%.08

931.3r]

o48.sa
(z),r57.90)

2321.34

97.95

3822486
3t282s5

106.39

(995.85)

(3,050.94)

360.5?

45.427.17

967.31

8fi2.76
3,023.4
1,029.28

37229.0r

28231-61

466.96

416.92

r0r"{,t2.03 7.n u,u|.n
Li.biliti.s

Fair ql8 
Sain on inr€stments

Sub-roral (B)
GBnd ro.al (A-B)

84.61

12957.68
342.34 426.95

8525.02

45.9E

45.98

8,3,9-74 (16.55&68) 71,702-25



DLF Homc Dcv.lopc.s Umitcd
Not s to lh. sr!.d.lone fin.nci.l 6tat hcnts for th. E.r end.d 3l M.rch 2025

Movenenl in dcf.rrcd rd .s*rs fo. rhc,€ff.ndcd 3l M.rch m24 (a h rekh)
I Apil 2,23

ro..56)

Rccog ed itr Recogni*d in 3lM,neh?,/?,

UMbsorbed dQreci,trms
Carry fo^lrrd business and capitat losses

Dues ofnic6 enterprises dd small €nterprises

l'rcperry, pldt rnd equipdent, nr€srmef,t popeny and other int nSibl€ asets
dep.eciation aod mortisatiotr
Income offered to trx in eelier y€a6

Espeted credit loss of findcial dsets/ impaimedt ofnon fmaocial assets

Prolision for @ployee bene6rs

Subnot.l (A)
Li.bili.ics

Fa;r ralue gain on inrtstrDcf,ts

Sub-.ot.l (B)
GBnd tot.l (A-B)

3U.20

44.42

1,0210.35

0 s33e.78)

196.08

193.51

1315.83

29,U0.64

196.08

931.33

275.44

44,028.24

693.40

117,852.18

144.26

524.88

41902.9',7

30,412.08

212.22

321.79

(3,678.1r)

722.21

00s.83)
33.91

3822486
312U.55

106.39

3(A.33

2.63 (16,937.66) 10r,442.03

170.70

12,957.68

(86.09 u.6t
12,957.68

13J2838 (16.09) 8,042,29
1rNJ23.&) 524.88 2-63 06,85r.54 88Jr9.7r

U. Non-rurc t.x.s*t (nct)
Income ra paid (net of prclisiod)

3l M.rch m25

C in kkns)
3l M.rch m24

G in terh)

24,795.1230,1M.m

30,706.20 2tJgs.t2

3l M.rch m25

(t in l.khs)

31Mrch 2021

C in l.kls)

3l M.r.h 2025

(a in l.tho)

3lMarch2024

({ i, l.r.hs)
l2 . O(h.r .s&ts
(Un!.cui€d,@.sid.rcd goodu.lca!oftcdis..r.cd)

Bal.nce riah ltatutory .utho.iticg
Connd€rcd Sood
Considered doubtfii

D€po6it wirh st.tutory rurhoritid und€r prctcst

Cof,sid.red good

Consideret doubtfrn
Pftpaid erpmses* #
cl,im Eceiable lrcfer note 41 (B)Gi)l

Adrances reco\ceble i. kidd froo rclat€d panies

Adv..c.s recovc..blc in kind ftom oth.r.
Cmsidered sood
Considered doubtfin

L$: ,\Iowd.e for doubtful debts
Tot.l

a hdudcs brck€r,se [refer note 3G)].

# Includes balace with cl.ted part]' Geter note 47).

6,025.05

427484
599.88

9,160.57

5,799.37

421+U
599.88

9,197.38

21,493.55

1298.30

949.42

21,1W.23

1,298.30

4;t65.t3

47,521.05 40,703.84

22,340.34 31;432.34

8,92L73 92,lJ/0.,-65

(26,615.18) O5J07.1E

4399.E9

4a7.W

3,078.65

479.N

26270.15

76.45

36,624.a2

63J06.s5 56J00.17

6!0fl.68
(563.47)

,15L21

72,906.58

72J5LL3

(Ihis space hd been intentiooaly left blm[)



DI-F Honc Derelopec Linited
Nor.s ro rh. srand.lonc lin.nci.l stat.mmt3 for th. }!.r cnd.d 31M.rch m25

ll/abad at ,ort ot i\Rll D ,n aw i! kwr, ,rb$ otlrtuiy nahd)

Land, plots 6d constoction work in prcBcs
De\€lopment r'shts (efer note a9)

Land under estncxre agftemmt *

Subrot.l (A)

subtoral (B)

Bc.k-up for s.cuiity rLr.il!:

Secued, considered good

Udsecuftd, onsdercd good

3l Mr.ch 2025

G h hkr'!)
3l M.rch m24

(a in rakh6)

632,t98.O4

4,636.27

615308.29

4,636.27

4518.07
636,834.31 62A,162.6t

3.59

28.25

3.59

24.25

3t.84 31.a4

Tolrl (A+B) 536,8;6-,5 6U,194,n

^Durdg d'e )ei! a 1,002.23 lrlhs (31 Mffch 2024: a Nil) was recognised ,! expense for idrcntoaes canied at net real$able lalE CNRV).
* These cprcsef,ts l,nd parcels fo! vhich the Coopmy had ef,teGd if,to agcdent for sale of developrcot rights of the underlying lmd pdcels for a fned consid€mtion md does

nor haic my turth.! eonoEic bdefiL Since, these agrements de pe.din8 6oal ex€curion, thesc arc clssitr.d as lmd uder r.strLrii! ag@mef,r Duing the )@r, the Conpdy
hx tefunded dre amout recetued under.uch restricbi'e agr.ehent and mutualy cdcel€d the ar6g.mdt. As a rcsult, there d. f,o r€sttictiors on sEh lmd pdels.

31 M.rch mzi
(t in l.rdts)

3l M.rch 2O24

({ in l.Lh6)

14. T..dc rEccillrblesr

Da from relned pdhes 4,791.58

42936.34

251457

41,968.81

47,m-92 {4,t83.38

143.26

47,584.66

85,039.73

44fi3.38
86,035.70

't3L161.65 130519.08

tmp.im.nr .[osuc. (alowrncc for.xp.ctcd credit 1036)

Fo. disclosr relasna to related pety tr.de t@itsbles, r€fer rot 47

Trade recirzbles e non-interest bearing dd de Senerally on tems of30 to m dals
* Includes { 47238.25Ia}hs (3t M,rch 2024.< 14A33.66 lalhs) f6o contoct lith cutomere ulds Ind AS 115

(85,039.73) (E6p35.70)

0,727,92 {4,{83.38

kh.duL .. .r 3l M.rch 2025

.chedule 3 .t 3l March 202{

in l.kh!)

({ in l.khs)

P.nicu12ru Outst.rding for folowing Frio& from fi. booking d.rc

4,797.27

3,t-33.67

39,686.11

82302.03

1 9.08

L6. th.n 6 l-2 ]€ar! 2-3 y.rrs

(.) Undisputcd Tr.dc R$iubl.

(b) Dispured T..de RccciBbh
Unsecaed, considercd good

3299.20

26.18

96.66

5.20

1,325.38 101.8a,

159.66

91_P2

11.02

78.l()

1230.73

3,532.07

39,686.1I

u,n2.o3
a9.a 126,750.94Grend tot.l 251.48

lmpaimeot alowadce (,[osmce for expecad (86,035.70)

To..l r..de r€@iBbl.s {4,48r,38

Tor.l

159.t 5477.21

07.23 95.03 148.53 159.15

95.036,869.41

Out.tsdins fo. folNing Fdo& f,om th.
2-3 y..B1-2 F.c

292.46

2J17.70

39,686.11

E4302.O3

8p41.81

2,737.7O

39,686.11

82,3U.O3

(.) Undilputcd Tr.d. Rcc.iv.blc

O) Dirputcd T..dc Rft.ivabL

lJ2,7eL65Or.nd tot.l
(85,039.73)Inpaiment alos,ne (allow6e for e\p6ted

47,7n.92Tot.l thd. EeiBbl.B

This balmce iocludes uobiled reeiuble of I 477.23 lalhs Or Math 2024: Nil).



15 . C.6h .nd c.sh .quiv.lenr6
C.sh .nd cash cquiv.lc.ts

B.l.nes with b.nks*

-DeposiG with onginrl naturit) ofless fian firee oooths

DLr Homc Ddclop..s Umircd
Notcs to th. srand.lorc financial st.r.menr6 fo. rhe rc.. crded 3l Mar.h 2025

3r M.rch 2025 ,r Merch 2024

Gi' l.khs) (r in l.kb)

0.12 0-32

7,956.50 3,947-4A

11i437.22 76,1$.24

rrJx.tx 80,0!r6.04

Cah vitn boks eds dterest zt noating htes bsed on daily baok deposit otes. shorr tem deposits are made for uqirg p..iods of betw.ef, one day and dr@ monrhs,
dependirg on the iomediate cash requirments oi the Comp.n) .

x Includes t 1,136.48 lakhs (31 Mdch 2024 : I 1,486.03 lalhs) held io @redt accouts and a 7344.41 lalhs Ol Mmh 2024 : { 14,591.46 lalhs) h€ld in &posit with orighat
maturity ofless fif thr€e oonths for prcieu reSjstercd mder Real Estate R%ularion Act, 2016 ('RERA"). The doney cd be urilised for patments ofrhe rcle\at projects.

Chengls in li.biliricE .ri!in8 fom li..ncing.divirics

83,llt.{6
55270.30

Le.. li.biliticc Tot.l liat ilitics
from finmcing

.t I ApriI 202,

ilovs (net)

non cGh mo!!mc.r

20,000.m

39+800.78

837.76

(416.46)

55.96

10j919.u
94594.62

55.96

59,800.78 4rr.26 198,5!t9.m
Cash flows (neD

Oth.r non c.sh merment
.Tqls.ctoo cosr adiurtoent
.Fiodciogcomponentof le6c liability/na-lases capitarised (f,eq

(80,874.00)

58.95

(47g.ee)

1917.11

(8lJ52.e9

58.95

t 9t1.ll
lt9zu,.tMeh m25 s9f,59.?3 57,vI7.76

3l M.rch m25
(t i, hkns)

3l M.rch 202
(t in l.ktu)

16 . Other b.ak b.l.r@
Bdt dQosits with original matuity for more dran 3 n@ths but less thd 12 motrths

Pledged/under lien/e@dt€d

Tol.l

58.28

1,537.r6

37J85.99

56.63

1,391.02

80,510.72

39J8[4r 8r,958.37

! 
Includes a 7,1s6 09 lakhs O 1MN<h 20241< 77,712.741akbs) held i! oth€r bml bal,nces as deposits for projects ftgirered udcr R€al Estare Regulatio. .{cr,2016 ('RER-{').

Tbr monq ce be urilsed lor paldenc olthe rls'Drprolftrs.

Chn qeN lu ber irr."t$Mlt Lfi bh*)



DLF Home Developers Limited
Notes to the standalotre financial statemerts for the year ended 31 March 2025

17 (A). Equity share capital

Authorfued share capital

6,174330,000 (31 t\Iarch m24: 6,123,712,000) equity shares of{10 each

a) Reconcili.tion of authorbed equity share capital at the begiffring and .t the end of the ye.r

3lMarclr2-025

({ ir lalds)

3l]t{^rchm24

(t in lakhs)

617,4331n 612,371.20

617,433.00 6n 37120

Equity shares (t10 each) 31leI*clr)l)25 3ll0,^.ch?nU 31M.rch 2025 3l Match 2trX24

At the beginning of the yea.
Increased during the yeat pursuant to merger (refer note 56)

No. of shrres No. of shares

6.123J 12.000

6,XB;1t2,000

({ io lakhe) (t in lal'hs)
6,123,712,000

50,618,000

612,31r.20

5,061.80

612,371.m

Balance et the end ofthe 617,433.W 61:47Lm

Is6ued, subscribed end paid-up capital

109,231,169 (31 March 2024 : 109,231,169) eqr;ttty shues of{10 each 6nly paid up 10923.12

10,923.t2

10,923.12

10,923.t2

b) Reco[cirierion of equity sheres outstanding et the begiming and at the end of the year

Equitv shares (t10 each) 31 March Z)25 3lM^.chm2A 31Merch m25 31M^rdtm24

At the beginning ofdre year
Increased/issued duriog the year

No, of shares No, of shares (t in Lkh8) ({ in lal'lrs)
109,231,169 109,231,169 10923.12 10,923.12

B.lance .t the end of the year t@?3t516I, t@231169 10,923.t2 10,v23.12

c) Terms/ rights attached to equity Bhares

Equity sher€B

The Company has only one class of equity shrres having r par value of t10 per share. Each holder of equity shffes is entitled to one vote per share. The
Company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by dre Board ofDirecto{s (if any) is subject to the approval of shareholders in dre

eflsuiflg Aflnuxl General tr{eedng

ln the event of liqui&tion of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of rll
preferential ainounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity sheres held by the shareholder.

d) Shareholding in the Company ofthe holding compaEy .trd it6 sub6idi.rie6:

e) Details of sh.reholders holding more than 50lo 3h.res in thc Compa[y

Clase ofshare and shareholder 31 March 2025 31M^rchz}2A 3lM*chA?3 3lMarch2024
No. of rhares No, of oharee o/o % holding

Equity 3ha.B of t10 eech tully paid up
DLF Limited (including nominees thereof) '109,231,030 109,231,030 99.990/, 99_990/.

f) Aggtegate number of shates .llotted as fully peid up pucuarrt to contract(s) other th.n ca3h du.ing drc period of five years irrmediately
preceding the .eporting date

Allorted lo 31Merch m25 3lMtch 24 llM^.chm22 3lMatch2f'2l

DLF Limited (equity share of{10 each) 15.154.353

*All of these shares have been allott€d pusuant to scheme of amrlgamation.

g) Details ofshares held \ promoters/pmmoter group
As at 31 Ma.ch mzi

Class of shares Shareholder Relation 31March 202s SlMztdr2tlt
Equity shares of{10 each

Equit, shares of?10 each

DLF Limited (rncluding nominees thereo{)

Lodhi Ptoperty Company Limited

Holding Company

Fellow Subsidiary

109,231,030

139

109,231,030

139

Total l@231\169 1092315169

Shares held by promote.s at the end of the yeer

DLF Limited

Lodhi Property Companv Limited
otal &

No, of
shares at the
beginniag of

the year

Chenge
d*irg

the
yeal

0.01

tw2j\169

109,231,030

139

109,231,030

139

No. of shares
at the end of

the year

o/o of
Totel

Sharee

% Chang€
during the yeer



DLF flome Developers Limited
Notes to ihe standelone linanci.l stetements for the vear €nded 3l [,arc'|.zlJ2l

AB 
^t 

3l r0,,Ich m21
Sharcs held by promoters at dre erd of the year No. of

shares at the
beginning of

rhc year

Change
duriag

the
y€ar

No. of shares
et the end of

the year

Vn ol
Total

Shares

o/o Cha.rrge
during the ye.r

DLF Limited 109231930 109231930 99.99%
Lodhi Limited 139 139 0.01o/"

t@2i1\169 100.0(P/"

(Thi! q&:' t^ but' i"t.',tia"ah Llt bhrk)



DLF HoEc Developers Linited
Notes to the standalone fin.ncial statemetrts for the yeer eaded 31 Match 2025

17 (B). Prefer€nce share capital

Authorised preferelrce share capital
805,790,000 (31 NIarch 2024: 760,790,000) preference shares of {100 each

Reconciliation of authorised share at dre

b) Reconcilietion of shares at dre and at the end of the

31 M.rch 2025

({ ia lakhs)

805,790.00

805,7m.00

3l Match ?.024

({ ir l.kh8)

760,790.00

760,n0.00

and et the ead ofthe

Iseued, subscribed and paid-up capital
628,544p00 (31 Nlarch 2024 | 628,544,Cf,r0) 570 optionally convetible redeemable ptefereoce shares
("OCRPS") of {100 each

628,544.00 628,544.00

628,544.00 628,544.00

c) Terme/ rights attached to preference ehares
The Company has issued oCRPS which caries a 6xed non cumulative dividend @ 5% p.a. The same ate redeemable ot converible at the option of
the Company, eithet by convesion into 10 equity shares having face value of {10 for every preference share of {100 at afly trrne on or before
financial year 2029-30 (at par and shall rank pari-passu in all respect with the existing equity shares) or be redeemed at the efld of 10 years at < 100
each fot cash at issue price. [,{so refer note 3(v)]

of the

e) Details of sha.eholders more th.n 57o sheres in the

f) Details of ahates held by promoters/promoter group
As .t 3l Ma.ch 2025

A6 at 31 March 202

in the and its subsidiarics:

3lMatch?lAPrefcrence ehares 31 M.rch m25 31March2025 3l Match 202/
(t in lakhs) ({ in

refer noteto

760,790,000

No, of sheres

80s,790,000

At the beginning of rh€ year

Balatrce .t the end of the

Inctased the

No. of shares

760,790,000760,790,000

45,000,000
160,790.N760,790.00

45,000.00

805,790.00 760,7m.00

Preference ehar€s

628,544,000 628,544,000 628,s44.00 628,544.00

the bcgitrtring of the ycar
theIncreased/issued

at the end ofthe

31 Merch 2025

624,544,N0

No. of sharer
37 ]0'{z'tcb ?.024

628,544,000

No, of shares

3lMatch2O25

628,544.N

ln
llI0dzlrcln2O2

628,544.00

ia lakhs)

Class of sherer Sharcholder Relation 31March Zl25 3lMarclr2024
OCRPS of{100 each DLF Limited Holding Company 628,544,000 628,544,000

Chss of share and shareholder 37Match2025
No. of shares

31l0.!,arch2024

No. of eh.res
3lMatch202J

%
3lMatch2O24

Prefcreace ehares of?100 each futly paid up
DLF Limited 628,544,000 628,544,000 100.00% 100.00%

Shares held by promoters at the cld of rh€ No. of
she.es at the
beginaing of

the year

Change
during

the
year

No. of sh.res
.t the etrd of

the year

Vo of
Total

Shares

oh Chatge
duriag the year

DLF Limited 628,544,000 628,544,N0 100.0tr
628J44,000 628,544,000 100.00%

Shares held by promotetR at the etrd ofthe No. of
sharcs at the
begioning of

dre year

Change
during

the
ycaa

No. of ehares
at the e!!d of

the year

oh ol
Total

Shares

oh Changc
durhg the y€at

Limited 628,544,0N 62A,544,O00
628,544,000 628,544100

100.No/o
Total

100.00%

Ohir Qaee * intntionalt hf blatk)



DLF Home Develope6 Limited
Notes to the statrdalone financial statements for the year ended 3lMatch 2_025
18. Other equiry

Equiqr component of compulsorily convcrtible debentures ('iCCD")
Rese.ves and surplus

Capital reserve

Debenture redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve

Securities premium

Gmeral reserve

Retained eamings

Othet comprehensive income
Equity instrumeflts through other comprehensive income

Movement as belos:

Equity component of compulsotily coavenible debenrures ('!CCD")
As per last balaace sheet

Reserves and surplus

Capital rescrve
As per last balaace sheet

Adiusunent on account ofmerger (refer note 56)

Debenture redemptiotr rcseft e
As per last balance sheet

Add: Transfer ftom retained eamings

Capital redemptioa rasetve

As per last balence sheet

Securities ptemium
As per last balance sheet

Geaeral teserve

As per last balaflce sheet

Retained e emings
As per last balance sheet

Adjustment on account of merg€I (refer flote 56)

Pro6t for the year

Other comptehensive income

Transfer to debenture redernption reserve

Preference dividend proposed [refer note 39 (b)]
Nct deficit ilr statement of profit .nd loss

Odrer comprehensive income
Equity instrumetrts through oth€r comprchenaive iacome
,{s per Iast balance sheet

,{dditions duting the year

Items that q'ill not be reclassified to statement ofprofit atrd loss

31Match2O25
(t in lalirhs)

249,300.N

4,065.34

6,000.00

1AO2.27

405,592.98

16,O20.91

53,509.36

4,065.34

952.61 759.77

736,843.59 676,146.85

31 March 2025 lll0larch 2O2A

in lalrhs ia lakha)

249,300.00 249,300.00

249,300.00 249,ilo.00

4,065.34

31l|darch 202/
in Iakhs

249,300.00

4,065.34

1,4U.21

405,592.9a

16920.97

(ee4.48)

8,048.96

Q,983.62)
4,065.34

6,000.00

6,000.00

1,402.27 1,402.27

\q2.27 \q2.27

405,592.98 405,592.98

n5,592.98 4n5,592.98

16920.97 16,020.91

(87,380.40)

(1,270.34)

87,663.98

F.72)

759.77

16,020.97 t6,020.97

(ee4.48)

91,952.35

(21.31)

(6,000.00)

1,427.20)

53,509.36 (ee4.48)

759.77

192.90

328.95

430.82

952.67

Total

(lb;: spaa *;ntcanonalt Lf btak)

736,843.s9 676,146.85



DLF Homc Developerc Limited
Notes to the staodalo[e financial statements for the year en&d 3l][f:a.ch2025

Nature and purpose of aeseav€s

Equity compotrent of compulsotily convenible dcbentutes (rrCCD")
The Company has issued 2,493,000,000 Compulsoril,r, Convertible Debefltures (CCDS) of I 10 each having coupon rate of 0.0170. .\t the optiofl of
holder, these CCDs are convertible into fixed number of equity shates in one or more tanches, with in a period of 10 years from the date of
allotment. This has been classified as equitv instrumeflts as per Ind AS-32 "Fiflancial [nstruments: Presentation".

Rescrves atrd surplus
Capital reserve

Capiral reserve was created under the previous G-{-\P (erstwhile Indian G-d\P), out of the profit eamed ftom a specific transaction of capital
nature. Further it also include adiustmeflt oo account of merger i.e. the excess of net assets takm over against the tespective investrnents cartied in
Transferot Companies, refer note 56. Capital tesewe is not aveilable for the distribution to the shareholders.

Debenture redemption .e6erve (DRR)
Debenture Redemption Reserve of 107o of the value of debentures has been created in accordance with Rule '18 of Companies (Share Capiral and
Debentures) Rules,2014 against redeemable Non-Convetible Debenores (I.,JCD) issued by the Company. The anounts credited to the debenture
redemption reserve may oot be utilized by the Companv except to redeem debentures in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013.

Capital redemptiotr reserve

The same has been created in accordance with ptovision of Companies ,{ct, 201 3 for the buy back of equity shares in earlier years and ofl account of
merger.

Securitier premium
Securities ptemium includes premium on issue of shares and inctease of shares thtough conversion of compulsorily convertible debentutes and on
account of merger. It will be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 201 3.

Gencml resewe

Uoder the etstwhile Companies Act 1956, general reserve was created through an annual trensfer of net income at a specilied percentage in
accodance with applicable regulations. The purpose of these transfers was to ensurc that if a dividend disuibution in a given yeat is mo rc th?;n 7lo/o
of the paid-up capital of the Company for that year, then the total di\.idend distibution is less than the total distributable results for that yerr.
Consequent to inttoduction of Companies Act, 2013, the requiremert to mandatorily transfer a specified percentage of the flet profrt to gefleral
reserve has been withdrawn. However, the amount previous\ tansferred to the genetal reserve can be utilised only in accotdance with the specific
requirements of Companies Act, 201 3

Retaitrcd eamings

Represent sulplus/(deficit) in statement ofprofit and loss.

Othet comprchensive income
Equity hstrumetrt8 through other compreheasive income
The Company has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of cettain investrnents in equity secudties io other comprehensive income. These
changes are accumulated u,ithin the FVOCI equity investrnents reserve within other equity.

(Ihir W is i,lt.,trioralb bl bklk)



DLF Home Developers Limited
Notes to the strndalotre fi[ancial st.tedrents for the vcar ended 3lM,Ltehz02i

Current meturiqr oflong term
bo.rowing6

SlMttch02{ 3lM,tcla2025 3lMatcb2,OA
(t ia lekhe) (t in larrhs)

59,459.13 59,800.78

193.96 653.16

Noo-current

31 March 2025

(t in lakhs) in lekhs)

___j18srJ1_j2:qryjl
Rqrayment terms and eecudty discloeure for rhe ouEtanding lot,g tenn borrosings as on 31 Merch 2025 end 3lMratch 2|i24 t

Secured debeatues - redeemable, non-convertible debentutes
During the previous 1-ear, the Company had alloted 60,000 senior, Secured, Rated, Listed, Redeemable, Guaranteed, Rupee Deooninated Non-
Convertible Debentures of the face value of I 1.00 lakh each at par, amounting to ( 60,000 lakhs by way of pri\,?te placemeflt. Non convertible
debentures of t 59,859.73 Iakhs (net of transaction cost) (31 March 20241 59,800.78 lakhs) are secured by wey of iad passu charge on the immovable
PtoPertv situated at New Delhi, owned by fellow subsidiary Companv and corpomte guarafltee of the holding company and fellow subsidiary company.
The Debmtures carry a coupofl rate of 8.50 70 paable armualy and the outstanding amount is dre for redemptiJn on i o iprn2021.

Out of the total proceeds of { 60,000.00 lakhs from issuance of said debmtues, the Company has utilised { 40,000.00 lakhs till March 2025 in accordance
with the Debenture Trust Deed and th€ retnaining proceeds of i 20,000.00 lakhs are invested in 6xed deposits as at 31 ]Uarch 2025.

Rqte of iDtereot:

The Company's total borrowing have a effective wedhted average contractual fl;te of 8.12ok (31 Mzrch 2O2A:8.42olo) pe! annum calculated using the
interest rate effective as on 3'l lvlarch 2025.

Iran Covetrants:

Borrowings contain certain debt covenants relating to security cover, net debt to tangible net wonh ratio, which has to be complied basis consolidated
finaflcial statements of holding company, which have been complied with.

The Company has not defaulted on any loan pa1'rnent.

Z). Other fnancial liabilities - No[-current
Security deposits

31 March I25 3lMttcln?l2A
({ in lakh6)in lekhe)

193.96 653.16

19. Borowinge (non-current)

Secrrred

60,000 (31 Nlarch 2024 : 60,000) 8.50% Non convettibte
debentures @ { 1.00lakhs each

21. Provisioss - Non-curreat
Ptovision for gratuity (refet nate 44

22. Other noo-cutrent li.bilities
Defered incornex

3lli,datch2Ji,25

(t in lakhs)
3lMarch?J2/

in lakho)

1,242.(4 I,401.36

1"242.64 1,401.36

3lMatchfrzs 3ll[,'.ttchfr2y'.
(lin lakhs) ({ ia lekhr)

3.27

3,n
* The deferred income relates to difference of ptesent value of security deposits received and actual amount received and is released to the staremert ofprofrt and loss on sttaight lirc basis over the tenue of lease.

(fhis space has beer intentionally left blank)



DLF Home Developers Limited
Notes ro the etendalotre finlnciat st.tements for rhe yc.r ended 3l March Z)25

23. Borro*ings (curent)
Unsecured *

l,oans frorn related parties (tefer note 4|
l,oans from bodv corpotates

Uneecured Iran from r€L.ted partie atrd other6:
# unsecured loan of { 57,507.76 lakhs (31 }far ch 2024: I Ba}81.76lakhs) is repayable on demafld to the l€nder.
R.te of ink.est:
Refer note 19 for effective weighted average rate ofinteresr on borrowings.
The Compa[y has not defaulted on any loans payrnenr

Z, Trade and other payebles^
Due to micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 43)

Due to other than micro enterprises and small eoterprises I

?AMtchN2i 3tMttch 24
({ in lakhs) (t tu l.kh6)

3lMttch2A25 3l},f.ztch2l%

(t inlakhs) (a in lakhs)

12,012.96 10,945.15

29,646.12 27,244.24

41,69.08 38,189.39

s7,507.76 138J81.76

53,398.95

4,r08.81

134,212.95

4,108.81

lll

I Due to related panies { 8,367.83 laLhs (3'l March 2024:1 5,026.6|lakhs) (rcfer flote 47)
^Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normrlly settled g0-l2o da,.s terms.

Trade

Trede

Bchedule as at 31 March Z)25

echedule es et 31 March 202

* Includes retention monies with fespect to contracmrs, which become palable after satis$,ing the terms and conditions of theit respective cofltracts.3- _
In respect of toral oursranding dues of micm enterprises and small enterprises b€yofld the period of45 days from the due date and also as meotiofled iflthe form I{SN{E 1 6led by the Company with RegisEar ofCompanies, there has been delar in pament to these tr{Sl\{E vendors due to non_submission ofrequisite documents b!. the respecrive vendors,

Not due for fmm the d.te
[.ess then 1

year
1-2 years 2-3 yeers Morc rhen 3

ycam
Total

Undisputed*

Due to micro enterprises and small enterptises t 7,871.98 1,097.67 1,296.10 1,147.21 11012.X

Due to othet than micro enterprises and small t,92a.04 17,112.34 981.56 I,694.36 3,883.85 n,@.1s

to miqo eote4)rises and small entetprises

Due to other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises

2,025.91 2,025.n

3,y4.04 ,044.32 2,079.?3 z,vn.6 7,657.03 41,699.08

in lakhe)
from thefor drteNot due

Less th.n I
year

1-2 years 2-3 yeerr More than 3
yeata

Totd

Due to micro mrerprises and small enterprises I

to other thari micro enterprises and small
ente4)ises

Dtuputed
Due to micro eflterplises and small mterprises

to other than micro erterprises and small

UIldisputed*

ente4,nses

1,748.30

7 219.17

14,384.08

'1,546.81

3,492.27

735.34

688.00

1,443.83

2,U5.97

4,90s.62 25,218.2t

2,025.97

10,945.15

1,748.9 4,fi3.25 5,039.08 1,421.34 8,375.42 3{t,189.39

o

:t ((rx
a,

E

and the delav is not attributable to the Companv.
which lus been acknowledged by the vendors. Heoce, the Company is unable to process their payrneflts



DLF Home Developers Limited
Notes to the staadelone fin.nciat Etatements for the ye.r caded 3lMatch 2A2S

25. Other fiaaocial liabilitiee - Curreat,t
Securio deposits 

#

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings #

Payable to customers

Deposit received under development agreement v/ith related parry *
Regisuation charges received

Others #

* Cam iog amount of these financial liabilities are reasonable appmximation of their fat values.
# 

For amounr due to related parties, refer note 47.

26. Other crrrrent liabilitics

Deferred income^

Reveoue received in advance

Contracr liabilities (refer note 28)

Payable for cost to completion
Staruton" dues

Other payable '6:

27. Provisiotrs - Currcnr
Provision for employee beoefits

Provision for gratuity (refer note 42)

Provision for compensated absences

Provision for bonus

Provision for contingency t

Provision for proposed dividend on preference share [refer note 39 @)]

5 Movement ofprovisiotr for conti[gency:
Opening

.\dd: Provision during the year

t*ss: Ad justmeat/utilised

Clooing

The provision pertain to ptobable liabiliw in respect of certain ongoing customer disputes of the co'npafl)

3lMttch?125 3lMtch2O?A

(t in lekhe) (l in lakhs)

28,943.74 30,391.93

31March2025 3ll'{ttch2L?A
({ ia l*he) ({ ia lakhs)

3,063.87

12,440.52

2,0u.u
10,326.73

963.21

24.51

7,531.53

1,895.'13

14,59'7.99

992.91

2,58f.45

3.80

394.83

425,368.39

9,610.98

2,383.@

6,318.01

51.08

0.97

0.56

1,679.88

3lMarch202r'
({ in lakhs)

^ The deferred income relates to difference of presenr r,alue of securiry deposirs received and actual -orrr, ."."ir.dffia
profrt and loss on straighr line basis over the renure oflease.

r4l Includes amount received of I 2,000 lakhs from Bharat Coking Coal LirDited (one of the subsidiary of coal India Limited) as per drection of the
Hon'ble High Coun otder dated 17 August 2022. The Cornpany has submitted a corporzte guaraotee of equivalent arnormt. Also refer note +1(B)(vi).

3l March 2025 31March2//l4
(t inlakhs) ({ in lekhe)

17.6A

471,714.20

10,699.21

4,080.49

6,478.69

211.53

1423a

0.56
'1,679.88

31A21.20

$$n.ss 1,732.49

493,0il.27 u4,079.10

the statem€nt of

31 M.rch m25
({ in lakhs)

1,679.A8 2,105.73

1,679.t8 1,679.88

(fhir t?dcr har brrn itlt Miomh lqt, bhik)



DLF Home Developerc Limited
Notes to the standalone finencial st.rements for the yeer ended 31 March 2025

28. Revenue from opeaations

Revenue from contract with customerE
Revenue from sale of land, plots, constructed propenies and othet development
activities^

Recreational Faci.litv lncome
Amount fotfeited on properties^

Totat (A)

R€ntal income (B)

Other operating revenue

Service and maintenance income^

Compersation cceived against cancellation of agreemenf
Total (C )
Totel (A+B+C)

^Timing of revenue r€cognition
Revenue recognitioo at a poiot of time
Revenue recognition over period of time
Total rcvenue from contr4cts with customer6:i

x Does not includes income arising ftom Ind AS 1 I 6

Contract balances

Tnde receivables from contrxcts wirlt customer under Ind AS 115 (refer oote 14)

Contract assets (refer flote 9)

Contract liabilities (refer note 26)

Movement of conkact liability
,\mounts ioduded in conftact liabiliries at the beginning of the year
-{mount teceived/adjusted agaiast contract liability duting the year

Petfomrance obligations satis6ed dudng the yeatt
ADouots included in conract Iiabilities at the end of the year

Movement of contact assets

Cooract assets at the begioning of the par a

.{mount billed / admnce reftrnded dutiag the year

Con&act assetg at the the end ofthe vear #
$ Includes < 92,725.27 lakhs (31 l,t^rch)OZq ,
# 

Net of adrances receir,.ed

3ll0I,atclr2O25 3TMatch ?-024

in lakhs) in lakhe)

184,192.74 180,411.68

168.80

331.52

167.28

194.94

184,693.06 l8o,7B.n

2,252.88 2,647.aa

8,809.50

3,729.08

9,108.57

12,538.58 9,108.57

199,$4.52 192,53/,.!5

Contract assets ate iaitiallv recogmsed for reveou€ eamed on accouot of coritracts where revenue is recogoised over the period of time as
receipt of considetation is conditional on successfirl completion of petformance obtgations as per contract or echievement of milestones.
Once the perfotmance obligation is fulfilled and milestones for invoicing are achieved, cootract assets are classifted to Exde receivebles.

Conttact liabilities include amount received from crrstomers as per the instalments stipulated io the buyer agreement to deliver prcperties
once the properties are completed and cofltrol is transferred to customers.

Set out below ia the amount of revenue recognised ftom:
3lMarch?.025 3lMttch2]0A

186,627.39

10,604.25

,9723L64

47,238.25

1,232.88

471,714.20

425,368.39

230,538.55

(184,192.7 4)

3,708.78

Q,475.e0)

\232.88

173,432.61

16,449.86

189,882.47

44,433.66

3,708.78

425,368.39

216,817.88

388,962.',tg

(1 80,41 I .68)

7,835.83

(4,127.05)

(t in lakhs) (t in lakhs)

471J14.20 425368.39

{81,880.171akh8 lecognised out of openiog contract liabilities.

3,708.78



DLF Home Developers Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 3l March Z)25

Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the st tement ofprofit and loEs with the cotrttacted pdce
3l Marcli 2025 3tMarch 2.OA

(t in lakhs) (t in taktrs)
Rewenne as pet conuacted price 210,459.84 207,j4j.22
Adiustments
Otlet adjustrnents (tebares etc.) (13,228.2O) (17,864.75)

189,882.4?197,23L64
Petfotmance obligation
Infotmation about the Company's pedormance obligations for matedal con&acts are summarised below:
The perfotmance obligation of the Company in case of sale of tesidential plots and apartnents and commenial office space
is satisfied once the unded;viag unit is complete in accotdance vitfi codtract with customers and the contol is transfered to
the customets.

The customet makes the payment for contracted ptice as per the installrnent stipulated in the tespective Buyer's Agteement.

Revenue ftom Co-development ptoiets
Co-development ptojects whete the Company is acting as contractor, rewenue is recognised io accordance with the terrns of
the co-der''eloper agteements. Uqdet such contracts, assets created does oot have an altemative use and Compaoy has an
enforceable tight to paymeot. The estimated ptoject cost includes constructioo cost, development and coostructioo materia!
iatemal development cost, extemal development charges, botrowing cost and overheads of such project, The estimates of tle
saleable atea and costs ate reviewed periodically and effect of any changes in such estimates is tecognized in the pedod in
which such changes are deterrnioed. Howevet, when the total protect cost is estimated to exceed total revenues from the
project, the loss is tecognised immediately.

Also rcfet note 3(i)

The transactioo ptice of remainiog perfotrnance obligations (rmsatisEed ot partially uosatisEed) as at 31 tr{alch 2025 is {
978,025.41 lakhs (31 \latch 2024: { 1,117,094.21 lakh|. The same is expected to be recognised within 1 to 5 yeats.

37Match2O25

({ in lakhs)
3lMatch2024
(t in lakhs)

29. Other income
Interest from

Bank deposits

Customers

Loans and advances

Debentures

Income tax tefirnds

Others

Financial assets at amortised cost

Income fmm investments
Dividend income ftorn shares

Profit from partnership firm

Othet non-operating income
Undaioed balances aod excess provisions written back
Gain recognised pursuant to merger (refet note 56)
Gain oo sale of propeny, plant and equipment
l\fiscellaneous hcome

20,986.74

333.85

13,573.95

138.91

420.35

3,909.39

l,3M.t7

10,441.20

1,277.20

12288.s6

27.15

166.93

3,435.15

569.03

511.11

28,776.33

330.23

0.36

792.91

4t\460.63

14,014.75

18,956.14

85.76

3,056.65

4.35

84.87

419.45

74,sn.28 29,135.78



DLF Home DevelopeE Limited
Notes to the srand.lone finrtrcial st.tements fo, the year erded 31 i/tatchm2S

30. Coet ofland plots, developmetrt righE, constructed properties end others
Cost of land, plots, constructed properties and other development activities
Cost ofrecreational facility (CIub) lrefer note 58 (a)]

Cost of maintenance sewices [refer note 58 (b)]

31. Employee benefits expeme
Salaries, wages and bonus
Contdburion to provident and orher fuods
Staff welfare expenses

Gratuity (refer flote 42)

Less:- Transferred to invmtories (consruction work in-progress)

32 . Finatrce co€ts
Interest expenses on:

Debentures

l,()arrs frorn relared parry and othen (refet note 47)

Interest on arnottised cost instrum€Irt
Interest on lease liability (refer note 44)
Interest on delay in payment of taxes

Guarantee, finance and bank charges

l,ess:- Transferred to ioventories (constructioo work in-progress)

33 . Depreciation aad emortisatio! exp€nse
Depreciation on property, plant afld equipment (refer note 4)
Amottisation of intangible assets (refer note 6)

Depreciation of right-of,use assets (ref€r note 44)

(Ibit rpaec has l*cn hxdomt! tcf btaak)

3l March2-O25

Itr
3lMtch2/J24

rn

108,299.00

155.42

354.40

97,796.69

129.a\

313.64
108,80r.82 2&.14

31Matc,h2025 3lMatclr202/
({ in

14,600.92

481.11

201.92

283.14

14,039.4a

436.42

261.16

2(A.6A

15,002.34

(1,981.24)

13',02Lto

15,567.69

(4,116.

11,451.05

3lMarclrfr25
ta

3lMatcl2-O2y'

5,124.93

10,380.57
598.89

9,227.51

26.47

67.12

171.53

227.15

10318.73

(228.62)

10,090.11

154.08

8.51

255.70

15,923.79

Q,672.76)
t2,25103

3l Marcbfri2-5 31 Match 2024

in lakhe)

1,953.17 2,M.2t

1,511.27

33.08

402.82

1,5s8.89

49.31

398.0'l



DLF Home Developers Limited
Notes to the stafld.lone fin.ncial st.tements for the year eaded 3ll/|zrtch N%

34 . Othe r expenses

Rent

Brokerage

Rates and taxes

Electricie, fuel and watet
Repair and maintenance

Building

Constructed propenies/colonies

Plant and machinery

Othen
lnsurance

Travelling and conveyance

Business promotion
Legal and professional^

Director's situng fee

Commission to Non-Executive Directors
Allowance for doubtful debts/allowance fm expect€d credit losses (net)**
Amomt written off (iocluding bad debts)

Chadty and donation (refer note 40)

Claims paid

i\{iscellaneous expmses

*" locludes < Nil (31 Nlarch 2024: <
making suitable efforts to recover the
on a prudent besis.

Note :

^ PayDents to auditorr
As .uditoc
Audit fee

In other capacity:

Certilicatiofl and other matters

Reimbursement of expenses

35. Income tax €xpence
(a) IDcome t x expense reportcd in the statemetrt ofprofit and loss comp.ises:
Cuffeilt tax

Tax relatirig to earlier years*

Deferred tax expense recogflised in statemenr of profit ard loss#
Incom€ tax cxpense reported in tbe st.temeat ofprofit and loso

(b) Orher comprehensive income
Re-measurement gains on defined benefit plans
Net qain ofl FVOCI equitv instrurnents

1'855.00 lakhO being net provision made against a property advance given in earlier,'ea,.. while the compaoy is
aforesaid advance, including initiation of legal proceedings, the company has recorded a provision against the same

3ll0lerch?lJ25
ln

23,32,.3s

llMatch20?5
({ i"

263.34

355.63

3lMttchfr25
in lakhs)

37 927.04

16,658.68

53,685.72

o.1n
45.98

____lE8L

3lMarch XA
({ in

296.17

2,866.55

814.65

33.87

406.95

2,720.50

889.93

45.51

'181.09

1,58/..92

387.39

749.79

109.11

304.40

5,554.91

6,015.14

33.39

90.15

1,585.01

31.29

988.54

249.53

1,385.85

1,645.60

160.66

9a3.96

93.89

262.78

2,375.22

4,868.59

4.18

2,322.64

194.39

757.30

95.63

1,376.99

14.50

11.79

31.15

12.81

t9,4n.a

3lMarchm24
ln

263.95

308-s7

31Match20Z
Itr

3,230.80

1,126.38

16,851.57

21208.75

(2.63)

_____12.631



DLF Home Developers Limited
Notes to the strndalone fEancial statesrents for the year ended 31 March 2025
(c ) Reconciliation of t.x expeDses arrd the accou[tiag profit multiplied by statuto.y income tax ratc for the ye.. indic.ted .re as follows:

31Match2fr25

Accounting proFrt before tax

Statutory iocome tax rate of 25.168yo (31 \lxch 2024 : 25.168oQ

Tax efrect ofarnounts Eticb .re not deductiblc (tax.ble) in calcul.ting t.x.bte income:
Tax impact ofexempted income for reversal of impaiment ofloans afld other recei\,-ables, etc.
Tax impact of expenses not deductible urder Income Tax Act, 'l 961

Tax impact for assets assessed under house property

Tax reversal on account ofme4er (refer flote 56)

Tax effect of tax demand under Yimd se Vishwas scheme*

Deferred tax reversal on account of change in capital gain tax rate#

Unrecognised deferred tax utilised/recognised dudng the year

Others

Net profit .ttributable to equity ehareholders

Profrt for the yeat

Weighted average number of equity shares @ace r,alue of 11 0 each) for the calculation of
Basic EPS

Basic (EPS) (Q

Calculation of Veighted average number of equity sh.res for Basic EPS:
Weighted average aumber ofequity shares

Weighted avemge number of CCDs

Weighted average nr:mber ofequity shares (Face value of {10 each) for the calcularioo of
Diluted EPS

Diluted (EPS) (a)

Calculetion of Veightcd .ve.age nunber ofequity sh.res for Diluted EpS:
Weighted average number of equitl shares

Weighted average number ofCCDs
Weighted average number of OCRPS

145,638.O7

36,654.19

(8,4ss.39)

1,344.39

384.69

(6,551.96)

43,585.00

(4,90s.s9)

(8,566.6s)

203.04

53,685.72

91,952.35

2,602,231 ,169

3.53

3lMatc}r20.24
(t in l.khs)

104,872.73

27,401.@

0,84s.70)
188.01

521.34

1,12634

88.37)

21208.75

* Tax teJating to eadier years, for the year ended 31 N{arch 2025 includes { 43,585.00 lakhs in respect of Income tax litigations for past assessment years for
which the Company has opted to settle under Vivad se Yishwas 0 s\) Schem€. The amourt disclosed is ner of reversal of tax expenses of ( 6,557.96 lalhs
on account of merger, refer note 56,
# 

Pursuant to change in tax rate on long term capital gain on enactment of the finance Act 2024, the Company has reessessed deferred rax assets /liabilities.
This has resulted in reversal of deferred tax liabilities of { 4,905.59 lakhs during the year.

36. Eaming per equity ehare (EPS)

Eaming per share ("EPS") is determined based ofl the net profit amibutable to the shareholders' of rhe Company. Basic earnings pet share is computed
using the weighted average of number of equity shares outstandirg during rhe }'ear. Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year
attributable to equity shareholders (after adjustiog for interest on the redeemable pteference sharcs) by the weighted average number of equity share
outstandi.S during the year plus the weighted number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity share into
equiq shares.

3lMucb?JJ2.5 31 March 202
(t in [akh4

41,6r!3.9a

2,602,231,169

3.37

4fi22r1,169 \ffiz231,169

109,231,169

2393,000,000

8,881 ,611 ,169

1.03

109,231,169

2,493,000,000

6,285,440 p00

1@,231,169

2,493,000,000

8,887 ,671 ,169

0.99

109,231,169

2,493,000,000

6,285,440,000

8,88?,671,169 8,887,671,169

(fkt $ad hat beu tut ,ttionalg lef blank)



DLF Home Developers Limited
Not$ to the st.ndalone finaocial st.tements fo. the ye.r etrded 31 Merch 2025

37 Fitr.ocid inskuments by c.regory

i) For amortised cost instnunmts, value the best estimate of fair }?lue. ir lekh.

* Investmeots h equity shares, prefermce shares aod debentures of subsidiaries, associates afld joint ventrxes, which are measured at cost as per [nd AS
27, "Separate Fioancial Statements" are not drsclosed here.
+* These Gnancial assets are mandatordy measured at fair lalue.
# 

These financial assets represmts investment in equity instnrments afld debentures desippated as such upon initial recogoition.

ii) Fefu vduee hierarchy
Financial assets are measured at fair value in the financial statement and ate grouped into three Levels of a fair value hierarchy. the thtee levels are

deEned based on the observabilitr of significant iflputs to the measurement, as follows:

I-evel t quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for Enancial insmrments.

I-evel2: inputs odler thao quoted prices included withio Lev€l 1 that are obseftable for the asset or liability, ei*rer direcdy or indirecdy
I-evel3: unobservable inputs for the asset o{ liability.

iii) Fiaencial essetr mc.surcd at feir value- feir velue me eeurements

Finencial essets meeeur€d at frir rulue- feir velue measurcments

lll

m

* lt includes CCD's (Compulsorily conv€rtible debentures), NCD'S (Noo convertible debenores),OCD\ (Optioaally convertible debentures) and
ROFCD\ (Redeemabte optionaly fily coovenible debentutes)

i9 Veluetion rechnique ured to determi[e fair value:

Specifrc valuatioo techniques used to rzlue financial mstruments include -
(a) the use of discounted cash flow method (rncome approach) for non-convertible debentures, optionally convenible debenores aad redeemable

optiona.lly 6rlly convertible debeotures.

(tt) the use of adjusted net asset value method for certaio equity iovesunents and cocrpulsorily convenible debenrures.

(c) ttaded (market) price basis recognised stock exchange for listed equity sharcs.

31]}I,rch2O2t SlMttch2O2AParticulars
FVTPL,I* FVOCT Amorti6ed FVTPL,I* FVOCI; Amortised cost

Financial rcsets
Investmcnte*

Equitv instruments

Debentures

Trade receivables

l,oans

Cash and cash equimlents

Other bank balances

Other Gnancial assets

128,935.90

1,531.73

500.00

41,727.92

148,024.14

19,394.04

39,381.43

247,610.95

37,081.18

1,298.85

500.00

44,483.38

13a,161.17

80,096.04

8'1,958.37

180,398.68

Total 128,935.90 2,0t7.73 s02,13r.4r 37,0t1.18 1,798.85 525$97.64

Financiel liabilities
Borrowings

Trade payable

t-ease liability

Other financial liabilities

117,361.49

4',1,699.08

1,855.38

29,137.70

198,182.54

38,'189.39

417.26

31,045.09

267,434.4Totel 190,059.65

31 Merch 2025 L€vel1 Level2 Ijvel3 Totel

Invc3tmen$ at FV:IPL
Investmmt in debentures*

Investments .t FVOCI
Investment in debentures

Investrneot itr equity 812.11

128,935.90

500.00

725.62

500.00

1.537.13

128,935.90

Totd fmanciel .ssetg 8t2.11 1r0,L61.52 1fi,973.63

3lMzrc\2O24 I-evel 1 Lrvel2 Level3
Investme s .t FVTPL
Investrnent io debentures*

Iovestmen$ at FVOCI
Investrnent in debentures

Iovesrnmt in equity 566.n

37,081.18

500.00

132.58

37,08'1.18

500.00

Totd

1

Totd Gnencial asscte 566.27 3A$13.76 38,880.03



DLF Home Developers Limired
Notes to the stend.Iooe fhaDcial statements for the ye.r erded 3l Mrrch 2025

v) The folowirg rable summarises the guantitative inforrDation about the significant unobservable inpurs used in level 3 fair va.lue measuements. See Gv)above for the valuation techfliques adopted.

Particulers Fair velue ae at
31 March 31 M&ch

2025 202/

Investment in €quiry 1,225.62 1,232.58
and CCDs

Sigdficent
unobs€w.ble

itrputs

Det.
31 Merch

m25
31 March

20u
17o increesc in

inputs
17o decreeee in

inputs

NAV per 114. l1 31 March 2025 -
{ 12.26lakhs

31 Mxch 2024
l12.33lalhs

31 Nlarch 2025
{ (12.26lalh,

31 March 2024 -
a 02.33 lakho

Discount rate 10. 31 llarch 2025 -

< (120.73 IaLh,
31 Marci2024 -

< Nil

31 Mzrch 2025 -
t 122.45 lakhs

3l March 2024 -

{ Nil

Discount rate 4.sff/r 31 Nlarch 2025 -
< (553.50 Lakh,
3l Match 2024
I (92.47 Lakhs)

31 Mxch 2025 -
{ 574.29 Lakhs

31 March 2024 -
189.54 Lakhs

Discormt rate 11 31 N{arch 2025 -
t (3,172.37lrkht
3l Mxch 2024 -

{ Nil

31 Match 2025 -
t 3,375.44 t lhs
31 March 2024 -

I Nil
Fair ma*et

value per
equity share

post

< 15129. l'15'129.50 31 Marcb 2025 -
{ 245.00 Lakhs

31 Mxch 2024 -
{ 245.00 lal<hs

3l Match 2025
t (24s.00 Lakh$
31Much 2024 -
{ (245.00 rakh,

Discount late 9 3'l March 2025 -
{ Nil

31 Matcl 2024 -
{ (5.90) Lalhs

31 Nlarch 2025 -
I Nil

31 M*ch 2024 -
{ 5.90 Lakhs

Investrnent in debmtutes
(ocD,

44,435.90

Investrnent in debentures

BOIJCDs)
20,000.00 10,000.00

Investment io debmtures
(ROFCDs)

40,000.00

Iovestmmt ifl debentures

EOFCDs)
24,500.00 24s00.00

lnvesanmt in debenores
(\.lon convenible
debentures)

2,581.18

+ the Company has considered increase/decrease in Net Asset value (fJA\) to arrive at sensitiviw analysis.
^ this tepresmts absolute number of fair values considering chaoges in inputs, keeping the other variables constaot Also, figures in btacket represents
negative numbels.

vi) The table the in level 3 items for the ended 31 M.rch 2025 atrd 3l March 20Zr ul
Notr convertibL

debentures

due to merppr of subsidiarv companies duriry

Gain/0oss) recogrrised in statement of
profit and loss

Ioterest income (net of receipt)

Gain recognised in other comprdhensive

Particulars

yeor

.t 01 Ap.il m23
during the year

As .r 31 March m24
the

Optiondly
convettible
debenturee

Equity
itrvestmetrts

92.51

642.89

e.82)

Compuborily
convertiblc
debentures

5m.00 3,060.00

(478.82)

Redeemeble
optioaally fully

conv€rtible
debenlureg
(ROFCD)

(6.8e)

34,006.89

10,000.00

732.5A 500.00 2,581.lt

due to merger of subsidlary companies durmg

Gaio/Qoss) recognised in statement of
profit and loss

Interest incorne (net of receipt)
recogdsed in other comprehensive

the E

Acquisitions during the year

ye:at

44,435.90

(6.e6)

I

34,500.00

50,000.00

tt 31 M,itch 2025 44,435.90 725.62 mrr[i]

I



DLF Hom€ Develop€B Limited
Notes to the staod.tro[e finenciel statemetrts for the ve.r ended 3lM,Ltch 2O2i

vii) Feir value of instrumelts me.sured er amortbcd co3t
Perticulers 31M^tchm25 3lMarcb202J

Carrying lzlue Fair value Cerryiag value Fair value
ETFFI'I!

Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

C)ther bank balances

Loans

Other fi.nancial assets

47,721.92

19,394.04

39,381.43

14E,O24.14

247,610.95

502,Xi8.48

47,721.92

19,394.04

39,381.43

148,024.14

247,610.95

44,483.38

80,096.04

81,958.37

138,761.17

180,398.68

44,44338
80,096.04

81,958.37

138,161.t7

1

Enaacial assets 502,138.48 52s,697.64 525,697.64

liability

1'rade payable

Other financial liabiliries

117,367.49

1,855.38

41,699.08

29,137.70

117,367.49

1,855.38

41,699.08

198,182.54

417.26

38,189.39

29 137.70 31

1 7,834.2t

198,182.54

417.26

38,189.39

31

267
finaacid liebilities

* This includes non-coovertible redeemable debentures issued by the companv afld there is oo cornparable instrumenr haviflg the similar terms and
conditiois with related securitv being pledged and hence the carring value of the debmtures r€presents the best estimate of'fair value.

I.vestments in equity shates of subsidiaries, associates and ioint vmtutes, which are measuted at cost as per Ind AS 27, ,,separate Financial Statements,,
are not disclose here.

The above disclosures is presented for Enancial assets and financial liabilities. Carr,ving value of financial assets and Enancirl Liabilities (ttade receivables,
cash alrd cash equivalents, other bank ba.lances, krans, other financial assets, borrowings, lezse liabilitl', trade payables end other financial liabilitiesj
represents the best estimate of fair value.

38 Fio.nciel risk m.aegement obiectives .nd poticies

The Company's principa.l finaocial liabilities compdse of loans and bortowings, tmd€ and other payables and other financial liabilities. The main purpose
of these financial liabilities is to f''rnce the Co@pany's oprerations afld to provid€ g.r"orrt i. to suppor irs operations. tte Compaoyt jrUcipA
financial assets ioclude loans, trade and other teceivebles, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its Lperations.

The Company is exposed to market dsk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Companv's senior management oversees the management of these risks. The
Coarrpany's senior manag€ment edvises on Enancial tisks and the appropriate financial dsk go\,.*L.. framework for the Compaay. The Company,s
financial risk activities are govemed by appropriate policies and procedures add t]lat finaaciJ risks ere identiEed, measued and managed in accordance
with the Company's policies and dsk obiectives. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for maaaging each of these risks, whicL ate
summadsed belovr

Riok m.tr.gement obiectives and policieg
The Co'mpanies' activities exposes it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. The Company's board of directors has overall respoosibiJity for the
est'nblishment and ovetsight of the Cornpany's risk management frarnework. This note explains the soutces of risk which the entity is exposed to and
how the entity manages the risk ard the relared impact in the fiflancial statemmts.

A) Credit dsk
Credit risk is the risk that a courterParty hils to discharge its obligation to the Company undet a financial instrument or custqner con$act leadiog to a
Enancial loss. The Compaoy's exPosure to credit risk is iflflueoced mainlr bv cash and cash equivaleflrs, trade receivables and fioancial assets measured at
amortised cost. The Company continuously mooitors defaults of customers and other counterparties afld ioco4,orates this information into its credit
risk controls credit risk related to cash aod cash equivalents and bank deposits is managed by only accepting highly rated banks and diversifying baak
deposits' other finalcial assets measured at amortized cost includes loans to employees, security depositsanJother'credit risk related to other 6nancial
assets is managed by modtoring the recoverabilitv of such arnounts continuously, while at the sanre time htemal control syst€m m place msur€ dle
arnomts ere within de6ned limirs.

a) Credit risk m.nagement
4 Cftdit n* di,l8

The Compaav assesses and manages credit risk of financial assets based on following categories errived on the basis of assumptiof,s, ioputs and factorsspecific to the class of fiaancial assets.

A: l,ow credit risk
B: Nloderate ctedit risk
C: High credit risk

for credit loss based on rhe

A. Low cedit risk
Arset

and cash equivalmts, other bank balances, 12 month expected credit loss / Life

financial assets

Basis of

loans, trade receivables and other expected credit loss

Provieion for credit losat

B, Lloderate credit risk Loans and other financial assets 12 month credit lossHigh credit risk trade receivables aod other financial assex Life fttre credit lossexpected f,y
for

the

of trade receivables, the Company recogaises a provision for lifetime expected credit loss.



DLF Home Developers Limited
Nore6 to the st.ndalooe finaDci.l srrtemcnts for the year eoded 31 M.rch 2025

Based on busincss environmmt in which the Company operates, a d€fault on a Gnancial asser is consideted when rhe countff pantl tuils to make
pa)'ments within the ageed time period as per contmct. l,oss rates reflecting defaults are based on actual credit toss experienie and considering
differences between current and historical ecrxromic corditions
+ -{ssets are *Yitten off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor declaring bankruptcv or a litigation decided against the
comPaoy The company continues to engage with parties whose balances are *yittm off aad attemp_ts to eniorce repayment Recoveries made ate
recognised in Statement of profit and loss.

in lal rs
Credit r.ting Perticulars 31 Merch Z)25

and cash equitalents, other bank balances, investmmts, 633,112.11
trad€ receivables and other fnancial assets

3lMzrch 2.OA

564,577.67
l,ow credit risk

credit risk tIade receivables other financial assets 18.53 1 198.20

b) Credit risk exposu.€
Provision for expected credit lossee

The Cocrpany pmvides for expected credit loss based on 12 month and lifetim€ expected credit loss basis for followiflg financial assets

31 Mrrch 2025 ltt

3l March 202

Expccted credit locs for rr.de receiv.ble under simplifi€d .pproach
The ComPanyt tmd€ receivables in respect of proiects does not have any expected credit loss as legal title is transferred through registry of ptoperties
sold is geoerallv carried out once the cornPany receives rhe €ntire paymeot In tespect of other tradl receivables, the Compan;considers provision for
Iifetime expected credit loss. Given the nature ofbusiness operations, the Company's trade receivables has low ctedit risk.
The Company trade receivable perraining to income ftom sale of power has higher credir risL and accordingly a.llowaoce for expected credit loss is
created on assessmmt ofeach ofsuch case

Reconcilietion of loss .llo*znce reccivables, loans and other 6tr.nci.l .s6ers- Trede ln

Particulem Estimated gross
carryiog

amouDt at
defeult

Iovestmmts 130,973.63

132,767.65

191,U7.m
19,394.04

39,381.43

receivables

Loans

Cash and cash equir,alents

Other ba.nk balance

Other financial assets

t05,930.64

Expecred credir

85,039.73

42,993.06

785.74

Carying amount net
of impairment

provision

130,973.63

41,727.92

148,024.14

19,394.04

39,381.43

247,610.95

172,818.53 633,1t2.11

Estimrted grosg
carrying

amoutrt at
default

Expected credit
lossee

Cenying emormt net
of impairment

provision

Investments 38,880.03
'130,519.08

179,883.39

80,096.04

81,958.37

226,438.96

38,880.03

44,483.38

13a,761.17

8q096.04

81,958.37

receivables 86,035.70

aad cash equivalents

Other baok balance

Other Gnancial assets 46,040.28 1

737,715,87 173,198.m .67

of lorr allowalce Trede
receivebler

Iraff Other financial
aaaets

Losa allo[roce on 1 202i 73 46J95.45 53,583.43
472.84 16.48forAllowance credit unclaimedexpected balances and trovrsrons

ba& (net) 08.87) (5,273.23) 0,5s9.63)

I-oss allorqnce otr 31 March 2024 86,035.70 41,1:22.22 46,040.28Add: Allo*ance for credit unclaimedexpected andbalaoces provision
back (".0

(ees.e7) 1,870.84 (1,2s4.54)

Irss allo$atrcc on 31 March 2025 85,039.73 42,93.06 44,785.74



DLF Home Developers Limited
Note6 to thc otandelone financiel statements for the year ended 31 Merch 2025

B) Liquidity rbk
Prudent liquiditv risk management implies maintaining sufEcient cash and marketable securities aod the availability of funding through an adequate

amount of committed credit facilides to meet obligations when due. Due to the oature ofthe business, the Compaoy maintains flexibilit-v ia funding by

maintainiry a\.ailabiliw under committed facilities.

Ilarugemenr monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position and cash and cash equiva.lents on the basis of expected cash flows. 'Ihe

Company takes into accowt the liquidity of the market in which the eotity opetates.

Meruritics of fmancial liabilitiee
The tables below analyse the Coopany's financial liabilities into relevant maturiq goupings bzsed ofl thek conEactuel rneturities and oo uadiscounted

basis.

(t in lal'h6)

Merch 2025 I-ess than 1

year
1-5 veer More than 5 year8 Totd

Borroviflgs (ifl cluding intereso

Lease liahilitv

70,393.49

487.85

41,699.08

3,063.87

70,200.00

1,633.41 220.OO

140,593.49

2,341.26

4r,699.08

3,257.83

13JE).35

payable

Securitv deposits

Other Gnancial liabilities

193.96

1

.37 2j20.00 ml,Tr1.01

(t in r"Lhs)

!1l0l*cn2O24 LBB than 1

ye.r
1-5 ye.r More then 5 yeare Totel

Borrowings (including ioteresQ

lease liability

Trade payable

146,318.50

166.19

38,189.39

20,066.48

75,300.00

203.60 264.tn
221,618.50

633.79

3t,1t9.39
3447.0E

20,066..4t

deposits o5J.lo

financial liabfities

2O7,534.44 76,156.76 254.O0 283,955.24

C) Market Risk

a) Intere3t rate dsk
i) LiabitticB

Interest rate risk is the risk that the feir velue or future cash flows of a financial instrumert will fluctuate because of changes in matket interest rates. The

Company's 6xed rate borrowiogs are cafiied at amorused cost. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk as defned in Ind AS 107, sioce neither

the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because ofa change in matket intetest rates.

The Cocrpany manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of 6xed and vatiable rate loans and borowings. Ke?ing itr view of cufient
malket sceoario,

Ifitcftrt rare itk $Qorrre
'Ihe ls to iflterest mte. Below is the overall of the

Perticulars 31 M.rch m25 31 March 2024

Variable rate

Fixed rate 117,361.49 1 182.54

Totel Ifl,X7,49 198,182.54

Sencitivity
Pro6t or loss and equirl is sensitive to higher/lower inteftst expeose ftom borowings as a result ofchanges in variable interest ({ in lekhe)

Particulers 3lM^rch2U25 31 Merch Z)24
Interest censitivity
Interest rates - increase by 100 basis points (100 bps) (31 N{arch 2024: 100 bp,
lot€rest rates decrease by 100 basis points ('100 bps) (3'l i{arch 2024: 100 bps)

ii) Assets

The Cornpany's 6xed deposits, interest bearing security deposits and Ioans are carried at 6xed mte. Therefore, the said asset oot subiect to intelest rate

risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the carrying amount flor the future cash flows will fluctuate because ofa chaoge in market interest rat€s.

b) Price risk
The Company's exposure to price risk arises ftom investrnmts hetd and classified as F\iIPL aod FVOCI. To manage the price risk arising from
investmmts in muoal funds, the Company diversifies its portfolio of rssets.

lIl
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u
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S€hsitiuit , arralyris
Pnft ot la$ and rq , it rcr/titit to k:@er/ hecrprier oJhtnant on tbe Conparrt?nftfor rkJcar _

ia lakbs)
31 M.rch 2025 31M.tch2024

setr3itivity
Price increase by 500 basis points - FVOCI
Price decrease by 500 basis points- FVOCI
Fair rzluc oelsitivig

40.61

(40.60
28.31

(28.31)

va.lue increase by 500 basis points- FVTPL
value decrease by 500 basis points- FVTPL

6,446.80 1,854.06

0,854.06)
61.63

Fair rztue increase by 500 basis points- FVOCI 61.28
Fait value dectease 500 basis points- FVOCI (61

d) Foreign currency risk
Foteign currency tisk is the risk that the fair value of futrue cash flows of financial instnrmeats will fluctuate because of the change in foreign curreocy
exchange rates. The company does oot have meterial iotemational tmnsacti@s atrd is oot exposed to foreign exchange ,ist arising from fo.eign
currency tfensactioos.

39 (e) Capitd manegcrnent
The purpose of the Company's cepital marhgeoetrt is:

- Safeguard their ab ity to continue as e goiag coacem, aud
- Mainuin an optimal capital sEucture to reduce the cost of capital
T'he Compaay oonitors capital on the basis of the carrying r,zlue of equity aod oet debt (net off cash aod bank balances iocludiry deposits s,ith bankr.

c) kgel texetion end accounting rirl
The Conrpany is presendy involved intovarious ludicia! adminbtratilr, regulatory end litigation proceedings cooceming matters arising iq the o(dinary
course of business operatioos including but not limited to persooal iaiury claims, commercials disputes, iax disputes, 

"l211d 
related disputes, customer

dispurcs and othir contracttal disputes. Many of these proceidings seek aa indetemriqate amo,-t of_da-"g.". Io iitu"tions where maoagemmt believes
that a loss arisiag ftocr a proceeding is probable and can reasooably be estimated, the Compaoy records tlie amount of the probable loss. As additional
informatiotr becoaes amilable, any potential liability related to these proceediags is assessed and the estioates are revised, if neccssary.

To,mitigete these risks, the Company employs in_house couosel aod uses ttrird party tax and legal experts to assist itr structuriog signi6cant traosactioos
and contricts. The Company also has systems end cotrtrols that ensure the timely detivety oi Eaancial information in order io meet contractual af,d
regulatory requiremens aod has ihplemeoted disclosure codtrols and Iaternal controls over financial reporting which are tested for effectivedess oo an
ongoing basis.

Change to aoy of the above laws, rules, regulatioos related to the Company's business could have a material ihpact on its 6nencial staternetrts.
Cortr?liaflce u'ith aay proposed chaages could elso result in sigoifrcant cost of the Company. Faiture to firlly .o-pty -ia various ]aws, nrles and
regulations may expose the Company to proceediflgs which may materially affect iE performmce.

The Cornpany manages its caPital stlucture and makes ediustmeots to it in the light of chaages in economic coaditions afld the risk cba4cteristics of the
underlying assets. In order to maintain or adiust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of divided paid to shateholdets, retum
capital to shareholdeG or issue new shares.

The Ratio is as follows:

* Net debt / cearing ratio has been restricted to Nil as rhe Cocrpaay has a oet cash position.

Divid€nd proposed

({ in

(t iD lalds)

Particulers 31M.rch2O2S 31Mar.ch2024
Borronings (current and oofl -cufrent) includitrg interest accrued

andCash bank baiances other banl balaaces atrd(induding witb banks butdeposits
bankexdudiag deposits pledge/lien)

Net debt (A) ,r

esuity

aod net debt (B)

129,848.01

(2,61,707.33)

2,05,714.07

(a68,015.2s)

13,7 6,310.71

13,7 6,310.71

13,15,611.97

13,15,613.97ratio

P.rticular.
31M.tch2025 3ll|ld.rclo20z.Proposed dividend on share

31,427.20

Dividend proposed oo optionally coovertible redeemable prefermce shates which carGs a 6xed dividend rate of5% p.a. aod is notr-cumulative. The

trXff#ltJf#.1*"Tl"Tl'j:#*'Jf:"H'":"1"'-*iv*'"*"ra"tributabreprotts as at3r uulJmis. n'".,-e beingnoo
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40. Cotpota* Social Responsibility (CSR)

Putsuant to Section 135 and other relevant provisions of tlle Companies Acg 2013 read with the Rules made thereuader
(the Act), an amouat of { 988.54 lakhs (31 N4atch 2024: I 257.29 bths) (teing 2oh of t\e avetage tret proEts of t}re
Company made duting the three immediately preceding Eaaocial yeas) was required to be contributed towards Corporate
Social Respoosibility (CSR) activities dudng fiaar.d yeat 2024-25 as detailed below.

* Natute of CSR activities iaclude ptomoting educational initiatives, healthcare, study for save the childten, environment
sustainability / preservation ptoiects, welfare fot homeless and specially abled projects and ptomotion of sports, skill
development training cente! among otiel progaams.

# The Company has ttaosfetted unspent CSR amount of{ 726.98 lakhs (31 March 2024: t Nil) to special accoulrt opened
under the Companies Act, 2013.

$ For related party (refer oote 4!

^ Includes amout dated to meged entities, refer note 56.

41. Contingeat liabilities and litigations:

(A) Cootingent liabittiea:

Patticulats

4. Claims againet the Company not ackaowledged as debt:

i) Tax demands in excess ofprovisions (pending in appeal$:

3l Match 2.025

(t in lakhs)
3lI0'{atchZJ,24

(< h lalfrO

Income tax demands * 432,606.64 417,978.55

Inditect tax demands** 25,978.71, 17,961.73

700.00 700.00

ii) Penalties imposed by Adjudicating Of6cer of Secudties and
Exchange Board oflndia ("SEBI') on the Company and its directots

[refer note - 41 @)(ii) below fot furthet details'1.

iii) kgal cases^ 10,389.22 10,346.33

x (i) There ate vatious disputes pending with Income Tax Authority, departrnent has raised detnands on account ofrzdous
disallowances pertaining to diffetent assessment years. The Company is contesting these demands, which are pending at
various appellate levels.

Patticulats 37 Nlatch ?,025

({ in lakhs)^
3lIe,f.arch?i'TA
(t in lalfia)^

a) Gross Amount to be spent by the Company dudng the yeat 988.54 257.29
b) Amout approved by the boatd to be spent during fie year 846.46 399.37

c) Amount spent in cash dudng the yeat on:
i) Consttuction/ acquisition of any asset

ii) For purposes other than (i) above * # 119.48 399.37

d) Adiustrnent ofexcess spent in previous yeal 142.08

e) Excess/(shortfall) at the end of the year 142.08

f) Toal of previous years shortfall
g) Reason for excess / (shortfatl) As per Arurual Action

PIan approved by the
Board of Directors

119.48

726.9A

As per Annual
Action Plan

apptoved by the
Board of Ditectots

h) Details of spent obligation-contribution to chaiitable trust I 399.37

i) Details related to unspent obliqation-onqoing projects
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Based on the advice flom independent txx expets and the development on the appeals, the management is confident that
additional tax so demanded will not be sustaired on completion of the appeltate itoceedings and a'ccotdingly, pendurg the
decision by the appellate authotities, no provision has been made in these standalone Enancial statements.'- '

(ii) The assessment fot AY 2019-20 was completed in the earliet years, wherei,r the assessing ofEcet disallowed one time
losses adjusted io the retained eamings claimed by the Company olr account ofmandatory adoftion oflnd AS 115 .Revenue
ftom contract with customers'. Howeve! the assessiag offrcer a.llowed attemate claim as per etstwhile Ind AS 1 g ?.evenue,
tead with Guidance Note on Acco,nting for Real Estate Taosactioos issued bv ICAL The company Eled an appeal against
the ordet. Futher' the case was also selected for revision under section 263 by ptincipal Coimissiooer ofincome Ta*(PCIT) on the directions of PCIT, the Judsdictional Assessing officer has made assessmenr wherein besides other
additions/disallowances' disallowance of attemate claim filed by the Company has been made. The company has challenged
the assumplion of jurisdiction under section 263 before ITAT, which is pendiag. The company hasiso challenged the
addition / disallovance made by the AO on the directions of PCIT before CIT(Appeals)/NlAt, which is also pending.
The maoagemeat has evaluated the impact of.the matter and believes that there rJf be oo tax impact arising out of this,
considedng altemative claims ate allowed by the assessing officer.

Based on the legal oPinion obtained ftom tax experts, managemeor is conEdent that it has a sttong lilelihood of succeeding
in ttre mattet and therefore, no adjustrnents are tequired in these standalone Enancial statemeots.

** Thete are various disputes pendiog with the authodties of sewice tax, GST, sales tax, \,AT etc. The Company rc
contesting drese demands uised bv authodties and are pending at vadous appellate authorities.

Based oo the grounds of the appeals and advice of the independent legal cormsels, the managemenr believes that thete is a
reasonably sttong likelihood of succeeding before the various aurhotities. Pending the finat dlcisions on the above matter,
no adiustrnent has been made in dtese standalone financial statements.

^ Thete are vatious litigtions going on against the Company primarily by Competition Commission of India [a.tso refer
note 4l @)(i)] in Consumer Redressal Fomm, w,hich have been contested by the Compaoy.

Based on the grounds ofthe appeals and advice of the hdependent legal coursels, the management believes that there is a
reasonabl,v strong likelihood of succeeding before the vadous authorities. Pending the 6nd dlcisions on the above matter,
no adjustment has been made in these standalooe Enancial statements.

(B) I(ey Litigations:
(i) Competition Commission of India (CCI) matter:

. (a) The Competition C"-dy3i 9l If.ldi1 (!CI) on a comptaint filed b,v the Betaie / N{agnolias/ park place
orxT rers association againsl DLF Limited ('DLF ' or "the holding company'), iocluding in teipect of Company,s
project namelv Park Place, had passed orders dared 12 -\ugust 2otl ,rra zd a"gutt 2"0t 1 wherein the CCI had
imposed a penalty of { 63,000.00 lakhs on DLF and testrained DLF ftom fonn'ulating and imposhg allegedly
tmfatconditions with buyets in Gurugram and further ordeted to suitably modi$, *re illeged uirrair ionditions
on its buyers.

The said otdets of ccl wete challenged b,v DLF on seveal grounds by filing appeals before the Competition
Appellate Tribunal (CONIPAT).

COXIPAT vide its order dated 19 NIay 2014 upheld the penalty imposed by CCi.

The Company along with Holding Company had fited an appeal in the Hon'ble Supteme Court of India against
the order dated 19 NIay 2014 passed by the CoTIPAT. The Hon'bte Supreme Coun of India vide order dated
27 August 2014 admitted the Appeal and ditected the hold.ing compaoy io deposit penalty of t 63,000.00 laths
in-the Court ln compliance ofthe order, DLF had deposited ( 63,0oo.oo t"tt r *itt il. rron,ble Supreme Coutt
of India and is continued to be shonm as teco..erabre-in the books ofthe Holding co-p"oy. 

--'--

The holding company filed an application seeking reftmd including interest, which to be listed along with main
appeal in due course.

Based oo the advice of the independent legal counsels and grounds of appeal, the managemeot has assessed thatthete is a strong likelihood of succeeding before the Hon'ble Supteme Court oflndia. Pending the fiaal decisionson the above matter, do adiustment made in these standalone financial statemedts.
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(tr) CCI vide its order dated 14 NIay 2015 had di.rccted the Companv telaring to New Torm Heights project, where
CCI has ditected the CompanY to cease and desist in implementation of"the terms and condi-tions ofipart-ent
Buyet Agreement which is found to be unfair and abusive.

No_penalq has been imposed bv CCI. The Company has filed an appeal befote CoMpAT against the said
Otdet dated 14 \lay 2015 and appeals wete dismiised by CONfPAT. 

^ 
itre Company agiost thE otder passed

by CON{PAT has 6led an appeal before the Hon,ble Suprerne Court of India.

The appeals}ave been tagged with the main appeal (mentiooed in Para-a above) aod to be listed in due couse
befote Hon'ble Supreme Court oflndia.

Based on the advice of the independent legal counsels aod gtounds of appeal, the management has assessed
that there is a stroog likelihood of succeeding befote the Hon'bte Supteme Coutt of Iodi"a. pending the Enal
decisions on the above matter, flo adiustrirent has been made in these itandalone financial statement;

(ii) Securities and Exchange Boatd of India (SEBI) matter

SEBI issued a SCN dated 28 August 2013 under Sections 15FLt and 15HB ofthe SEBI Act and under Rule 4 of the
SEBI (?rocedure for Holding Ioquiry aod Imposing Penalties by Adiudicating Officet) Rules, 1995 ( Adjudication
Rules) making allegations similar to the SCN dated 25 June 2013 issued to t}te Holding Company, *hi.h i,.t , 

"liaalleged that the offet documeots issued by the holding Company at the time of initial public offer in the ye7l' of 2007
suffered ftom matedal non-disclosuie and misstatement. SEBI vide order dated 10 October 2014 resttamed the
holding company and its officers/certain dircctots from accessing the secudty market and prohibited rl1em buyilg
and selling, ot otherwise dealing in secuitities, dircctly or indirectly, in any mannet, whosoever fot a period of three
yeats. The holding company and its ditectors filed appeal before ttre Securities Appellate Tribunal (SAT) against the
afotesaid order dated 10 october 2014. The SAT vide its order dated 13 Match z0i5 quashed and set aside the order
passed by SEBI. Against SAT's otder, SEBI filled an appeal with the Hon'ble Supreme Court of India (Hon,ble
Court), which stood admitted vide order dated 24 April 2015 without granting any inlerim stay in favour of SEBI.

By way of ordet dated 26 February 2015, the Adiudicating ofEcer, SEBI imposed monetary penalties upon the
holding Compaoy, some of its of6cers/Directors, the Company, two fellow subsidiades and their Ditectots under
Section 1 5HA and under Section 1 5HB of the SEBI Act.

The holding company, the Company, its two fellow subsidiaries and other parties aggrieved by the aforesaid ordet
dated' 26 Febtary 2015 Eled appeals before the Hon'ble SAT. Vtrea these appeals were listediefore Hon,ble SAT
on 15 Apdl 2015, SEBI's couqsel under instructions stated that during t}le pendency of the said appeals, filled by
SEBI with the Hoo'ble Supreme Cout dated 24 Apdl2015, the ordet dated 26 Febtuaty 2ol5 wornd not be enforced.
The Hon'ble SAT vide its otdet passed on 25 April 2018 held that in view of Hon,ble iAT,s majodw deJsion dated
13 N(arch 2015, the SEBI Ordet dated 26 Februan, 2015 cannot be sustained.

Accotdingly, the Hon'ble SAT disposed-off tlle appeals Elled by the holding compann the Company, its two fellow
subsidiades and otret panies against the order dated 26 Februarv 2015 witr a di,ectio., tir"t tt .."^ 

"pi"as 
shall stand

automatically tevived once the Horible Supteme Court dispose, ofth. .iuil ,pp"d. Eled by SEBI ag;aiast the Hon,ble
SAT's judgment dated 13 Ntarch 2015. Th" rrrrrt.r. 

"r. 
p"odi.rg for fioal outcome.

Based on the adwice ofthe independent legal counsels and grounds ofappeal, the management has assessed that thereis a strong likelihood of succeeding befote the Hon'ble srrlreme court of India. per,Jir,g the 6nal deciJns on theabove matter, no adjustment has been made in these standione financtal statements.

(iii) The company has putchased develoPment rights for the laod parcel at NI1 & M1A proiect at NIanesar, Haryana in2008 from a thitd party. The etstwlile laodowner of such land'parcels 6led a v:rit peition 
"gr^., 

;. Jo;r"ra p".ryin the Hon'ble High court of P,niab.and Haryana seeking qua.hing of th" errdre 
".ti"" or trri}"-"*"ia i".r,", o" *.land puchaset i'e thrd parq' ftom wflm- the subsidiary ciompany lias putchased the development right. il" rron,ut"High court dismissed the petition and held th"t th".e i, rro g.orod to ;tedere wi& th. acqrrlsitioo p1oc""-dirrg of tt .land Petitioners 6led a special leave petition against the said ordet of the Hon,ble cout be'fote the Hon,bl" sr.pr"-"Cout of India. The ptoject was neady co-pt"t"a Uy ftuy ZOt+.
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The Hon'ble Supreme Court, in its Ordet dated 12 \latch 201.8 disposed of the said petition and upheld the land
acquisition proceedings noriEed in August 2007. As pet the ordet, io case where construction have been erected and
the entite project is complete or is nearing completion, upon acceptance of the claim, the plots or apattments shall
be handed over to the respective claimants on the same terms and conditions. It futher upheld that all land
patcels and ptojects which is not neadng completion shall be vested with HUDA/HSIIDC ftee from all
encrunb*urces, consequendy all licences granted in respect of land parcels and proiects which is not neadng
completion coveted by the deemed award dated 26 August 2007 u/ill stand ttansferted to HUDA/ HSIIDC.
Accordingly, the Companv has filed iCs claim with HUDA/HSIIDC based on companies rights and obligation
stipulated in the judgemeots and considercd apptopriate ptovision in these standalone financial statements.

During eatlier yeats, various Intedocutory Applications (IAs) urcre filed by various parties seekiflg release of some

land parcel and State/HSIIDC filed L\ seeking extension of time for complyng t}le ditections of the Hoo'ble
Supreme Court of India regarding veriEcations of claims. Express Greens Homebuyers Association has also 6led L\
seeking various directions.

During earlier pars, the Hon'ble Supreine Court of Iodia vide Otder dated 21 J.lJy 2022 disposed of the L{s and

based on the Court ordet and legal advice, the managemeot believe that the company will be able to recover carrf ing
value of claim amount as per books.

(iv) The Company enteted two joint opetatioos aod a ioint venture in fiaancial year 2007-08 arrd 2008-09 fo! development

of certain projects and has advanced a tot of 7 39,463.29 bkhs with carrying vahrc of 7 32,'732.721ak1ts (31 Nfarch

2024 7 39t63.29 lakhs with carrying value of I 32,732.72 lakhs) to the joint operator/joint venture for the said

developments as on 31 Nlarch 2025. The proiects have not yet commenced, and duting the earlier years, several legal

cases wete instituted against joint opetators/joint venturers to plotect the intetests ofthe Company. One of the two
joindy controlled opetations, GSG-DRDL Consortium ("the Association') had been formed by the Company
(erstwhile real estate undetakiag of DLF Universal Limited) ("co-veotutef') for a ptoject in Hyderabad along with
GSG Coflstruction Private Limited (another "co-venturet') from which the Company has teceivables with a carrl-ing

value { 1 ,374.21 lakhs (3 1 NIarch 2024:. 1 1 ,37 4.21 lakhs) . Various arbittation ptoceedings ate going on. Based on the

legal opinioo teceived ftom ao indepeodent legal counsel and developsrent oo the case and based on management's

best estimates, a ptovision amounting to { 31,195.22lakhs (31 larch 2024: { 31,195.22lakhs) is being ca$ied irr the
Enandal statemeots against the above amounts and no furdrer adjustrneflts have been recorded in these standalone

financial statements.

(v) Dutiog eatliet years, National Consumer Disputes Redressal Commissioo OJCDRC) had passed an otder ('the said

Otdet") in tespect of some ongoing litigations with certain customets of a project of dre Company in Delhi, allowing

compensation fot delay in possession and refund of club and patking charges.

The Civil Appeal challengrng the said order dated 03 January 2020 of t\e NCDRC was filed befote the Hon'ble
Supteme Coun which was disposed of b,v the Hon'ble Supreme Court vide its judgement dated 14 December

2020. The Hon'ble Supreme Coun had set aside the finding of the NCDRC ur.r.t refuad of the charges recovered b,v

the Company towards parking aod club. It was held that since the charges were agreed in the Apartment Buver's

Agteement (Agteement), the Compan), is entided to tecovet the charges towatds patking and club.

Futher, NCDRC had directed the Companl vide the said order to pay compensation for delay in delivery @7% pa.
from the date of delivery stipulated in the Agreement till the date on which the possession was offeled. Hon'ble
Supteme Court pardy modified the said direction and held that the compensation wilt be paid @ 60lo p.a. instead of
7% p.a. Accordingly, the Companv had recomputed the amormt ofprovision required based on the Judgrnent ofthe
Hon'ble Supteme Court and believes that adequate provision is carried in the books in this regard.

In the meanwhile, some of the allottees have 6led Civil ,\ppeal challenging the said otder dated 03 J NN t,r 2020 of
the NCDRC before the Hon'ble Supreme Court which is pending adjudication. The,v are mainly challenging non
grant of rcfund ofincrease in alea charges and subsequent allottees be teated at par with the otiginal allottees.

Based on advice of the independent legal counsel, the Company believes that the ptovision carrying in the books rs

adequate and there is no further financial implication.

q
a
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(vi) The Company has outstaading tade receivables from Coal India Limited aod its subsidiaries (togethet refered to as

"CIIJ') amounting to <.25,968.11 lakhs (net of recoveries of t 18,300.00 lakhs aod provisions made till daQ. The
company and CIL had approachedJSERC Qharkhaod State Electricity Regulatory Commission) fot fixation oftatif(
who passed the otder in favot of the Company aod the same was uphetd by Appellate Tribunal on 31 July 2009. CIL
filed an appeal to Hon'ble Supteme Cout against the order ofAppellate Tribunal which is pending for disposal. The
Hon'ble Supteme Court issued an ordet dated 14 Septernber 2012 direcri.g CIL to pay tatiff 6xed by JSERC as

confr:rned by Appellate Tdbuoal, however, the said arnouat is still pending tecovery. The Company is putsuing legal
stqrs for rccovering the femairing outstatrdirig amounts. Duting the eadier yeats, Hon'ble Supreme Court has allowed
the Company to sell the plant and machinery in its Power ?laots at Rajappa & Giddi and sale proceeds amounting to
t 2,264.36 lakhs vere deposited with the Registy ofthe Hon'ble Supreme Coutt.

The Company believes that pending final disposal of the matter and keeping in view the interim rdief graoted by the
Hon'ble Supteme Coutt oflndia the amounts due ftom CIL are 6.rlly tecovetable. Io additioo, ttrete ate othet similar
cases ftom other customers wherein amount involved is { 13,718.00 lakhs aad the Compaay is conEdent of its
recovery based on the Court decisions till date and legal advice.

(vii) In the eatlier yeats, albitration proceedings vrere initiated between the Compaoy and a collaborator, in tespect of
collabotation advance given for development of a commetcial project in Gurugram, Haryaoa. Duting the year, the
arbittator has adjudicated the matter, directing the collabotatot to refrnd the advance along witl interest The
Company and Collaboratot have challenged the otder of arbitrator and filed an application under section 34 of the
Arbitation aod Conciliation Act, 1996. Based on favoutable otdet received duting the year and advice from
independent legal counsels, the Company has considered catrying value ofadvance of{ 10,590.92Iaths as tecoverable

in these Eaancial statements and accordingly revetsed pteviously tecoguized provision of { 7,500.00 lakhs in the
cuEeot year.

(C ) Indemnification committed to DLF Cybet City Developers Limited (a ioint venture of holding company)
("DCCDL"):

The Company, during the eadiet yeats, had sold its stake in DLF Info Patk Developets (Cherurai) Limited to
DCCDL. As per the tetms of the agreement, b.sed on some contingent events, DCCDL has been gtanted , Put
Option to transfer the secwity to the Compaay, exercisable at fait value. Furthet, the Company has also indemnified
DCCDL for delay io achieving certain milestones beyond ttre agteed timelines. Duting tle year, stipulated milestone

related to construction of building is achieved. As a result, management has evaluated that no liability will devolve

on the Company.

(D) Commitments

The Company has given corpoiate guarantee of { 259,606.10 lakhs (31 March 2024: { 200,186.63 lakhs) in tespect
ofloan/facilities utilised by Holding corupany, ioint ventues and other entries to comply with the requirement of
bank and ottret tegulatory agencies (refer note 47). The terms and conditions of such corporate guat rntee are not
ptejudicid to the company's interest.

(E) Secutity pledge in the favour of ioint ventules

(a) As on 3 1 trtarch 2025, the Company holds 50,000 equity shates of Attium Place Dwelopets Limited ( Atrium Place)
a ioint ventule compaay, wherein it has cteated pledge on 20,896 equity shares and executed a non disposal
undetaLiog for balance shares in favout of HDFC Bank Liruited ('HDFC) as a security against constuction Enaace

loan of { 306,800.00 laLhs (31 Nlarch 2024: t 290,000.00 lakhs) availed by Attium Place from HDFC, Atrium Place

has drawn { 264,776.82 lakhs (31 M*dr 2024: t 228,200.00 lakh$ out of the above.

(b) The Company has cteated pledge on its sharehotding of 3,058 equity shares of Pegeen Buildets & Developen
Pdvate Limited eegeen), a ioint ventute company in favour of Kotak Nlahindra Investrnetrts Limited ('I(}IIL) as

a secudty against construction finance facilities of { 50,000.00 lakhs (31 March 2024: { 50,000.00 lakhs) availed by

Pegeen from KNIIL. Out of total facility availed, Pegeen has drawn I 45,000.00 lakhs (31 Nfatch 2024: { 35,000.00

lakhr.

&

t
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Notes to dre standalone financial statements fot the yeat ended 31 Match 2025

(F) Othets:

The Pa,r'ment of Bonus (Amendment) Act, 2015 dated 31 December 2015 (which was made effective from 01 Apdl
2014) revised the tlresholds for coveqge of emplol'ees eligible for Bonus and also enhanced the ceiliag limits for
computation of bonus. HoweYer, taking cognizance of the stay gtanted by various High courts, the Company has

not recognized diffetential amotmt ofbonus amounting to I 112.18 takhs Q7 \larch 2O24:,1 112.18 lakhs).

Employee benefrts:

i) Disclosute of gratuity (non-funded)

The Company operates de6ned bene6t gatuity plan. The Company provides gatuiq for employees in India as per the
Pa,r'ment of Gratuiqv Act, 1972. Emplovees who are in continuous service for a period of 5 lcars are eligible for gratuiq.
The amount of gratuitl papble on rettement/tetmination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed
proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied fot the number of years of service. The disclosures as rcquired b,v Ind AS 19
"Employee bene6ts" ate giveo as below:

Risks aasociated with plaa provisiom.

The Company is exposed to sevetal dsks in the de6ned beneEt plans. Nlost significant risks pertaining to defined benefrt
plans and management's estirnation of the impact if these risks are as follows:

The following tables summatise the components ofnet benefit expense recogntsed in the statement ofprofit and loss:

Amount recognised in the Statement of prcfrt aod loss is as unden

Description 3lMxch2025
({ in hfrhs)

ll I[latch ?-024

({ in lakhs)

Cu e1rt selvice cost 1'/ 6.7 6 't63.92

Interest cost 106.98 100.76

Amount recognised in the Statement of prcfit and loss 24i.74 4.64

Movement in the liability recognised in the balance sheet is as undec

Salaq' gron'th risk The present value of t}le defined beneEt plan tiability is calculated by reference to the future
salaries of plan participants. An increase in the salary ofthe plan patticipants witl increase dre
ptan liabfity.

Ioterest tate dsk A decrease in interest tate in futute yeats will inctease the plan liability.

Life expectancy risk The present value of the de6ned benefit plan iirability is calculated by reference to the best
estimate of motaliq' of plan participants both duriflg and at the end ofthe employment. An
increase in the life expectancy ofthe plan participants will increase the plan liabiliqv,

rJ0ithdrawals risk Actual withdtawals prcving highet ot lower than assumed withdrawals and chaage of
withdnwal rates at subsequent valuations can impact plan's liability.

Description 3lMatch2O25
(t in lakhs)

3l I['I'a:tch ?,0?A

({ in hkhs)
Preseot value of defined benefit obligation as at the begioning of the year 1,452.44 1,300.53

Addition on account of metget (tefer note 56) 9.09

Current service cost 176.76 163.92

Intetest cost 106.98 100.76

-\ctuatial (gain)/toss recognized duting the vear 28.48 10.35

Benefits paid (91.68) (130.84)

Liability/-{.sset transferred on account of emplo.vee ttansferred to othet
:ompaoies (net) 0s8.81) (1.37)

Present value of defined betrefit obligation as at the end of the year 1,514.17 7,452.44

Cuttent pottion of derrned benefit obligation 271.53 51.08

Non-curent portion of defined benefit obligation 1,242.64 1,,401.36
,.-1



Desctiption 31March2025
(t in lakhs)

37]['Iatch2fi2A
(t in lakha)

Actuatial (garn)/toss atishg from change in financial assumption 93.09 32.93

Actuarial (gain)/toss arising ftom experience adiustment 31.95 (23.41)

Actuarial (gain)/toss adsing ftom demographic assumption (e6.s6)

28.48

0.89

Total actuarial (gain)/loss 10.35

DLF Home Developers Limited
Notes to the standalone fiaancial statements fot the yeat ended 31 Match 2025

Bteakup of actuatial gain/loss: arnourrt tecognised irr othet comptehensive income:

Fot determination of the gBtuity liability ofthe Company, the following pdncipal actuadal assumptions were
used:

Description Sl March ?,025

({ in lakhs)
17I[larch2024

({ in lakhs)
Finaucial assumptions

Discount rete 6.470k '7.O9%

Futute salary increases 7.OO% 1.000h

Demogtaphic aasumptiona

Retitement age (years) 60/62/65
/68/70

58/60/62
/6s /68

Withdrawal rate

Up to 30 yeats

19%
4.OOYI

From 31 to 44 ]'ears 3.00%

Above 44 years 2.00Yo

N{ortality rate inclusive of provision for disability 100 % of L\LN{
(2012 - 2014)

Ultimate

100 % of IALNI
(2012 2014)

Ultimate

These assumptions werc developed by managemeat rdth the assistance of independent actuarial appraisers. Discount
factots ate detettnined close to each year-end by refetence to govemmeot bonds of relevant economic markets and that
have terms of matudt,' apptoximating the tetms of the related obLigation. Other assumptions are based on management's

histodcal expetience.

Seasitivity analysis for gtatuity liability

Desctiption 31 Mtch 2025

({ in lakhs)
37I[.!'arch20?A
(l in lal,rhs)

lmpact of the change in discount rate

fteseut value of obl.igarion at the end of rhe year 1,5',t4.17 1,452.44

a) fmpact due to increase of0.50 o/o (28.e0)

30.05

(6s.70)

b) fmpact due to dectease of 0.50 7o 10.32

lmpact of dre chatrge in salaty iactease

Present value of obligation at the end of the year 1,514.17 1452.44
a) [mpact due to increase of0.50 7o 32.80 '71.06

b) [mpact due to decrease of0.50 oZ (31.84) (67.02)

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawal are not material and hence impact of change is not calculated.

The weighted average duration of the de6aed benefit obligation is 5.23 years (31 \lzxch 2024:11.37 )'ears to 12-71 yexs)

tr
a

respective\
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Expected contibution fot the next reporting petiod is as follows:

Maturity profrle of Defiaed Benefrt Obligation

The following payments are expected contributions to the de6ned benefit ptan in future years.

Description 31 Match 2O25

(t in lakhs)
3lI},|,a,tch2O24

({ in
lakhs)

4 Within the next 12 rnonths (next annual reporting period) 280.18 52.85

b) Betrveen l and 5 veats 877.89 303.59

.) Beyond 5 years 862.63 2,813.08

ii) Ptovident Fund

The provident fund set up b,v the holding company is treated as a defined benefit plan since ttre Company has to meet ttre

interest shortfalls, if arry. In this regard, actuadal valuation as on 31 March 2025 was carried out to fmd out value of
proiected beneEt obligation arising due to interest rate guarantee by the holding company towards provident fuod. Io terms

of said valuation the Companv has no l.iability towards inrerest rate guarantee as oo 31 NIarch 2025 and 31Match2024.

Conttibution made by the Compaa,v to the prcvident frrnd trust setup by the hotding company dudng the )'eal is t 478.00

lakhs (31 March 2024: {431.73 lakhs).

iii) Supctannuation Fund

Dudng the year, the Companv has made contribution to de6ned contribution plan i,e. supetanauation firnd amounting to
{ 3.09 laths (31 March 2O24:. 4.64 lnkhs) and tecognised as expense for the year.

43, Disclosure uodet the Nficro, Small aod Nledium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ('NISNIED Act,2006") is as rmder:

Patticulats 3lMatch2025
(t in latrhs)

SlI['f.atch 2lA
(l in lakhs)

i) the principal alnourt and the interest due theteoo temaining uopaid to anv

supplier as at the end ofeach accounting veat;

ii) the amount of interest paid b.r the buyer in tetrns of section 16, along with
the amounts of the pagnent made to the supplier be)'ond the appointed date

during each accountiog yea4

iii) the amouat of ioterest due and payable fot the period of delay io making

payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed date duting the year)

but without adding the interest speciEed under N{SNIED Act, 2006;

w) the amouot of intetest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each

accounting ,veat; and

v) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the

succeeding ,vears, until such date when the intelest dues as above are actuall,v

paid to tie small eoterpdse, for the putpose of disallowance as a deductible

expenditure undet Section 23.

12,072.96

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

10,945.15

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

The above disclosute has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information

E
6

4

available with the Companv.



DLF Home Developets Limited
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44. Leases:
Company aa a lessee

The Companv has lease contracts which primarily consists of land and building having various lease tems which are

genetally fot a petiod of 3 yeats to 16 years. The Company rccorded the lease l.iabilities at the present value of the remaining
lease pal"rnents discotmted at the incremental borrowing tate as on lease commencement date aod has measured right-of-
use assets at an ainount equal to lease liability adlusted fot pteviousl.v tecognised prepaid or acctued lease palynents.

The Company also has cetain leases oflaod and building with lease terms of 12 months or [ess. The Company applies the
'short terrn lease' recognition exemptions for these leases.

Set out below are the canlritrg amoutrts of land and buitding dght-of-use assets tecogaised and the moyemeats
dudng the year:

Patticulats 31 Match Z)25
({ in laLhs)

3lI[,dar.ch2024
({ in lakhs)

Balance at the begitming 3 .20 678.25
Additions 1,763.03 55.96
Deletion
Depreciation (4O2.82\ (3e8.01)

Bahnce at the end 336.m

Set out below ate the cattying amounts oflease liabilities and the movements during the yeat:

The following ate the amoutrts tecogrrised in Statement of profit or loss:

Particulam Yeat ended
3lI&lttch ZJ.25

({ in lakhs)

Year ended
3lIfilatch2f?4

({ in lakhs)
Expenses
Depreciation expense of riqht-of-use assets 402.82 398.01
Intercst expense on lease liabilities 154.08 67.12

ExDense dating to shon-tetm leases 296.77 406.95

Net exDense recogaised in Statenent ofprolit or loss a$.67 a72-OA

The Company have total cash outflows for leases of { 775.76 lakhs (31. \larch 2024: { 883.41 lakh$.

The Companv has seveal lease contracts that include extension aod termination options. These options are negotiated by
managemeflt ro provide flexibi[t,'in managing the leased-asset portfolio and align with the Company's business needs,

Nlanagement exetcises significant iudgemeot in detetroining whethet these extension and termidation options are

Particulats 3lMar.ch?i25
({ in lakhs)

3lMatch2JJ2A
(t in lakhs)

Balance at the beeinnine 4D-26 E37.76
Additions 1 55.96

1Deletion
Accretion of interest 154.08 67.'t2

1

417.26

131.00

Payment of lease liabilities (478.99)

Balance at the end 1,E55.38
Current lease liabilities 325.90

Non-cuttent lease liabilities 1 .48 286.26

reasonablv ceftain to be exercised.
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Notes to the standalone liltanci.l st temente for the yeat ended 31 March 2025

The rable below provides details regarding the contactual maturities oflease liabilities on aa undiscounted basis:

Patticulats 31 Match 2025
(t in lakhs)

3ll0llttcll2iJ.24
(t in lakhs)

I-ess than one vear 487.85 166.19

One to Eve vears 1,633.41 203.60

Ilore than five r-ears 220.00 264.00

Total 2341.2i 633.79

Company as a lessor

The lease attaogemeots where the Company is lessor, lease teotals ate tecognized on straight line basis ovet the non-
cancellable period and consequendy, period of secutigv deposits has also been aligned as per the lease tetans coosideted fot
Iod AS 116.

The Company has leased out office and mall ptemises under non-cancellable opetating leases. These leases have terms of
between 3 - 4 5,.ears. AII leases include a clause to enable upward revision of the rental charge accoding to prevailing matket

conditions. The total lease rentals recognised as income during the par is < 2,252.881akhs (31 NIarch 2024: | 2,647.88

lakhs).

The contractual future minimum lease related teceivables in respect of non-cancellable leases ate as follows:

Perticulets 31 Match 2025
({ ia lakhs)

3TMatch 20.24

({ in lakhs)
Less than one yeat 78.03 63.82

One to 6ve 2.98 39.05

NIore than Eve years

Total 81.01 102.87

45. The Code on Social Securiqv, 2020 (Code) telating to employee benefits duting employment and post employrnent

benefits received Ptesidential assent in Septembei 202O. The Code has been published in dre Gazette of India. Certaio

sections of the Code ceme into effect ot 03 Nlay 2023. Howevet, the final rules/interptetation have not yet been issued.

Based on preliminary assessmetrt, the Company believes the impact of the change rvill not be significant.

,16. (i) Intercst in ioint vetrtute companics

Summarized propottion of ownership of the Company in the ioint ventute is set out below.

Proportion of
ownetship (7o) as at

37 M*ch2O24

Propottion of
ownership (7o) as at

31 Merch a)25

S. No. Name of entity

50.00 50.001 DLF r\Iidtown Private Limited
50.002 Plivate Limited 50.00DI-F SBPL
50.001 DLF Urbaa Private Limited (till 25 March

202s)
42.4942.49Desisnplus Associates Services Ptivate Limited4
67.0067.005 Atdum Place Developers Private Limited
51.0051.00?egeeo Builders and Developes Private

Limited
6

m)

c
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DLF Home Developers Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the ye.r ended 31 Match 2025

Summarised financial information for ioint ventures

Summatized furancial inforrnation and the interest of the Companv in the joint vetrtute, based on Ind AS fiaancial
statemeots is set out below:

(a) Summatised Balance sheetsr

({ i,,

({ in lakhs)

xThe nunbers ate rcported from the unaudited financial statements of the ioint venture.

Desigaplus Associates
Services Ptivate Limited
(consolidated iacluding

Spazzio Ptoiects and
Intetiors Private Limited)

DLF Midtown Private
LimitedParticulats

31 March
m25

31 Match
m24

31 Match
2025

31 March
N?A

Cash and cash equivalents (including other bank balaoces) 38.04 35.22 9,896.84
Other assets 394.10 452.29 27 6,204.35

432.59

27
Curent assets (A) 432.14 487.51 zffi,70L19 n3$22.93
Non-cure nt assets (B) 212-1i 221.68 2,713.23 1.888.58
Curent liabilities (excluding trade payables and provisions) (28.15) 45.46 83,397.15 7,005.78

Trade payables and provisions 191.7 5182.62 902.11 1,358.37

Curtent liabilities (C) 754.47 237.27 u,299.2tt 8,364.15

Non-cuttent liabilities (excluding trade payables and provisions) 63,626.88

6.29

131,738.87

Trade payables and prcvisioos 44.13 47 -8A 6.11

Non-current liabilities (D) 44.L3 47.E8 63,633.77 lit744.98
Net assets (A+B-C-D) u5.67 4U.10 140,881.99

4U8.20

1j4,902.38
Equity 29.42 29.42 2,2l.8.20
Shate of contingent liabilities 7,099.47 29.430.85

Patticulats

DLF SBPL Devetopets
Ptivatc Limited*

DLF Utben Pdvate
Limited (till 25 March

?ozs)
31 Match

m25
31 March

202/
31 Match

2,,25
31 Match

20z
Cash and cash equivalents (including other bao.k balances) 0.50 0.50

13.33 13.33

15,462.24
Other assets 300,844.82
Curtent assete 13.&t 13.83 3t63O7.06
Non-cunent assets (B) 4,668.48
Curtent liabilities (excluding ttade payables and provisions) 349.24 349.24 235,726.7 4

Ttade payables and provisions 55,105.43
Curent liabilities (C) 349.24 349.U 290,82.77
Non-curent liabilities (excludinq trade pavables and prorisions)
Trade payables and provisions 13.27
Non-curent liabilities (D) 73.27
Net assets + (335.41) 30,130.10
Equity 1.00 1.00 927.97
Shate of contingent liabitities 3,655.47



DLF Home Developets Limited
Notes to the statrdalone financial statements fot rhe yeat ended 31 Match 2025

(b) Summarised Statcment ofprofit .nd loss:

(t in

(l in lal,rhs)

Atrium Place Developets
Private Limit€d

Pegeen Buildets and
Dwelopers Pdvate
LiEired (w.e.f. 10

August 2023)

Paticulats

31 March
m25

31 Match
M?A

31 Match
m2E

31 Match
2424

Cash and cash other brnk 2,124.59 9,82'7.09 4,160.48 2,046.20
Other assets 51.23 622.79 82,635.33 66,004.09
Cuttent assets (A) 2,175.82 10,449.88 86.795.81 68,050.29
Non-current aasets (B) 446,841.00 376,51L06 75.73 347.08
Curtent liabilities (excluding trade pal.ables aod provisions) 36,668.79 14,269.52 18,654.42 18,744.99
Tade payables and provisions 16.81 14.61 1,714.76 57'7.68
Cutent liabilities (C) 36,685.60 m369.78 19,262.67
Non-current liabil.ities (excludinq trade payables and provisions) 238,363.57 69,525.53 50,035.89
Ttade payables aod ptovisions 44.17

21

29.12 12.92 6.11

Non-cuttent liabilitics (D) 218.407.74 275,7 .01 69,538.45 50,042.00
Net asseta (A+B-C-D) 923.48 (1,736.09) (907.30)
Equitv 7.46 7.46 2.N 2.OO

Share of coatinseat liabilities 845.55 845.55
Shate of capital commitrnents

Particulets

Designplus Associates
Sewices Ptivate Limited
(consolidated including

Spazzio Proiects and
Intetiots Private Limited)

DLF Midtown Private
Limited

Fot the yeat
etrded

Fot thc ycat
ended

Fot the yeat
ended

Fot the yeat
ended

31 Match
2025

31 Match
2024

31 Match
2iJ25

31 Match
m24

Revenue 211.54 240.00

Ofher income 114.05 52.44 734-06 1.43

Total tevenue (A) 325.59 292.44 llt.06 1.43
Cost of construction /operational expenses 74.31 78.40

15;73Depreciation and amortisation 12.13 0.23 0.23

Employee benefit expense 99.90 9',7.56 119.11 26.00
Finance costs 1.65 0.81 0.04 0.02
Other expense 114.72 1,1,2.87 495.84 176.18

Total expenses (B) N2.71 305.37 635.4 2t2.43
Profrt/(loss) befote tax (C = A-B) 22.88 (72.931 (501.18) (201.00)
Tax expense @) 1.31 2-A4 0.10

Profit/(oss) fot the year (E = C-D) 2,^57 (75.77\ (501.28) (200.98)

Other comprehensive incorne (D 0.68 1.40

Total compt€hetrsive income (E*F)' 2157 (75.77\ (500.60) (197.60)



DLF Home Developers Limited
Notes to dre standalone frnancial statements for the yeat ended 31 March Z)25

xThe numbets ate teported from the uaaudited fiflancial statements of the ioint ventute.

(t in lakhs

ur

DLF SBPL Developers
Private Limited*

DLF Utban Pfivate
Limited (titl 25 Match

m25)
Fot the year

ended
For the year

ended
For the yeat

ended
Patticulats

31 Match
2,,25

Fot the yeat
e1rded

31 March
m24

31 Match
2025

31 March
2AU

Revenue 103,475.40 407.09
Other income 2,157.73 59.61

Total tevenue (A) 105,633.13 466.70
Cost of construction 85,529.36
Employees benefit expenses 195.22 63.70
Finance costs 537.085.54 0.60
Depreciation 4.15 0.02
Other 5,234.53 2,308.06
Total expenses (B) 5.54 91,500.34 2,372.38
Loss before tax (C = A-B) (5.54) 14,1i2.79 (1,905.68)
Tax expense (D) (3,r4.85)

Loss for the
Other
Total

income/
income/

=c- (5.54) 1o,872.16 (1,s60.&i)
(1.24) (1.6s)

(5.54) 10,810.92 (1,s62.48)

Atdum Plece Developets
Private LiEited (fonnerly
Aadatshiqi Real Eetate

Dwelopets Private
Limited)

Pegeen Buildes and
DevelopeB Pdvate

Limited (we.f. 10 August
202r)

Fot the yeat
ended

Fot the yeat
ended

Fot the yeer
etrded

Fot the year
ended

Perticulats

31 Match
2025

31 Match
N2A

31 Match
2,/J25

31 March
2024

Revenue

Other income o.21 0.04 2,573.73 1,344.88

Total revenue (A) 0.n 0.04 2,573.73 u44.88
Employees benefit expenses

4.84 4-24

381.55 1,4.95

Finance costs 2,511.03 1,518.78
Depteciation 11.80 o.79
Other expense 792.77 307.73 486.78 254.60
Total expenses (B) 197.61 377.E7 3,39116 ,^789.72
Loss befote tax (C = A-B) (197.401 (311.93) (E77.43\ (444.26\
Tax expense @) 30.03 64.75 '18.94 (1,.46\
Loss for thc yeat (E = C-D) (227.43) (376.68) (442.w)
Other l,lcOme 7.58
Total income/ (227.431 (376.68) (828.79\ (442.W\

i
u-

D E
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DLF Home Developers Limited
Note8 to the st.ndalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March m25

(ii) Intetest ia associates

Summarized financial infotmation and the intercst of the Company in the pattnetship 6rm and associates, based on their
Ind ,{S financial sratement is set out belovr:

(a) Summadsed Balance sheets: (l irr lakhs)

+The nurnbers are teported &om the unaudited financial statements of the associates.

({ in lakhs)

Particulats Arizona Globalseryices Private
Limited,r

DLF Luxury Homes Limited

17I['|'atch2j.25 37Ifilatcll20?A 3lMa;ch 2-025 37Malch2O24
8,326.25Cash and cash equivalents (including

other bank balances)
15.12 9.73 175.62

Other assets 12.7 49.36 13.053.93 11 65,085.94

Curtent assets (A) 12,764.48 l:t,ffi3.06 72,076.51 73,44.79
Non-curent assets (B) 31.940.04 31955.74 23,w6.77 25,296.43
Current liabilities (excluding ttade
payables and ptovisions)

134.70 204.62 24,058.80 33,935.38

Ttade oavables and orovisions 142.48 142.48 1 17.68 1 .5',7

76.48 95

tt1 tt1

Cuttent liabilities (C) 347.10 347.10

Non-curent liabilities (exctuding tade
payables and provisions)

23,505.00 23,505.00

Trade oayables and ptovisions

Non-curent liabilities (D) 23,5(x).00 23.500.00

Net .ssets (A+B-C-D) m,9?2.34 21766.70
Eouitv 20,133.00 m.(t3.00
Ptoportion of the Group's ownetship 49.67% 48-94V. 45.82v. 4E.42!/.

Shate of contiaqent liabilities 1,039.31 777.66

Paticulers Raeks Estates Developers Private
Lirnited

S\rise Home Developers Private
Limited

37I[-|,alch7J25 3l l[,f,atch 2-O2A

3.12

37][.darch?D25 3l Mtrch 2-OZl

Cash and cash equirzlents (including
other bank balances)

1,0.25 32.86 42.43

Other assets 14,118.81 1 16.90 4,005.99 4,005.81

Culrent assets (A) 14,729.06 4,038.85 4,048.U
Non-cunent assets (B) 1i7.97 142.7E 1.45 2.26

Cutrent liabilities (excluding trade
payables and provisions)

17,472.70 12979.68 ) )1171 2,217.81

Trade palzbles and ptovisions 905.78 897.64 53.74 53.23

Current liabilities n7i2 97

Non-cuttent liabilities (excluding trade
payables and provisions)

Trade oavables and otovisioos
Noa-curtent liabilities (D)
Net assets (A+B-C-D) 1,888.49 1,685.48 1769.42 1779.46
Equitv 765.42 765.42 31.49 31.49

Ptopottion of the Gtoup's o*nemhip 2E.3T/i 2E.32% 25.990 25.99%
Shate of continpeat liabilitier 183.17 743.fi

ED

*
<t,

I



DLF Home Developers Limited
Notes to the staadalone financial statements for the yeat ended 31 March 2025

a) Summatised Statement ofptofrt end loss:

*The numbers are reported ftom the rmaudited financial statements of the associates.

({ in lakha)

(t in lakhs)

Paticulats DLF Commetcial Proiects
Cotpotation

Nadish Real Estate Private
Lirnited

31I[dalch2O25 3lMatch 2lA 37 ][-|,ztch2O25 3lI&{'alchfr24
Cash and cash equivalents (including
other banl balances)

41.04 49.7 5 6.06 8.50

Othet assets 6,839.7 6 9.830.90 14,148.78 14,148.78
Cutrent assets (A) 6,880.m 9,E80.65 74,754.U 14,157.28
Non-current assets (B) 775,234.10 l8l,2t.EE 46.00 46.00
Current Liabilities (exduding tnde
payables aod provisions)

't4,124.89 12,880.67 8,498.28 8;472.90

Trade payables and orovisions 15.99 16.26 0.28 0.36
Currcnt liatrilities 74896.9t 8,498.56 8,473.26
Non cuttent liabilities (excluding trade
payables aod ptovisions)

1,63,704.84 175,025.O7

Ttade payables and provisions

Non-curent liabilities (D) 704.84 775,025.07
Net assets (A*B-C-D) 4.269.18 3,1E0.53 5,702.2E 5,7n.02
Partneds capital account/Equity 70.00 70.00 607.91 @7.97
Ptopottion of the Group's ow[ershiD 24.80V. ?A,EO% 45.51o 45.57Vo
Shate of continqcnt liabilities 8,U4.32 9,163.43 77.19 77.79

Particulats Arizona Globalseryices Pdvate
Limited{,

DLF Luxury Homes Limited

For the yeat Fot dre yeat
ended ended

Fot the yeat ended For the yeat
ended

31 March Z)25 37l|llrtch2A2A 31 Match 2025 31 Match
2024

Revenue 3.00 3.00 14,682.45 49,570.56
Other Iocome 207.64 539.26 1,810.20 4,221.58
Total revenue (A) 210.64 542.26 16,492.65 53,792.14
Cost of Sales 5.886.2'7 43,"127.81
Depteciation and amortisation 2.45 2.45 0.22 0.21
Employees bene6t expense 6.25 6.22 0.01
Finance costs 124.29 724.29 690.25 1160.43
Othet expense '77 5.16 1',1 4.91 2279.52 862.59
Total expenses @) 908.15 q7.87 8,856.27 45,445.06
Ptofit/ ooss) before tax (C=A-B) (697.s1) (36s.51) 7,636.38 8J47.08
Tax expense @) (3.14\ 84.40 1.25 2,032.56
Ptofrt/(loss) fot the year (E = C-D) (694.37t (450.01) 7,635.1i 6314.52
Other comprehensive income (E
Total comprcheosive income (E*F) (694.371 (450.01) 7635.13 6,314.52

(Ihi rpace l)ar beeh itAntioza$ b/t blaaA)



DLF Home Developers Limited
Notes to the staadaloae financial statements fot the yeat ended 31 March Z)25

(t in lakhs)

(t in lakhs)

(iii) Intetest ilr loint opetations

The Compaoy has interests in two ioint operations namely Banjara Hills Hydetabad Complex aod GSG DRDL
Consortium. The financial infotnation in respect of these joint operations is consideted based on management certified
information of these ioint operarions and is unaudited. The fuiarrcial ioformation of these ioint opeations is not rnateial
considedng their size and operations.

Paticul,ats DLF Commercial Ptoiects
Corpotatioa

Nadish Real Estate Private
Limited

Fot the year ended Fot the yeat
ended

Fot the yeat
elrded

Fot the year
ended

31 Match 2025

3 7.88

6.69

37lt|'*ch 2l2A 37I|-{,atch2O25

78.32

31 Match
M?A

Revenue

Other Income 64.23 0.29 0.48
Total tevenue (A) 3,2?4.57 2.542.55 0.29 0.48
Cost of Sales 468-',7't 562.77
Depreciation and amortisation
Employees benefit expense
Finance costs 64.O2 2't -95 26.45 2-69

1.58 9.39Other expense 67.97 44.23
Total expenses (B) 600.76 634.95 28.03 72.O8
Prolit/ floss) befotc tax (C=A-B) 3,003.46 1.907.60 (27.74\ (11.60)

Tax expense (D) 2.16 1.32 (0.48)
Profit/(loss) for the yeat (E = C-D) 3,001.31 1,906.28 (27.74\ (,.172\
Othet c<imprehensive income (F)

Total comprehensive income (E*F) 3,001.31 I,W.2E (n.741 ott2\

Paticulars Rach Estates Developets Private
Umited

S\dse Home Developers
Private Limited

Fot the yeat ended Fot the yeat
ended

For the yeat
ended

Fot the year
ended

31 Match 2025 3lMalch 2A2A 31 Match Z)25 31 Match
mu

Revenue 624.53

49.88
5.90 5.90

Other Income 229.76 2.60 2.19
Total tevenue (A) 854-29 49.88 8.50 8.09
Cost of Sales 620.29
Depteciation and amottisation
Employees benefi t expense
Finance costs o.71 2.18 16.03 16.07
Other expense 2.16 17.88 0.73 4.75
Totd expeases (B) 6Lr.16 m.06 16.76 m.22
Ptofit/(oss) beforc tax (C=A-B) Lrt73 29.82 (8.2t;l (12.1i1
Tax expense @) 28.12 26.73 1.79 1.17
Profit/(oss) fot the year (E = C-D) m3.ot 3.09 (10.05) (13.30)
Othet comprehensive income (F)

Totd lncome m3.0t 3.09 (10.0s) (13.30)

to

att

EVE



DLF Home Develope.s Limited
Notes to the standalone fiD.ncial st.tements for the year ended 31 March 2025

47. Related parqr disclosures

(a) List of reLted pertieg
Personnel

S.No. eme of KMP
1 Minocha - Director 30 N{arch
2 f.23 Director w.e.f. 31 March 2025)
3 Devioder Sinsh - N,Ianasinq Director
4 Aakash Ohri - oint Director w.e.f 18

5

6

Vishal Damani - Whole Time Dkector .e.f. 11

Ms. Neelu Goel - Non-executive Director
1 L{r. Ashok Kumar Tvaei - Noo-executive Dircctor
8 Nlr.Vineet Kan*ar - Non-executive Direct .

Nlr. Vivek Amnd - Non-executive Director (uptil, 23 larruar' 2024\
10 NIr. Ramakdshea Prabhala.ran - Non-executive DLector (uptil 3'l May 2023)

11 rMr. Aiai Sineh (w.e.f 08IUav 2024)

12 ilk. N{ahender Sineh (w.e.i 27 March m25)

Ultimate
S.No. Name of

1 Raidhani Iflvestments and Agencies Private Limited

Holding Compeny

Neme ofcompeny

1 Dl.F Limited

Subsidiary and etepdown subsidiery compmies at .ny time during the ye.r
N.de of entity

1 Builders & Private Limited
2 Estates Private Limited with DLF Southern Towns Privete Limited w.e.f 17

3 Angelina Real Estates Private Limited
4 Baal Realto$ Private Limited
5 Bhamini Rerl Estate Priwte Limited
6 Breeze Constructions Private Limited
1 Calista Real Esates Private Limited with DLF Southem Towns Prilate Limited rlr.e.f 1 7

8 Estate Private Lirnited
9 Chamundeswari Builders Private Limited with DLF Home Limited w.e.f 19 November
10 Builders & Constructions Private Limited with DLF Southern Towns Private Iimited w.e.f I7
l1 Builde$ & Primte Limited
t2 Exclusive Floors Plivate Limited
13 Rerltors Private Limited
14 Buildcon Private Limited
't5 Builders and Private Limited
16 IT Offices Chennai Private Limited with DLF Home Limited we.f 19 November
17

18

Garden Iodore Private l,imited with DLF Home Limited w.e.f 19 November
Homes Goa Private Limited

19 Homes Paflchkula Private Limited
20 DLF Homes Services Privare I-imited with DLF Recreational Foundation Limited w.e.f. 15
21 DLF Info Limited
22 DI-F Limited 10 2025, fellow
23 DLF Limited
24 DLF Residential Limited with DLF Home Limited w.e.f 19 November
25 DLF Resideotial Panners Limited
26 DLF Southero Tou.ns Private Limited
27 Urbao Private Limited .e.l 25 N{arch

28 Real Estate Private Limited
29 Builders & Private Limited with DLF Southem Towns Private Limited w.e.f 17
30 Services Private I-irnited
31

32

Builders & Constructions Private Limited vith DLF Homes Panchkula Pdrate Limited w.e.f. 25



DLF Home Developers Limitcd
Notes to the standalore Eratrcial st.temene for the yeer ended 31 Merch 2025

47. Related pffty disclosures

List of r€leted

Joint verturcs OV)/Joiat operetion (fO)/Associetcs (A)

Joint ventures of holdiag compeny with whom therc are transactions duriig the year/balances ouoteoding ee at year end

33 I'{athor Realtors Private Limited
Hesper Builders & Developers Private Limited
Hestia Realtors Private Limited Olerged with DLF Southem Towns Private Limited w.e.f 17 lanuarl 2025)

I Iurley Builders & Developers Priute Iimited
tsabel Builders & Developers Private Limited

Jesen Builders & Developers Private Limited (N{erged with DLF Homes Panchkula Prirate Limited u,.e.i 25 August 2023)

fingle Builders & Developers Private Limited (Iferged with DLF Homes Panchkula Private limited w.e.f 25 August 2023)

Ken Buildcon Private Limited
Ketna Buildets & Constructioos Private Limited o.{erged with DLF Homes Panchkula Private Limited w.e.f. 25 August 2023)

Kolkaa International Conventional Centre Limited
43 t araine Builders & Coostmctions Private Limited O4erged with DLF Southero Towns Private Limited w.e.f l7.lafluary 2025)

44 Latona Builders & Construction Primte Limited @{erged with DLF Home Developers Lirnited w.e.f 19 November 2024)

45 Livana Builden & Developers Ptivate Limited @terged with Dl-F Home Developers Limited w.e.f 19 November 2024)

46 Nlorel'an Builders & Developen Private Limited (Nlereed with DLF Homes Panchkula Private Limited w.e.f. 25 Aueust 2023)

47 Nlorina Builders & Developers Priute Limited (IIerged with DLF Homes Panchkula Private Limited w.e.f. 25 August 2023)

48 Nlorven Builders & Developers Primte Limited (Merged with DLF Homes Panchkula Private Limited we.f 25 August 2023)

49 Nluriel Builders & Developers Pdmte Limited
50 Nellis Builders & Developers Pri\,-rte Limited

34

35

36

31

38

39

40

41

42

5'l Niobe Ruilders & Developers Private Limited
\2 Peseeo Builders & Developes Private Limited (till 09 Aueust 2023)

53 tuveria Commercial Limited
54 Rochelle Builders & Constructions Private Limited
55 Ruiula Builders & Developers Pri te Limited
56 Senynour Builders & Constructior$ Private Limited
5'7 Shivaii N{arg Nlaintenance Services Limited
58 Snigdha Builders & Construcuofls Private Linuted (Merged with DLF Southern Towns Private Limited w.e.f 17 Ianuary 2025)

59 Urvasi Infratech Private Limited

S,No. N.me of ctrtity
,l Atrium Place Developers Private Limited (f\)
2 Arizooa Globalservices Private Limited (A)

3 Banjara Hills H1'derabad Complex flO)
4 Desienplus Associates Services Private Limited 0\r)
5 DLF Luxua'Homes Limited (A)

6 DLF Nlidtown Private Limited 0\'/)
1 DLF SBPL Developers Priute Limited fl$
I DLF Urben Privete Limited 0\) (ti[ 25 Nlerch 2025)

9 GSG DRDL Consortium 0O)
10 Real Estate Private Limited

Builders & Private Limited f1011

12 Reeks Estates Developets Private Limited (A)

13 Sk1rile Home Developers Private Limited (A)

14 Spazzio Proiects And Interiors Private Limited 09
@ho\-owned subsidiary of Designplus Associates Services Private Limited)

S.No, Namc of entity

1 DLF Cyber Ciq Developers Limited
2 DLF City Centre Limited (Merged vith DLF Cvber City Dwelopers Limited w.e.f. l9 Irebruary 2025)

3 DLF Info Citv Chennai Limited
4 DLF lnfo Park Developea (Chennai) Limited
5 DLF Promenade Limited
6 DLF Power & Services Limited



DLF Home Develope.s Limited
Notes to dre stand2lone finaacial statemenG for the ve.r etrded 31 :i.{ar(,n zD25

47. Rehted party disclosures

(a) List of teleted parties

Partrership firms

Name of
DLIr Commercial

2 Buildets &
3 note

Relatives of Key ma[agerial petsonael of the Compeny, holdiag company and entities in *hich key m.nrgerial perso[nel of the
ComP.ny arrd holding compatry .re intetested with whom thert urc.e tr.nsrctiotrs during the year/balences ee at yeer-end

Reletives of of

Entities in which of are interested

Fellow eubeidi.ries/partnership firms at any time durirg the year vrith whom thcre .lc tratraactioas during the yea./b.l.Dces
a6 at end

1 NIs. Aoushka Singh

2 NIs. Anjana Anand

3 Lakshey Singh

4 Mr. Vikas Kanvzt

Limited

1

2

3 DLF Foundation

Name of
DLF
DLF

Pmwident Fund

U/T & Credit

4 Lal Chand Public Charitable Trust
5 Educational Charitable Trust

Scheme

DLF .E.C. Nledical Charitable Trust

DLF Home
DLF

6

7

S.No. Neme of cntity
1 Adana Builders & Dwelopers Pri!-ate Limited
2 Builders & Developers Private Limited
3 Akina Builders & Developen Private Limited
4 Arlie Builden & Developers Private Liflited
5 Ati Sunder Estates DeveloDers Private Iimited

Atherol Builders & DeveloDe$ Pril-ate Limited
,{nanti Builders & Constructions Private Limited

Builders & Developers Private Limited
Cadence Builders & Constructions Private Limited
Damalis Builden & Private Limited
DLF Estate Limited v,ith DLF Utilities Limited w.e.f 16
DLF Info Park Limited

13 Office Private Limited
14 DLF Clubs & Limited knot n as DLF Recteational Foundation
15 DLF Utilities Limited

8

9

10

11

12

6

7

DLF Universal Limited16

22

Private

23

2A

24

21

25

26

Edward Keventer Sucessors Private Limited11

21

18

20

DLF Wellco Private Limited kflowfl as Ethen Estates
India Estates & Services Private Limited

Primte Limited
Real Estate Private Limited
Real Estztes Private Limited

Limited
tr{ilda Buildwell Private Limited
Nlohak Real Estate Private Limited
trIusena Builders & Private Limited

Builders & Private Limited
Private LimitedEstates



DLF Home DevelopeB Limited
Notes to the stendalone fiD.ncial 6tatements for the yeer ended 31 March 2025

47. Related perty disclosures

(a) Li* of releted partiee

Fellow subsidieries/partneruhip fidls .t arry time dutiog the year *,ith whom there are trencactioas duritrg the year/balences
outstendiag .s at ye.l end

S.No. Name of
Builders & Private I-imited

Oriel Real Estates Private Limited
Paliwal Limited

Builders & Private Limited
Sagardun Builders & Developers Private Limited

Builders & Private Limited
35 Tane Estates Prilzte Limited
36 Estates Private Limited
31 Limited with DLF Utilities Limited w.e.f. 16

38 ncial Builders & Constructions P\,1 Ltd
39 Builden & Private Limited
40 Zebina Real Estates Private Limited
41 Adotrcia Builders & Private Limited
42 Amandla Builden & Privete Limited
43 Berit Builders & Private Limited
44 Buildcon Private Limited known as Vkram Electric Private
45 Invecoo Pri\,-ate Limited
46 Manini Real Estates Private Limited
47 Murdock Builders & Developels Pri\,.ate Limited
48 Prewitt Builders and Cof,structions Private Limited
46 Uni Intemational Private Limited

(fhit Eacc n i*cntiorulll le$ blaak)
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DLF Home Developers Limited

Notes to the 6tand.lone firancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

48' Disclosure under regulation 34(3) of the Secutities and Exch.nge Board of Iadia (Listing Obligariorrs and Discleurc Requirements)
Regulatiom, 2015, to the extent aprprlicable on the Company:

I,oalrs and advatrces given in the nature ofloans to subsidiaries/ associ.tB/ ioint i.eatures/ ioint operetions/ partnership firm/
fello* eubsidiaries

(t h lakhs)

Company name Statu! Balance as on Maximum balance rluring rhe

31March 2025 3lMlrch 2024 31 March m25 3lMrtch2024
Builders & Developers Prilate Limited Subsidiary 12.00 11.00 12.00 11.00

Builders & Constructirms Prilate Limited Fello*, 830.00

Real Estates Pri!?te Limited Subsidiao 363.00 397.00 397.00 425.00

Builders & Der,-elopers Prir,late Limited Fellow subsidiary 7t]0.rn

2,625.00

'722.00

5,652.31

35.00

6,664.00

1,209.00 1,280.00 1,558.00

Breeze Constructions Private Limited Subsidiary 1,0,+0.00 4625.00 1,0,{0.00

Estate Develop€rs Priv.te Limited Subsidiary 164.N 766.00 813.00

Realtrxs Primte Limited 5,148.31 5,652.31 5,248.31

Deltaland Buildcon Priyate Limited Subsidiarv 25.OO 35.00 25.00

Excl'rsive Flo.rs P.ivate I-imited Subsirliae 6,664.00

Homes Goa Private Limited Subsidiary 184.00

23,383.00

487.00

89.00 184.00 89.00

Info City Hyderebad Limited Subsidian 2,600.00 33,41'1.00 2,600.00

Info Park (Pue) Limited Fellow subsidim 147.OO 487.00 347.00

I-uxuq Homes Iimited 3,3'19.00

I,169.00

4,069.00 2,500.00

1,944.00Iimired '1,087.00 1,169.00

Residential Patmers Limited Subsidiarv 72.74 12.74 2,',7 50.7 4

SBPL Developers Private Limited Joint Veflue 193.61 193.61 193.67 193.67

Llniwersal I-imited 1,037.31 1,183.31 1217.31 1,833.31

Real Esrate Priute Limited Subsiditv 1,462.00 885.00 tA42.0O 885.00

Kevmter ( Sucessors ) Private Limit€d Fellow subsidia.ry 2,088.00 792.00 2,088.00 192.m

Property ManaSement Sewices Private Limited Subsidiry 4,171.00 1,890.00 4,771.00 3,500.00

DevelopeB Private Limited Felow subsidiao 21.00 21.00 21.00 21.OO

DRDL Consottium Joint Opention 8,623.99 8,623.99 8,623.99 8,623.99

Builders and Developets Private Limited Subsidiarv 3,1m.00

Isabel Buildea & Developets Private Limited Subsidiaty 411.00 33'1.00 411.00 331.00

ry.nti Real Estrte D€velopers Private Limited 1,718.00 1,699.00 1,718.00 1,781.00

tntemational Convention Centte Liflited Subsidiary 973.53

Buildwell Private I-imited Subsidiary 2.00

Builders & Developers Private Limired Fellow subsidiaty 11,124.N 11,6,16.00 11,724.00 11,646.00

Builders & Developers Privde Linit€d Subsidiary 7M.(n

1,129.00

15,638.50

ml.to

174.00 784.00 774.OO

859.00

20,038.50

Dewelopers Limited Fellow subsidian' 859.00 1,129.N

Buildes & Dwelopers Pdvte Limited Joint Venture 12,038.50 15,638.50

Builders & Developers Private Limited Fellow subsidiery 1,733.00 1,733.00 1,740.00

Raeks Estates Developers Pdvete Limited 41.00

Rational Builders & Develoeprs P.rtnership 6Im 1,059.00 305.00 1,059.00 305.00

Riveria Commercial Developers Limited Subsidirv 11,603.46 5,503.46 12,503.46 r7,253.46

Shiveii Nlarg Nteintenence Services Limited Subsidiary 285.00 285.00 285.00 285.00
Skyrise Home Developers Privrte Limited 182.00 1A2.OO 182.00 182.00

Developers Limited Fellow subsidierv 42,142.78

Unci.l Builders & Corstructions Prt Ltd Fellow subsidiary 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.N
Urvasi Infratech Private Limited Subsidiary 8,371.63 15,949.00 22,714.00 16,549.00

31MarclI?JJ24

Statui

Limited Holding
31 Match 2025 31 Merch 2024

Meximum batence during rheBalance ar on

31March ZD5

32836.00

1-a-
a

Loans end advance* io the nature ofloatr3 to ln



Dt F Home Developers Limited

Notes to ahe statrdalone financial sr.remerrts for the year ended 3l}'':a; ch m?S

48. Disclosure un<ler reguletion 34(3) ofth€ Securitie end Exchange Board oflndia (Li6tirg Obligarions and Disclosure Rcquirements)
ReguLtions, 20r.1i, to the extent applicable on rhe Cornpany:

Loans and edr.ances in the [ature ofloens takcn from subsidiaries/ associatee/ fellow

I-oaos .nd advances itr the nature of loans laken from holding company

Name Status Balznce es on Maximum balance during the

31 Merch 2025 31March2021 31 M.rch 2045 SlM.tchm?A

Limned Holding company 2929.00 40,864.00 113,164.00 103,900.70

P.ajdhani Investments end Agencies Pri%te Limited Ultimate holding
company

50,000.00 50,000.00 50,000.00

Name Stetus Balance as on Maximum belance during the ycar

3lMarclr2lJ25 3lllI^tcll2n2A 3lMatch2A25 3l M^rch 2024

66.00Damalis Builders & Developers Limited Fellow subsidieo

DLF Luurv Homes Limited 1,591.00 28,628.00

DLF Southem Tou,ns Private Iimited Subsidiaro 23,821.00 46,107.00 30,561.00

DLF Builders and Develope6 Privde Limited Suhsidiaa 4,973.00 10,137.00

18,6,tO.00

4,913.00

DLF Homes Panchkda Prirate Limited Subsidiaru 18,639.00 13,909.00 13,909.00

DI-F Proiects Limited Fellow subsidien' 6,769.00 320.OO 7,913.00 2,710.00

DLF IT Offices Chennxi Privde Limited O,l€rged with
DLF Home Developen Limited w.e.f 19 November
m24)

22,110.00

3,466.00

Subsidian 40930.00

q
o



DLF Home Developers Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements fot the ye.t ended 31 March Z)25

49 The Companv has entered into business development agreernents with certain entities for acquisition of sole ttevocable
develoPmeot rights in identiEed land which are acquited/or in the edvanced stages ofbeiog acquited by &ese entities.
In tetms of accouoting policl stated in Note 3(1r), the amount paid to these entities pursuant to the above agteements
for acquiring development rights are classified under inventory as development rights.

50. Seganent reporting

The Company's busioess activities, which ate primatily real estate developrnent and related activities, falls within a singte
tepottable segment as the management of the Company views the entite business activities as real estate development.
Accordingly, there ate no additional disclosues to be fumished in accordance with the requitement of Ind AS 108 -
Operating Segments with respect to single reportable segment. Futher, the opentioos of the Companv are domiciled in
India and therefore there are no reportable geoglaphical segrnent.

51. Exceptional items

Following exceptional items (net) have been recorded:

Peticulats llI0latcll?,/J'25 3lMttch2JJ2
(l in lakhs) (t in lakhs)

Provision for impaiment allowaoce of investment made in group
!rote (773.94)

Exceptional loss (A) o73.94\
Reversal of impairment allowance of investrnents irr subsidiary
companies [refet note (b)l 29122.69 79,933.52

Reversal of allowance fot expected credit losses on loans and advance
given to gtoup companies [tefet note (c)l 10,881.82

ExceDtional Dtofi t (B)=(b)+ (c) 29,422.69 30,815.34
Net exceptional profit (B-A) 29,422.69 30.041.40

(a) During the previous year, the Company had te-assessed dre recoverability of investments in a subsidiary. Based on its
assessment, the Companv had recoguized an impairment loss of{ 773.94lakhs in the statement ofprofit and loss.

@) Duting the year, the Company has reassessed the recoverability ofits iflvestments in vatious subsidiaries. Based on its
assessment (mainty on account of increase in valuation of undertying land parcel and properties), the Company has
made reversal of impairment loss tecognized in earlier years of 7 29,422.69 l <hs nr statement of pro6t and loss.

Dutiag the previous year the company had reveced impairment loss of I 19,933.52 taLhs io statement ofpiofit and
loss based on its assessment (mainly on account of margias aoticipated from projects and booking received for
independent floors in the investee companies).

(c) During the ptevious )€ar, tle Company had reassessed the rccoverability of its loans and advances in various
subsidiaries. Based on its assessment (mainlv on account ofbooking received for floors in the subsidiary companies),
the Company had made reversal of impairment loss recognized in eadier ,vea$ of { 10,881.82 takhs in the statement of
ptofit and loss.

52. The Company is engaged in the business of ptoviding inftastructure facilities as per Section 186 (11) read with Schedule
VI of the Companies Act 2013. Accodingly, disclosute rmdet Section 186 of the Act, in respect of loans, guaantees
investments and securities is not applicable to the Company.

(Thir r?ace bar bee,, irtentioaalfi bff bhnk)



DLF Home Developers Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statemeats for the year ended 31 Match 2025

53. Pursuant to agreements dated 2 September 2015 betweeo the Companv, DLF Urban Ptivate Limited, DLF Xlidtown
Pd\,'are Limited together referred to as the "SPVs" and Reco Gteen Pte. Limited, Reco NIod Pre. Lioited togethet rcfered
to as the "Investors" tespectively, land parcels located in Shivaji lr{atg, New Delhi were sotd by the Company to 2 SPVs
fot a total considetatioq of t370,000.00 takhs. Out of total corsideration, Company had recognised revenue to tlte extent
of { 185,000.00 lakhs (as the balance considetation was contingent on frrlfiknent of certain tetms & conditions) and entite
cost was charged off as cost of sales amounting to t44,067.80 lakhs in the Eaancial statements in eatlier ),ears, Out of
balance consideration of t185,000.00 lalhs, t 46,250.00 lakhs has been recognised till date (31 \latch 2O24: < 42A49.18
lakhs) on frrlfilment of televant conditioos. Catrying r,alue of the afotesaid consideration of { 22,750.00 lakhs (31 March
2024:.7 42,449.18laldts ) has been disclosed uoder Note 9'Othet financial assets'.

54. Scheme of amalgamatioa proposcd during dre year ended 31 March Z)25:

The Board of Directols of the Company vide its resolution d*ed 27 \fatch 2025 approved the Scheme of Amalgamation
irvolving Bhamini Real Estate Developets Ptivate Limited and DLF Urban Private Limited (Iransferor Companies) with
the Company ('Ttansfetee Company") pu$uant to Section 230-232 al;,d ot\et rclevant provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the Rules made theteundet. The said Scheme of Amalgamation has been filed subsequent to year end with
the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Chandiga*r Bench on 06 XIay 2025. Since the otder is awaited, no
impact has been considered in these standalone financial statements,

55. Assets Held fot Sale

Duriog the yeat ended 31 \Iztch 2020, the Company had decided to ttarrsfer 1 ,632,1 50 equity shares io DLF Info City
Hyderabad Limited haviog carrving mlue of { 5.00 lakhs to DLF Cybet City Developers Limited @CCDL) (a joint venture
of holding company). Accordingly, these investmeflts are dassiEed as'lAsset Held fot Sale" in these Enancial statements.

56. BusinessCombination:

The Hon'ble The Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal ('NCLT), Chandigarh Bench vide its Order dated 20
November 2024, has apptoved the Scheme ofArangement involving meqer of Chamundeshwati Builden Pdvate Limited
(fmnsferot Compaoy No.1), DLF Gaden City Indore Private Limited (ftansferor Company No.2), DLF IT Offices
Chennei Private Limited (fransferor Company No.3), DLF Residential Developers Limited Cftansferor Company No.4),
Latona Buildets & Constructions Private Limited (Iransferor Company No.5) & Livana Builders & Developets Private
Limited (ftansferor Companl' No.6) with DLF Home Developets Limited ('"Transfetee Companf) pursuant to Section
230 232 ard other televant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules made thereunder.

The Transferor Companies are engaged in the business which inter-alia includes teal estate activities, and carrving on
business activities in terms of their respective Nlemomndum ofAssociatioo.

The Company has applied principles ofAppendix C to Ind AS 103 i.e. Business Combinations of eotities tmder common
conttol for Transfetot Companv No. 2 & 4. All the assets and liabilities ate acquLed at book value and any difference aftet
intercompany elimination is adjusted in accordance q,ith the Scheme in Capital Reserve Accouot. Comparative figures of
ptevious yeat ended 31 \larch 2024 are testated in accordance with Ind AS 1 03.

The Company has coocluded acquisitioo of tansferor Company oo. 1, 3, 5 & 6 as asset acquisition and applied principles
oflod AS using asset acquisition method w.e.f. date ofotder ofNCLT i.e. 20 November 2024. Atl the assets and liabilities
ate acquired at fair value and difference between book value and fair value is allocated to respective assets od the basis of
fair value of assets and liabilities acquired.

Further, pto6t from sale of investment plopert!' of t 18,956.14 lakhs made by ttansferor company no. 3 has been
recognised as income in satement of prcfit and loss in merged financial statements.

Pusuaot to this dre curtefrt tax exPense tecognized by the transferor companies in their respective fillancial statements for
ptevious finaocial vea$ ate set off against browht for,vatd losses of ftansfetee company. -\s a result, t 6,557.96 takhs is
revetsed under head tax relating to earlic lears itr statement of profit and loss in cuftent year.

Since the Transferor Companies wete who\ owned subsidiaties of Transferee Compan;-, no shares have been issued as a

4a

coosideration of the amalgamation.



DLF Home Developers Limited
Notes to the financial st.tements for the ve.r ended 31 March 2()25

(i, .) Details of assets and liabilitiee ofthe Transfcror Compatry No. 2 & 4 as on 0l April Z)23 ere as follos,s:

ln

Particulerr
DLF Garden City Indorc

Priv.te Limited
(Ireasfctor Compeny No. 2)

DLF Residential Developerr
Limited

(Tr.a6feror Comp.ny No. 4)
Total

Assets teken ovet

643.70

192.68

206.54

3.78

14,697.24

155.78

240.15

175.56

12,057.27

42.46

2'7.62

,465.NrTFr{r.

plant and equipmeat

on-curreot tax assets (net)

tax assets (net)

receivables

afld cash equivaleots

bank balances

8,197.89

15.33

332.20

246.4a

3,856.35

current financial essets

nofl-current assets

non-curent fi naflcial assets

320.07

672.69

1,718.53

11.51

1,024.61

643.70

37.75

524.88

M.54
o.2t;

1r,553.59

155.78

560.n
8,t8.25

13,775.W

54.03

1,052.D

36,663.0!)
Liabilities t.lcn ovcr (B)

70

939.20

8,581.30 8,773.N

eliminated

rcserlve F =

164.85

6.38

0.68

4,040.00

3,934.52

tax liabilitGs

!iabilitiee
of the Tr.Dsferor

Iavestrncnt of tbe transferee

Net b.l.nce tretrsferred to
eliminatio[

230.36

607.90

4,353.44

698.11

710.11

6,969.69

8.97

0.13

194.29

928.47

u18.01
11,323.13

8.97

0.I
194_B

payables

current financial liabilities

curreot liabilities

(oon-current)

(cunent)

Note
*It indudes< 5,496.49 lakhs being putchase price allocation cost, recotded as inventory in consolidated financiel statemeflts of the Cofirpany, at the time of
purchase ofinvestrnent in transferor compaoy no. 2 in earlier years.

(fbi r?ar. har bu i,lt ,ttional! hJt blank)



Particulers
O1 Aptil2023

Other equity (es per previou3ly rcported bdance sheet) (i) 593,313.73
otr accormt ofmergel

Capital reserve taken over ptrsturnt m merger
Retained eatnings taken over from Transferor Companies 2 & 4

(3,983.62)

(,n0.34)

Other aa at 2t2i aftet 588,059.77

DLF Home Developers Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year erded 31 March 2025

Reconciliation of other

Recouciliation of Sr.tement of Pmfit end Loss::

#It includes { 1,440.09 lakhs towards purchase price allocatiofl cost as stated ifl Note 56(ii)(a) above, wdtten off in the statement ofprofit and loss during
the year.

d) Details of nct .6sct8 acquired ftom Traoferor Company no, ,, 3, 5 & 6 efter allocation of resewca and eliminatiotr of inter group
trens.ctions and .diustrnent of feir velue as per Iad AS:

(fht t?ae. het b,e inr.dtionah b[, bla,,k)

Other
Comprehenaive

Iocomc

Profit after t.x

3l]I.ztcln2m43lI0[iatch?,024

423.01

0.09

79,119.55

9,944.52

Particulers

et pto{it for the 1'ear (as per previous Statemeflt of Profit and Loss) of the Transferee Company (a)

et profit for the year of the Transferor Companies @)

on account of
for dre in dre Statement ofProfit and Loss) (d)=(a)+(b)+(c )et 8?,663.98 423.10

Perticulrrs

0.20

0.26

28.16

48.96

36,265.65

2,553.94

1.r9

38.30

2,61r.53

0.02

.32

Aesets tekcn over (A)
Investment in parmership Ftms

Other non-current financial assets

Non curmt tax assets (net)

Cash and cash equivalmts

Other bank balances

I-oans

Other current {inancial assets

Other current assets

assete (A)
Li.bilities taken ove. (B)

payables

Other curent Enancial liabilities

Other curent liabilities

Current tax liabilities

liabilities
lnvestment of the transferee eliminated

elimination
Nct to aaaet 18,956.14



DLF Home Developets Limited
Notes to the standalone 6[ancial statements fot the yeat ended 31 Match 2025

57. The Company has used a drird parq operated accounting softnre for maintaining its books of accouat, which has a feature
ofrecotding audit trail (edit log) faciliq; aad the same has opetated throughout the yeat for all lelevant transacrions tecotded
in the software. The Companv has obtained service organization conttols report i,e. SOC 1 gpe 2 report ('SOC Report")
from the provider of accounting softwate and has concluded that the audit ttail in respect of such software has beeo
tecorded and ptesewed in compliance with the tequirements of section 128(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, in tespectbf
the financial year ended 3 I \{arch 2025. There has beea no inst*rce of audit tmil feature being tampered with. Additionatly,
irr tespect of the financial vear ended 31 \loxh 2024, matragement is oot in possession of SOC Report to determire
urhethet the requirement of ptesen'ation of audit ttail has been complied as per tle statutory requirements for recotd
rctention.

58. The natute of cost of maintenance aewices and cost of tecteational facility (Club) aa disclosed in note 30 is as
follows:

S. No. Patticulets 31 Match
ME

(< in lal,rhs)

31 Match
m24

(t in lakhs)
l) Cost of tcctcational facility (Club)

1 Elecuicity, fuel and n-rtet 14.98 12.O0

2 Insumnce 2.21 1.92
3 Repait and maintenaoce

Building o.57 4.15
Plant and machinery 3.38 1.42
Others 12.17 7.05

4 Cost of dub operation 3t.19 31;71

64.395 Facilities 88.49
6 Ttavelling and conveyance 1.94 0.55
7 Nliscellaneous o.49 o.62

Total (a) 755.42 729.81
(b) Cost of maintenance sewices

1 Electriciqv, fuel a-od *zter 46.1,3 47.O2
2 Rates aod taxes 55.87 16.91

and maiatenance

Plaot and
6.00 1.O7

0.85
Ot}rets 0.81

4 Facilities 243.38 237.39
5 kgal and professional 3.18
6 Nfiscellaneous 2.1'7 7.20

Total (b) 354.fi 31i.@

E

(Ihir We Itar beet inte,rtional$ bt' bla*)

a



DLF Home Developets Limited
Note6 to the standaloae financial stateme[ts for rhe yeat ended 31 March 2025

59. Other statutory infotmation fot the year ended 31 Match Zi,25 atit 3lMatch2024:
(i) The Company do not have anl benami ptopety, where anv proceeding has been initiated or pending against the

Company for holding any benami propettv under the Benami Transactions (Ptohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and
rules made thetermder.

(ii) The Company has identified transactions with tlre below companies which har.e been struck off undet Section 248
of t}le Companies Act, 2013:

Fot the ended 31 Merch 2025

Fot the ycat ended 3ll['[arcln?J'24 (t in latrhs)

tn

a4

LD

(ii) The Companv does not have aoy charge ot satisfaction which is )'et to be registeted with Registrar of Companies
beyond the statuto$ pedod.

(iv) The Company has rot ttaded ot invested in Cn1>to cuttency or Yirtual Cutencv during the 6naocial year.

person(s) ot entig (ies), including forcign

m

o

Name of sttuck-off company Corporate Ideatilication
Number

N.ture of
ttansaction

Balance
outstanding

a8 at 31

March Z)25

Relatiouship
with sttuck-off

compa[ies

Ananya Outsourcing Services

Private Limited
u 7 4999DL20 1'7 P t C3 1 49 25 Pavables None

Beg Catgo llovers Pdvate Limited u 6301 1DL2007 PI C1 6 629 6 Payzble None

Cadmium Outdoor Solutions P Ltd u74300KL2003PTC01 5892 Receivable None

Nlechwing Engineering & Services

Pdute Limited
u74999UP2016mC085799 Payables 7.19 None

Sar Realtv Pdvate Limited u45200DL2007PTC1 58850 Pavables None

Sa Nlettoplots Private Limited u701 01TN2008PTC0668s3 Pavables None

Name of sttuck-olf compaly Cotpotate Identifi cation
Numbet

Natute of
trarsactiotr

Balance

outstandin
gasat3l

Match
NU,

Relationship
with sttuck-off
coEPanies

Ana-oya Outsourcing Services

Ptivate Limited
u 7 4999DI20 1'7 PT C3 1, 4925 Pa!'ables 0.16 None

Pioneer lledialine Services Ptivate

Limited
u74900DL2009PTC 191499 Receivables 2.92 None

Real Chase Online Sewices Private

Limited
u 52590T G2008vt C0 s9 662 Pavables None

Realqv Value India Priute Limited u 7 01021 G2007 w c,o 52225 Pavables None

Sar Realtv Privxte Limited u45200DL2007PTC1 58850 Par,'ables None

Sa Nlettoplots Private Limited u70101Tri2008PTC066853 Par.ables None

Upasi Ptoperty Nlatt Pdvate

Limited
u70109TN2005PTC055545 Pavables None

Silarpuri

Limited
Buildhome Private u45201RJ2007WC024306 Receivables None

E
a *

(v) The Compaoy has not advanced ot loaned ot invested ftrnds to any other
entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermedialv shall:

6



60.

DLF Home Developerc Limited
Notes to the st.adalone financial stateEents for the year ended 31 Match 2025

(a) direcdr ot inditectlr lend ot invest in odret petsons or entities identified in anv maflner whatsoever bv ot on behalf
of the Companv (Ultimate Bene6ciaries); or

(b) provide any guarantee, securit!., or tlrc like to or on behalf of the Ulrimate Berieficiaries.

(vi) The Companv has not teceived any fund from aay person(s) or entity(ies), inctuding foreign entities (Funding Patti)
uith the tmdetstanding (whether rccotded in *'titing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) dtecdy ot indLecdv lend or invest in other persons or ertities identifred in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Frmding Party (Jltimate Bene6ciaties); ot

(b) provide any guanntee, secudty, or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiades.

(vii) The Company do not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been
surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments uodet the Income-tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey
or aoy other relevant provisioos of the Income-tax Acg 1961).

(viii) The Company has not beeo declared wilfirl defaulter b,v any bank or finaocial institution or Goveflrment or a y
Govemment authotity or othet lender, in accordance with the guidelines oo wil6.rl defaulters issued by the Resewe
Bank of India.

(ix) The Company has complied with the number of layers prescdbed under Clause (87) of Section 2 of the Cornpanies
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Restriction on flrlmbei of Layers) Rules, 2017 &om the date of tleit
implementation.

During the yeat, pursuant to Expert ,\dvisory Committee @.\C) of tie Institute of Chartered Accountants of India on
"Presentation of accrued wages and salades of employees", the Company has concluded that presenting such amounts
under "Other Liabilities", rcsults in improved presentation and better reflects the nature ofthese obligations.

Accordingly, the amount aggregating to { 4,463.68 lakhs Q1 Match 2024: t 4,318.01 lakhs) previously ctassified under
head Trade Payables have been reclassified to othet cutrent liabilities.

The above changes does not impact recognition and measurement ifl the financial statements and consequentlS there is
no impact on total equity or ptofit of current and previous ,€ars. 06

(r.
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DLF Home Developets Limited
Notes to the standalone fiaancial statements for the yeat ended 31 March 2025

62' The figures for the cortesponding previous yeat have been tegtouped/ reclassified, wherever corsidered necessarv to
make them compatable with curent veat's classification.

As per repot of even date

Fot S.R. Badiboi & Co. LLP
ICAI Fifrn Registation Number: 301003E,/E300005
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